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You didn’t tell Michelin about any of that, did

The erectile dysfunction?

A1l the medications you were on.

Yeah, I told them about the --

You told Michelin about all the medications --
-- I told Michelin --

-~ when you came to work for them?

~-- yeah, high blood pressure and I wrote it down

to the Nurse when we had -~ when a -- a thing there.

So, you’re just talking about only high blood

pressure?

says

Yeah, that’s all -

Okay.

-- high blood pressure.

Then 1t says prior arthroscopy of your knge. It

that on your doctor’s report, procedure history,

prior arthroscopy of the knee; so -- and it says on the

right, it says remote. But my -- my question is, if

Hit’s

'this

on Dr. Marom’s report in January, why wasn’t it on

form that you filled out just a couple of months

later; why didn’t you tell Michelin about it?

when was that knee thing?

~ The report 1is January 3rd of 2017.

I don’t have no knee problem.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073
4;’03) 358-0515
www.Pa*he%tOCOurtReporting.com
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well, you told the doctor you did- --
I mean, when --
-- because he wrote it down.
- -- yeah. when I -- when I had -- T think when I
-- when I -- when I had the back injury I had -- he
wanted to know Whether I had fluid on my right -- right
knee or -- and where the fluid was at, and the reason
why the fluid was on -- the reason why I had the back
- I had that back injury and when I had the back
injury the fluid, he said can come from the_other side
I didn’t ask you what he said.
-- to the -- okay.
Again, we're --
oh.
-- we’re talking about six (6) months before June;
we’re talking about Janbary of 2017.
January?
Yes, sir.
I thought you was talking twenty (20) --
No, 2017 --
-- I didn’t have no --
-- I just said that.

-~ I didn’t have no -- you said I had fluid on my

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
p4963) 358-0515
www. PalmettoCourtReporting. com
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You told the doctor that -- _
Commissioner wWilkerson: Right.
-- you had a prior arthroscopy --
Commissioner wilkerson: Prior.
-- of your knee.
Ccommissioner wi1kerson; He didn’t say
you had it that day.
witness: Uh-huh.
Commissioner/Wi1kerson: You told him
you had it prior; that could be when you were
twenty-three (23), thirteen (13) or three (3)
years old.
But you told the doctor?
Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t know.
Uh-huh.
why in the world if you told the doctor in January
couldn’t you have told Michelin on the form you filled
out for them --
.NO.
-- just a éoup]e of months later?
I didn’t tell them that.
what?
No, I didn’t tell them that.
Okay. And the reason you didn’t tell them any of
those prior problems: Right knee, the gout, the low
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mmac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

$203) 358-0515

4 .
www. PaTmettocou rtReporting.com
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back, any of the-doctor names; the reason you didn’'t do
that is because you knew or you were afraid that if you
told them all of that stuff you wbu]dn’t get a job at
Michelin; isn’t that true, that’s why you didn’t tell
them?
No, that’s not true.
okay. But you can’t explain why you didn’t tell
them other than you just signed everything real fast?
I didn’t --
That’s your excuse; that’s what you're telling us
here today?
-- no, I didn’t -- I didn’t say I could just --
You said --
-- the -- the gout --
-- I just signed it real fast; that’s exactly what
you said.
Mr. Samuels: Your Honor, I --
True or false?
Mr. Samuels: -- object to counsel
interrupting the -- the answer.
commissioner Wilkerson:  we’ll Tlet him
answer. Go ahead and answer the question.
Mr. Beard: Okay. |
witness: oOkay. Go back to the first
one where you -- what -- what was the first
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(R03) 358-0515
www.Pafﬂg%tOCourtReporting.com
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one, you said something about the -- what --
what you were saying -- you threw so many
questions out there at one time I didn’t --
I threw one (1) question; I said the reason -- I
said you didn’t them --
-~ yeah. |
-~ about the gout, you didn’t tell them about the
knee, you didn’t tell them about the low back because
you --
The gout --
-~ you didn’t -- you didn’t --
Ccommissioner Wilkerson: Let him finish.
~- you didn’t think they would hire you --
-- okay.
-- 1isn’t that true?
No, that’s not true. I didn’t -- I didn't -- as
far as not afraid of them not hiring me, because I
didn’f have -- I -- I was checked -- I got checked out
because I wanted to be checked out myself, as far as
cardiologist, going to the cardiologist, making sure
everything is straight and, also, making sure I don’t
have gout.
| Okay. It says at that time you were employed
doing quality controi, according to this form, on June
3rd of 2017; you weren’t doing quality control on June
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

4;‘!03) 358-0515
www.Payme%tOCourtReporting.com
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3rd of 17, you weren’t working at --

177

-- Westinghouse anymore in January of ’17, were
you?

Say what now?

You weren’t working at wéstinghouse in January of
2017, were you? |

January of 20177

Yes, sir. You weren’t there anymore?

I think I ——’yeah. I don’t know. Juhe of -- July
-- January you said? |

January of 2017, it says you were working in
Quality Control.

Yeah --

You --

-- at westinghouse.

-- you were still there?

I think so, yeah. Yeah, if I remember.-

Do you remember filling out an employment

‘application when you came to work for Michelin?

That was, like -- it was way before we had gotten
-- we don’t just -~ it’s several employment
applications; you just don’t go in and fill out an
application and you get Hired then, it’s several
sequences you’Ve got to go through.
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

rR03) 358-0515
_ www.Paﬁﬂ%%toCourtReporting.com
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That’s fine.

Yeah.

I want to ask you, is --

Yeah.

-- is this your employment app1icati6ns that you
filled out on February 27th of ’17, for Michelin?

Mr. Samuels: Can I be allowed to see
that, please?

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Beard: Sure.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Come on.

Mr. Beard: You’ve got it in the -- in
the subpoenaed documents that you got.

Commissidner wilkerson: Do I have it or
no? -

Mr. Beard: No.

You said January what now?

Mr. Beard: I didn’t know this would be
an issue but it is, apparently, going to be
one.

January 27th of '17.

Oh. No, that’s February.

I mean, February 27th of ’17.

You said January.

No. I said February the first time but I --

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

56;03) 358-0515
www.ParmettocourtReporting.com
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A. No, you didn’t; you said January.
Q. -- all right. 1Is that your signature --
Commissioner wilkerson: Answer the
question.
Q. -- at February 27th?

Commissioner Wilkerson: We're going --

do you want to get home --

Witness: Yeah.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- tomorrow?
Answer the question. You're not -- you don’t
argue, you just'answer questions; that’s your
job.

wWitness: Yeah. But I was --

Commissioner Wilkerson: 3Just answer
them.

wWitness: -- I’m correcting him what he

Commissioner wilkerson: I --
wWitness: -- okay.
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- just answer
the question.
February 27th? vYeah. I was --
Is this your application?

-- that’s my application --

o r O >

Okay.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
53903) 358-0515
www.Pafhe%toCourtReporting.com
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-- yeah.
A1l right. And on the application, when does it
say you stopped working at Michelin; does that say -- I
mean, Westinghouse; does that say December of 20167
You said what now?

Commissioner Wilkerson: Read it --

This is --
-- yeah.
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- does it say
you stopped working at westinghouse on ~- 1in

December of 2016, was the question.

So, time employed from 8/07 to 2/12/16, yeah.

okay. Sso --

Yeah.

-- on the application you filled out in February,
you said you were no longer at westinghouse‘in
December, so you would not have been dbing quality
control on January the 3rd of ’'17, because you didn’t
work at westinghouse anymore, correct?

Correct. |

okay. Also, on this application, it goes back to
the year 19 -- it 1ooks like ’86 -- this is your
writing, correct; is that 19867

Yeah.

Okay. 1It’s got a lot jobs on there. 1It’s got UPS

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

50303) 358-0515
www.PaﬁmettOCOurtReporting.com
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from 86 to 89, Cooper Tools from '89 to '94, Inland
Container from ’94 to '96 and from ’96 to ’0l it says
Dupont, correct?

Uh-huh.

okay.. That's yes?

Yes.

where is Richtex Bricks?

Columbia.

Where is it on thjs document?

1997.

1997.

Yeah. |

Show me in 1997, where Richtex Bricks is on this
application. You remember where you had your workers’
Comp injury and workers’ Comp claim; do you remember
that? '

Yeah.

where -- where is that on that document?

It’s not on that document.

okay. And the reason it’s not on that document is
the same reason you didn’t tell us about your back pain
on that questionnaire, you didn’t want westinghouse --
I mean, you didn’t want Michelin to go and subpoena or
find out if there was something wrong with you; isn’t
that correct?

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073

(203) 358-0515
www.PaTﬂgftOCourtReporting.com
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No, that’s not true.

Okay. It just -- just happens to be --

Now --

-~ you conveniently didn’t remember about youf
workers’ Comp back claim --

-~ what happened --

-~ you conveniently don’t remember about the --
the employer you used to work for?

-~ well, I -- when we was filling out that
application they said you could -- you know, I told
them, hey, look, I’m not -- as far now ’97 or either
you have -- I worked multiple jobs. So, filling out
multiple jobs where I couldn’t fil1l out a Tot of those
things. And they was, 1ike, no, we just want to be --
they was only concerned with, you know, the recent
ones. So, that -- yeah, I couldn’t --

well, you went back to ’'86 --

-- yeah.

-- I assume you admit '97 would have'been after
86, correct; that would be more recent than ’867?

Yeah, ’'97 was -- I didn't even do this --

Am I correct?

-- yes.

My qﬁestion is, '97 is more recent than ’86 --

Right.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

56%03) 358-0515
www.PaTme%tocourtReporting.com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

138

-- correct?

Right.

So, Richtex should be on here; it’s not though, is
it?

Right, it’s not.

Okay. That’s a little suspicious isn’t it, being
-- being what we’re here for; isn’t that a little
suspicious?

well, I wouldn’t -- I wouldn’t -- 1 mean, it
depends on the situation but --

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, we would
request the -- the opportunity to provide you
with that app1{catioh after the hearing.

commissioner wWilkerson: Yes. And also
provide it to --

Mf.‘Beard: He’s got a copy --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- oh, does he?

Mr. Beard: -- in his --

Commissioner Wilkerson: 1I’m sorry; I
apologize.

Mr. Beard: -- pursuant to his subpoena
dated August 24th; it was provided to him in
that package.

Mr. Samuels: I assume it was; I have
just not been able to Tlocate it.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073

R03) 358-0515
www.Pa?ﬂg%tocourtkeporting.com
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commissioner wilkerson: No, that’s
fine. well, if not, he will provide it to
you as well?

Mr. Beard: Could we take a short break?

commissioner wWilkerson: Yes. Now, I
told you --

Mr. Beard: I think our -- I think our
Court Repbrter needs one too.

Commissioner wilkerson: -~ vyes. I -- I
was going -- I was going to -- to --

Mr. Beard: I don’t need one but I’'m
going to take one if we get to take one.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- yes, let’s
take one.

Court Reporter: Are we going off --

Mr. Beard: Could ~- would you instruct
the witness?

commissioner wilkerson: Please. You
can’t speak to your attorney about the case,
okay?

witness: oh.

- Commissioner wWilkerson: You can’'t --
right now. You can speak to him later but on
break you can’t talk to him about anything.

witness: oh. oh, okay.
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

56503) 358-0515
www . PalmettoCourtrReporting.com



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

140

commissioner wilkerson: That’s the
rules.

witness: All right. where do -- what
do we do here now, just go?

Commissioner wilkerson: we're just
going to take a break.

(off The Record)
commissioner wilkerson: Madame Court

Reporter, let’s go back on the record. Thank

you.
Mr. Beard: Thank you, Commissioner.
Commissioner wilkerson: Please.
Mr. Beard: May I approach, again,
please?

Ccommissioner Wilkerson: Please.
Mr. Beard: Page 4 of the Claimant’s

APA’s, which would also be that January the

3rd --
Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay.
Mr. Beard: -- 2017, report.
Your doctor reports -- you may want to put your
glasses on so you can read this too -- I highlighted it

here at the very top, your lawyer submitted this

document, it says, has a significant other -- I guess

'you have a girlfriend -- one (1) adu1t daughter, Tives

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
£203) 358-0515

508 .
wwWw. PafmettoCou rtReporting.com
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in Columbia, but it says you’re on disability and you
were working at wéstinghouse in Quality Control; what
were you on disability for?

High blood pressure.

S0, you got put on disability from Westinghouse?

Yeah. I was on disability for a year way before

Did you tell --

-~ oh.

-- Michelin that you had been put on disability
for all that time?

while I was --

Because of high b1ood pressure or whatever it was;
did you tell Michelin --

-- no, I didn’t --

about that?

-- no, I didn’t tell them.

Okay. so, that’s why you weren’t working at
Westinghouse anymore because you had been on disability
for so Tong they had to cut you loose?

No. No, I just -- no, I was on disability just --
they was trying to help me as far getting my blood
pressure under control, you know, that Was where they
thought it was my heart thing but it was just -- just -
medication they had to regu1ate.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

5;;03) 358-0515
www.Pafhettocourtkeporting.com
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why did you quit working at westinghouse?

They had laid off.

You got laid off?

Uh-huh.

That;s yes?

(Nodded head in an up-and-down motion).

That’s a yes?

Yes. Yes, I'm sorry.

A1l right. Then you went to the hospital-- and
your lawyer pointed this out -- on June 24th, 2017,
which is the day that you claim you were injured on the
job, correct?

Correct.

All right. Even though you had already been to
the doctor twice and said yéu were hurting from doing
your job for at least two (2) weeks up to that time you
had been to the doctor; so, now we’re about three (3)
-- three and half (3 %) weeks later from the time that
they all started, correct?

Correct.

All right. So, on June 24th you go in and you
told the doctor, according to what it says in his
report, reports lower back pain to the left side, exact
same thing you told them on June the 11lth and June the
20 -- I mean, June the 13th, correct, back pain on the

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073

5{%03) 358-0515
www.PaTme%toCourtReporting.com
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left side, right?

I don’t --

You don’t remember juét reading the two (2)
reports from June 11th and June 13th, both of them said
Tow back pain on the left side?

-- yeah.

Okay.

Uh-huh.

And it says, since he was working last night, is
what this says, it doesn’t say since all the way back
Tike the other ones.do, it says, he does a Tot of
1ifting and pulling and started hurting then; that’s
basica11y what you had been doing the whole time,
right, 1ifting and pulling, correct?

At -~ at Michelin?

Yes.

I was --

That’s all you did on the -~ that’s all you ever

did out on the floor, wasn’t it, Tifting and pulling --

-~ no.

-- on the PAP?

No. On -- on the PAP sometimes you -- you
stretch. |

Okay.

I mean, stretching it, that’s a whole different
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thing.
You didn’t tell them you stretched; you just told
them about 1ifting and pulling?
No, I mean, I just -- they had just -- yeah, I
just --
That’s what you told them?
-- told them Tifting -- 1ifting and pulling; I
guess that’s what it is.. /
And that’s when you started hurting, is what it
said, correct? |
Uh-huh. Yeah.
Okay. Remember uh-huh -- you can’t say uh-huh and
huh-uh and I’m --
Yes.
-- I'm not trying -- I'm not being --
I understand.
-- condescending --
I understand.
-- I just want to make sure it's correct on the
record. |
Commissioner wWilkerson: You've got to
say yes or no or I don’t understand.
Witness: oOkay. .
Mr. Beard: oOkay.
And it says, you told the hospital doctor there --
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at Teast thevarote down on this thing -- you had a lot
of questions about possible workers’ Comp then; is that
correct? You told the doctor you were having questions
about workers’ comp?

Say -- say that again now?

It says, he has questions about possible Workers'’

Comp, 1is what the doctor wrote down on the consult

form.

Uh-huh.

Did you tell the doctor you had questions about
possible workers’ Comp?

on what day?

June the 24th.

I don’t --

You don’t remember that?

~- no, they asked -- they asked me about WOrkman’S
Comp.

okay.

Yeah.

You don’t remember telling the doctor and -- and

asking them questions about WOrkers’ Comp? It says,
you have questions about workers’ comp.
No. I don’t remember that.
Okay.
Mr. Beard: Commissioner, that’s at page
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17 of the Claimant’s APA’s; it’s over on the
right hand side, in two (2) locations it
talks about has questions about workers’
Comp.

Commissioner Wilkerson: 1I’ve got you.

It also says on page 18 --

Mr. Beard: -- Commissioner, may I

approach again, please?
~ Commissioner Wilkerson: Please.

There’s a question about radiating pain -- this is

on the 24th when you were at the hospital, page 18 --

it says radiates to -- can you -- can you read that or

do you need your glasses?

does

Radiate pain?

Yes. The question says -- I mean, the --

Yeah.

-- it says radiates to and then high bold, what
it say?

Does not radiate.

okay. That’s what the -- that’s what you told the

doctor, right; you didn’t have any radiating pain on

June

24th, correct?
I did though. |

In other words, you didn’t have any pain going

into your legs?
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You say radiate? I don’t even know what -- I -- I

told them what my pain was on my leg, the left side of

my leg.

You did tell them that?

Yeah.

So, you don’t --

Oon the 24th?

-- yes, sir.

when I was in the emergency room?
Yes, sir.

Yeah.

So, you don’'t know why they wrote right there,

their -- their -- and I mean, it’s dark bold writing --

Does not --
-- does not radiate.
~- I mean --
You don’t know why?
-- yeah. Wwhat else does it say?
can you -~ |
okay.
-- just answer that question?
oh, okay.
Do you know why?
poes not have -- yeah --
okay. L
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-- it says that but --

It says -- says you're achy. It says you have
moderate severity of pain. So, with all due respect,
moderate pain is less than ten (10) out of ten (10).
So, you weren’t even in as much_pain on June the 24th
as you were when you were going to the emergency room
and your own doctor when you were ten (10) out of ten
(10) pain?

okay. This is the --

24th.

-- oh, yeah. No. Yeah, I was -- well, what you
said, yeah, but from what it is --

This is what -- your lawyer put a document into
evidence; this is the document.

-- oh, okay. Yeah.

I'm asking you if all this is correct.

If it’s there it’s, I guess, co}rect.

Okay. All right. At some point on June the 24th
you talked with -- you said, Troy Lowman, correct?

Uh-huh. Yes.

okay. And Mr. Lowman was in charge of all the
trainees; his'job -~ he was like the Bull or the boss
over all those folks, people who were in training or
people who were --

Right. VYes.
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-- still on probation?

Yes, sir.

And you were on probation at this time, right?

Yes, sir.

okay. You had a Tike -- what, a nihety (90) day
or a hundred and twenty (12) days probation out at
Michelin? I don’t know what --

Yeah, something -- I --

-- I can’t remember if it’s ninety (90) or one
twenty (12).

-- I don’t -- I can’t remember neither.

Okay. But you were still on probation?

I ._..

You were still in that probationary period because

you only started at the end of April --

-- okay. Yes.
~-- correct?
Correct.

A1l right. And so, that’s who you called was Mr.

Lowman? |
| Yes.

And eventually you said you got him?

Yes.

And he instructed you with workers’ comp you were
supposed to go to the Nurse, not to the hospital,
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correct?

He -- he instructed me what?

You should have gone to the Nurse, not to the
hospital --

Correct.

-- correct?

~Correct.

Oor you should have gone to Securify if the Nurse
wasn’t there; he told you that, correct?

No.

He didn’t tell you that?

No.

Okay. All right. So, anyway, you go to -~ you
get a hold of him and -- and eventually, you talked to

the Nurse the same day; we’ve gone through those

- documents when Mr. Samuels showed you what the Nurse

called and said --

Yeah.

-- correct?

She called me after I got home --

Correct.

-- Saturday.

And told you you needed to go see Dr. Izard. You
weren’t supposed to go on your own to doctors --

NO.
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-- under Workers’ Comp if that’s what you were
claiming --

No.

-- correct?

No.

okay.

She didn’t say that. sShe said -- that’s -- yeah.
She said -- all she said was, go to -- come -- come in
-- she said, hey, look, just come in on Monday, you
know, don’t work, don’t do this, don’t do that, take
Aleve. Those -~ those doctors exaggerate. And I told
her what the doctor --4the emergency doctor said; told
her all that information. I’m on Oxycodone, you know,
this doesn’t'~- and she said -- |

well, you were already on all that stuff except
for Oxycodone; you were already on all the other
medications but you didn’t tell her about that, did
you?

-- no, I told her about --

You didn’t -- you still didn’t tell her --

-- yeah.

-- on the 24th --

oOkay. I wasn’t --

-- listen to me. You still did not tell her on
the 24th that you had been to_the doctor and the
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that

yet?

was,

that,

tal two (2) times before you went to the hospital

day, did you; you didn’t have that communication

-- well, let me finish --

Am I --

answering the first question.

-- okay.

I ain’t finished the first question --

okay. / |

-- okay? The first question what you asked me

what the Nurse told me.

Right.

I'm -- let me finish that. okay. sShe told me
hey, go to Dr. Izard Monday morning --

Okay.

-- there’s no problem. Hey, she didn’t say

nothsi

ng about -- we didn’t mention nothing about no

workman’s Comp.

Okay. So, that didn’t even come up that day?
That didn’t even come up.
Okay.

We didn’t even think -- nobody didn’t say nothing

about no workman’s Comp --

Okay.
-~ we didn’t even say nothing. She told -- Tyrone
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called me, then Tyrone said he was going to get in
contract with the Nurse.

okay.

Nurses don’t work on the weekend. So, he let the
Nurse call me back and said -- called me up and said,
Took -~

She called you on the weekend?

-- she called me that Saturday --

okay.

-- and she said --

-~ on’ the weekend?

== on the weekend. She --

okay.

-- okay. She called me that Saturday --

Right.

-- she said she was out of town. She said, hey,
just come in on Monday morning and see Dr. Izard. And
I said, okay, I'1l come in on Monday morning and see
Dr. Izard and that was that.

Okay. And that’s what --

she said --

-- I'm sorry.

-- go ahead.

That’s what you did?

That’'s what I did.
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Okay. And you went to see him on June the 26th;
so, that would have been Monday, two (2) days later?

Right.

okay.

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, again,
permission to approach?

Ccommissioner wilkerson: Sure.

Mr. Beafd: All right.

I'm looking at your medical records that have been
submitted, starting at pages 26, which would be
Healthworks; that’s where Dr. Izard is, correct?

Yes. |

okay. And you were shown this earlier and you
said the date of injury or problem was June 24th, you
said you were in severe pain and you were asked some
questions. There’s a question on here that says, have
you ever injured this part of your Body before, you
put, no, correct?

Ccorrect.

Okay.  But you have, you’ve injured your back
beforeﬁ you had a workers’ Comp claim, right?

Yeah. |

okay. So, that was not true, was it?

No. |

Okay. There's also questions onrthe next page,
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page 27. It says brevious illnesses, back injuries or
problems; it says now, past or never. You put now you
were having it and you said as of June 24th, ’17, and
you went to Lexington Emergency, correct?

Right.

You didn’t tell them about the past though, did
you?

No --

okay.

-- I didn’t.

It says, have you ever had surgery. Now, you’ve
never had back surgery but you have had right knee
surgery before; we’ve already looked and séen that
you’ve had an arthroscopy to your right knee before,
correct?

(Nodded head in an up-and-down motion).

You didn’t tell him about that either, did you?

No, I didn’t tell him about my right knee as far
as -- because it was -- that was like when I was a -- I
can’t even remember; that was 1jke -

well, you --

-- when I was a teen.

-- you remembered on January the 3rd, 2017, when
you told your family doctor that you’d had an
arthroscopy surgery on your right knee; why would you
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not remember to tell that to Dr. Izard on his form --

Yeah --

-- that’s only five (5) --

-- yeah.

-- months later?

Yeah. I -- I didn’t remember that.

okay.

I -- I just didn’t think of that.

A1l right. That’s the day you made that drawing
and showed Dr. Izard that you had fluid on your right
knee?

was that -- you said January 3rd?

No. well, that’s when you went to your doctor;
the -- tHe report your lawyer submitted --

Oh, okay.

-~ that T --

Okay.

-~ didn’t understand why but it had a lot of
information in it.

Uh-huh.

I'm asking about -- and in -- in that --

Yeah.

-- 1in that information it said you had an
arthroscopic surgery on your right knee --

Yeah.
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-- which you’ve admitted --

Yeah.

-- that you had.

Yeah,

The only way --

I admitted that.

-- that he could know that is if you told him --

You’re right.

-- when you were a kid, right?

Right. Right.

So, you had to tell him? -

Yeah. Yeah.

If you could tell him, why couldn’t you tell Dr.
Izard or why couldn’t you tell Michelin or why'couldn;t
you tell westinghouse all those answers when that was
even closer in time, at least Westinghouse: why
couldn’t you tell all them that?

I -- it was on a questionnaire and I thought it
was relating to now. I -- | |

Okay.

~- you know, me and him probably was -- I don’t
know, talking about something. I don’t know.

All right. But yoh told Dr. Izard that you were
having fluid on your right knee on June 26th and you
were claiming that was because of what was going on
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24th

you, right?

This --

You were claiming this was because of this June
stuff; isn’t that right?

-- no, that’s the left --

No, sir. That’s the right knee.

-- okay. I was perceiving it as the left.

Oh, so you were having problems --

Yeah.

-- in your left knee?

Yeah. So, I was perceiving it as the left. Hold

on now, let me see; I don’t -- I’'m trying to see

something here now. Yeah, I mean, I was doing the same

thing as -- let’s see --

this

knee

And just to remind you, we've already gone through
and you admitted that you said that was your right
-- yeah. Okay.
-- and you admitted that you said you had fluid.
okay. That’s my right.
Okay.
That’s right, yeah.
And --
I thought maybe I was -~ something was --
-- you were --
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-- I had to Took at that again.

-~ YOU were relating these right knee problems to
workers’ Comp incident you were claiming, right --
Yeah.

-- you were saying that was part of that?

I didn’t say it. I mean --

well, were you?

-- I said, they --

Are you?

-- huh?

Are you claiming your right knee fluid problems is

related to this workers’ Comp claim you’re making?

that.

No. They say that it might can be re1ated to

I'm asking you are you --

T mean -- ‘

-- claiming that?

-- I don’t know. I don’'t know.

well, on June 26th; two (2) days after you claimed

to have been injured, you told pr. Izard on a form, at

least you drew it on there, were you claiming that to

be related? on June 26th you were making that claim,

two (2) days after this incident.

that’

I mean, I don’t -- as far as making a claim that

s related to that?
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Yes.

I -- I don’t know whether I was making that claim.
I just told thém, you know, that was what’s going on,
as happening now.

okay. And Dr. Izard instructed you to return to
work immediately under regular duty, correct?

correct.

And to come back and see him in two (2) days,
right? He gave you a two (2) day return to see him,
correct? |

Nd, He just said go back to work and he’l1l get
back with me -- and go back to work and that’s the last
I heard from Dr. Izard.

okay.

And -- and I -- and I -- and when I -- I got
another opinion and that’'s why I went out to the
emergency room. -

A1l right. You went to the emergency room, not
the same day aS you got the opinion from Dr. Izard, but
you went to the emergency room the next day, on June
the 27th, correct?

Yes.

You didn’t tell Michelin you were going to get
another opinion, did you; you just went?

No. I did. I told --
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You did what?

-- I told -- I told Troy Lowman -- I told people
-~ Troy Lowman and I told -- I forgot who else I told
but I told people that, hey, I'm not -- I can’'t come
back to work; no way I can come back to work. T wasn’t
-- I wasn’t just going to Teave out of work. I always
told them -- I always kept -- I always told them whét I
was doing prior -- after that 24th; I always told them
that. |

okay. So, your testimony is, you told Troy Lowman
before you went to the hospital on the --

I know I told --

-- 1e§ me -- Tet me finish my question.

-~ go ahead.

Before you went to the hospital on June 27th, your
testimony is you told Troy Lowman you were going to the
hospital on the 27th, even though you weren’t working
that day? ‘

I told -~ I -- I'm trying to remember who I talked
to on the 27th. I talked to some higher up; I think it
was Troy Lowman or Kathy, one (1) out the two (2), I
was keeping informed on what was going on with me
because I was out of work. Because they didn’t -- you
know, they didn’t -- I mean, I had excuses for all
those days. So, I can’t exactly -- I -- I know I
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called Troy and told him -- I Teft a message; we’d been
going back-and-forth and also kathy. I don’t -- I
can’t exactly say which one I was talking to, verbatim,
but it was one (1) out the two (2), you know?

Okay. 'During all this time you were -- you were
having a -- you had a pretty bad -- you have bad
coughing issues. You have -- you were going to the
doctors for coughing all that time, as well, weren’t
you?

Yeah. I was -- I had a -- I think I had a cold.

And -- and, I mean, you were coughing a lot?

veah. |

Coughing hard?

Yeah. Cough -- I had a cold.

okay.

Uh-huh.

And that was causing problems with your back,
wasn’t it?

Cause -- causing problems? No.

well, it says here, he also states when he coughs
it hurts his back; did you tell the doctor that or not?

Yeah.

I mean --

Yeah.

-- what --
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Yeah. Yeah. Yeah. Yeah.

-- okay. |

Yeah. Yeah.

You don’t think that’s important?
well, they --

You don’t think that’s <important?

-- I was telling -- what I was saying was that I

was coughing so hard that -- that thing hurt my back;

it was just -- I was just --

your

hard;

Coughing --

-- I mean, I -- ,
-~ coughing so hard it could have;even herniated
back, couldn’t it?

-- ydu know what I'm saying, it -- I just coughed
you know what I'm sayiag?

It could have herniated your back you were

coughing so much and coughing so hard during that

period of time; isn’t that right?

mean

have

Herniate?
Yes.
what’s -- what -- explain what you’re saying. I
You could have herniated your back. You could
blown out a disk you were coughing so hard.
-- I mean, not -- not -- no. Okay. If that's --
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if that’s what you say.

numbness into your right leg at the hospital, not your

okay.

Yeah.

This says you told the doctor you were having

Teft 1eg but your right leg; is that correct?

The doctor --

It’s what it says. You told him that?

-- the doctor?

The doctor says

you told him, patient states he

has numbness in his right leg --

back.

know,

oh, yeah.

-- and also states when he coughs it hurts his

And that’s the

Yes, sir.

Yeah. They might have gotten that wrong, you

because --

Oor maybe that’s

-- the 27th?

what you told them.

-- they got that wrong, probably, yeah.

well, then why did you submit this document into

evidence if it was wrong?

it?

Mr. Samuels: Objection, Your --

Do you know why

your Tlawyer would have submitted
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Mr. Samuels: -- objéction, Your Honor,
argumentative.

Commissibner wilkerson: Yes. He
doesn’t know why.

Mr. Beard: Okay.

Did you know your lawyer submitted a document into
evidence that says -- that you submitted into evidence,
that says that you had numbness in your right leg on
June the 27th, 2017; did you know that?

NO.

okay.

Because it should have -- can I -- oh.

Mr. Samuels: Your Honor, I think he is
allowed to answer the question.
Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.
| Witness: Yes. Can I say?

Because that’'s -- I mean, that’s the -- they --
they got the -- that’s the -- that’s the same.emergency
room doctor that I went to the 24th. So, everything
that was -- all the docs -- all the documents that --
Tike I said, that might have been a -- that’'s a type
error right there --

okay.

-- you know.

It says on the 27th you had nb problem with your
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gait; in other words, you weren’t limping. You were
walking normally according to -- the patient reports
ambulates with a normal gait; that’s on page 35 of your
medical records. So, you weren’t 1imping on that -- at
that time, correct?

The 27th?

Yes. |

Not limping but I was kind of --

\You were walking normally?

-- no, I wasn’t walking normally.

okay. So -- so, when your doctor puts big old
bold writing on that page, patient ambulates, meaning
walks, with a normal gait, meaning you’re not limping,
you --

uh-huh.

-- you dispute that?

No, I wouldn’t disphte that. I -- I wasn’t -- I
wouldn’t say I would be Timping.

You were walking normal --

oh.

-- according to the doctor.

He said -- what he said was --

You were walking normal.

-- what he said -- say that again; repeat what he
said.
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Patient ambulates with a normal gait; that means.
you walk normal.

oh, well, that’s -- that’s -- that’s what he said.

Okay. when you went to the hospital on the 27th,
it says you told them -- or it says, patient states he
was seen here three (3) days ago, that would have been
on the 24th, you didn’t.te11 the hospital that you had
been to Dr. Izard the day before, did you; you didn’t
relay that information tb them, did you?

I don’t remember --

okay. _

-- but I -- I know they -- they referred me to
Lexington Brain and -- and I'd been -- I got a shot.

‘That wasn’t what I asked you.

oh, okay.

I said, you didn’t tell the hospital that you had
been to Dr. Izard the day before, correct; you didn’t
tell them that?

I -- I think I did mention it to them because --

You don’t know why it’s not in your medical
records?

-- I don’t know why but I think I did mention
that, hey, I -- because I’ve been -- T told them what
all the dogtors I'd been to as far as the emergency
room, the first time I came there --
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okay.

-- and also my --

urgent care?

-- no. Dr. Izard, what he --

okay. |

-- what he told me but -- but I think I did
mention that to him; I can’t recall. I can’t remember
but I think I did mention because 1 always ——'you - I
think I usually mentioned that I -- I go there and tell
them everything.

You can’t explain Why they only mention that you
had been to the hospital three (3) days before --

well, T --

-- but they didn’t mention the day before you ha&
been to Dr. Izard?

-- I can’t explain it. The same reason why I
can't explain that -- that they said the right Tleg
fluid. |

It’s kind of strange how all the things that are
hurtful to your case are not in any of these records
every time I ask you something; have you noticed that?

Mr. Samuels: Objection, Your Honor,
argumentative}

commissioner Wilkerson: It doesn’t
matter; if I’ve noticed it that’s what
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counts.
Mr. Beard: oOkay.
The hospital put you on restrictions for three (3)
days from June the 27th; is that'correct?
Yeah.
Okay. A1l right. So, three (3) days Tater, on
June the 30th, did you go back to work when the
restrictions ended?
No.
Okay. 1Instead you started going somewhere else.
You went to Doctor’s cére on your own, correct?
Right.
Okay.
I went to Doctor’s Care, yeah.
So, you picked a whole another doctor to go
through and then I Took --
Mr. Beard: -- and those records,
Commissioner, start at page 43 of Claimant’s
APA’s,
At page 44, on June 30th, 2017 --
| Mr. Beard: -~ can I approach,
Commissioner?
Commissioner Wilkerson: Please. ,
Page 44 there’s a big box at the top that says,
workers’ Compensation; do you see that box?
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Uh-huh.
That'’s yes?
Yes.

Is this a workers’ Compensation Claim? Did you

check yes on that box?

I didn’t check nothing on it.
Correct. You didn’t check yes, though, did you?
I didn’t check nothing.

You didn’t tell that doctor it was a Workers’ Comp

claim, did you?

what, you’re talking about Doctor’s care?
Yes, sir.
It wasn’t a workman’s comp claim.

Okay. And that is your signature on June 30th,

correct?

your
with
been

what

four

Yeah. |

Okay. It says, interestingly, you told them on
report at page 45, it says, fifty (50) year old
work—re]ated,‘1eft sided, low back pain, he has
seen four (4) times since June 1lth, 2017: is that
it says?

Yeah.

A1l right. And then it’s got right under it, the

(4) times: June 11th, that would have been the

hospital, correct?
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Uh-huh.
That’s yes?
Yes, I’m sorry.

June 16th, I assume you’ve got the date wrong and

it was June 13th, it would have been to your personal

doctor, correct --

Correct.

-- or did you go somewhere on June 16th that we

don’t know about?

24th

days

I -- I don’t -- I don’t know what he did.

okay.

I don’t know.

June 24th would have been the hospital on June
the first day, right? |
Uh-huh.

That’s yes?

Yes. _

June 27th would have been the hospital three (3)

before this when they told you to go back to work

three (3) days later, right?

tell

Right.
where’s doctor --
Yes, sir.
-- whére’s -- where’s Dr. Izard’s? You didn’t
them about Dr. Izard either, did you?
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(shook head in a side-to-side motion).

That's amazing. Dr. Izard is not there either, is
he?

I -- like I said, I did -- I think I did tell
Doctor’s Care.

So -- so, they go and make a point of writing down
every single time you said you went to the doctor and
the only one that’s missing, the only one, is br.
Izard?

No. Wwhat they can do is pull up what he did -- he
did before I set up -- let me -- let me --

Go ahead. I'm Tistening.

-~ okay.

I'm -- I'm not --

. bon’t interrupt me now.

-- go ahead.

what he did -- what he told me what he did before
I even saw him --

I didn’t ask you what he told you.

-- oh.

You can’t tell me that.

okay. Okay. well -- well, I can’t say nothing.

Is Dr. Izard’s --

No, it’s not on that.

-- office visit on the report?
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No.

Okay. And, again, this was a doctor you went to,
again, on your own, without Michelin’s authority or not
under wWorkers’ Comp, correct?

Correct.

Okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: And didn’t I
hear you testify to earlier that the reason
you went to Doctor’s Care -- it wasn’t work
related, right? ‘

Witness: Say what?

Mr. Samuels: 1If I may, Your Honor, I
think he said it wasn’t --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I thought he

said --

Mr. Samuels: -- wasn’t work --

Commissioner wWilkerson: -- it was not
under --

“Mr. Samuels: -- wasn’t under Workers’
comp.

Witness: Yeah.
Commissioner wilkerson: -- I'm sorry?
Witness: No, it wasn’t -- it wasn’t
under wWorkman’s Comp.
Commissioner Wi1kerson: Is why he went
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to Doctor’s Care?

Witness: No. I went to Doctor’s Care
to -- to see about my back. I just went to
Doctor’s Care but it wasn’t on no Workman’s
Comp,

Commissioner wWilkerson: It wasn’t on
workers’ Comp, is what he said.

Witness: No. I didn’t -- I didn’t even

have workman’s Comp; I didn’t have nothing.

Commissioner wilkerson: That's what he
said, it wasn’t on workers’ Comp?

Witness: Right.

commissioner wilkerson: Okay. That’s

what -- I mean, I thought that’s what he

. said.

Mr. Samuels: well, that goes to the --
the -- the payment; it’s not --

Commissioner wWilkerson: o©h, I --

Mr. Samuels: -- the reason for going
there. The record --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- don’'t have a
clue what it goes to.

Mr. Samuels: -- the record speaks for
itself as to --

Mr. Beard: You have no idea --
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Mr. Samuels: ~- if he’s there for an
injury.

Mr. Beard: -- that that’'s what it goes
to.

Commissioner wWilkerson: I -- I don’'t
have --

Mr. Beard: You can’t testify, Stephen.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- because he
doesn’t check the workers’ comp box; that’s
why I'm confused. If -- if he --

Witness: Yeah. I didn’t check the
workers’ Comp because I never had workman'’s
Comp. I never -- I didn’t -- I was never had
it.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- it doesn’t
ask you have you ever had it; that's where my
concern is with the whole process.

Mr. Samuels: But, Your Honor, he hasn't
checked anything.

Witness: Yeah.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I agree.

witness: Yeah.

Commissioner wWilkerson: 1It’s just his
name and signed the form; I agree.

wWitness: Yeah.
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Commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t think
there’s any dispute, yeah.
Mr. Samuels: Yeah.

Page 45 of the report says, he -- that the doctor
told you and your wife that you needed to see an
orthopedic. Now, I thought you were separated from
your wife?

Yeah.

was your wife with you at this visit?

No.

well, who is your wife?

The -- Larissa.

who?

Larissa.

So, it wasn’t your wife?

No., It was --

It was somebody else?

-~ yes.

Girlfriend?

Friend. A

Okay. Al1l right. It said, your wife -- I guess
that would be the friend -- had already called Midlands
B1ack and Blue Clinic but they do not see backs there;
is that correct?

The Black and Blue Clinic?
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I'm just telling you what the report says.
Apparently your wife, Larissa, told them that she had
already called Midlands Black and Blue Clinic but they
do not see backs there. I’'m just reading the --

oh.

-- report --

Yeah.

-- your lawyer put into evidence.

The Midlands Ortho -- we -- we called them from
there and they didn’t see people that -~ we just had --
we had to wait until -- because we couldn’t get in
Lexington Brain -- we had to try to get 1in Lexington
Brain and Spine. |
| It says he gave you a 1list of orthopedic doctors
to go to; did -- you didn’t go fo any of those
orthopedic doctors either, did you --

Couldn’t get --

-~ on the 1ist that he gave you?

-- couldn’t get into them.

Okay. Al1l right. And that’s the only time you
went to Doctor’s Care, correct, June the 30th? You
didn’t go again to Doctor’s Care, did you?

Not after June 30th, no.

Okay. And it says, their plan was you were.going
to be out of work on Friday, Saturday and sunday; so,
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it looks like that would have been three (3) days,

correct?

correct.

Did you go to -- go back to work three (3) days

later?

No. That was -- that was the -- no. And the 4th

of July came up -- the --

July

that,

well, this says return --

-- the -- the vacation.

-- this says return to work on 3July 3rd, the --
Yeah. It was --

-- this is page 49. Did you go back to work on
3rd?

-- no.

And you didn’t go back to work ever again affer

all the way up till ever; you’ve never gone back

to work, right?

Right. Because -- right.

okay. And you didn’t see any doctors at all

between June the 30th and July the 24th when you went

to doctor -- or to Lexington Brain and Spine, correct;

you didn’t see any doctors between there?

June 30th till what?
July 24th.
June 30th till July --
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Yes.
-~ 24th?
Yes.

I -- I can’t remember when I seen Dr. Boyd. we

had a --

well, you --

-- we had a -~

-- you saw Dr. Boyd’'s --

-- not Dr.'Boyd but doctor -- the first --
-- you saw Mr. valdes --

-- the -- the -- the -- the first --

-- the PA on July the 24th --

-- okay.

-- that the first time --

Right.

-- according to the records you submitted. My

‘question is, am I correct --

Right.

-- you did not go to or see a doctor between June

the 30th and July the 24th, ’177?

sore.

Right.
oOkay. what is valtrex?

That’s Tike if you have a bump on your Tip, a cold

Were you seeing Doctor’s Care for that too?
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Not -- not really.

well, why --

I mean, it --

-- did your Tlawyer submit two (2) pieces of paper
at pages 50 and 51 saying you were calling in the
doctor’s office for valtrex --

-- yeah. I don’t know.

-- on both dates and they were apparently calling
in prescriptions for you for those; why --

Yeah.

-- why is that in the record?

I don’t know. well, as far as the doctors were --
I mean, it was 1ike a -- what you could take for cold
sores. I don’t take that ever -- every day or nothing
like that. | |

Then you got to Mr. valdes on Jd]y the 24th of
17, correct?

Correct.

A1l right. And according to his history it says,
you told him you were injured while at work at the
Michelin plant on June 24th, stated he was lifting some
heavy' materials when he felt a sharp pain in his lower
back; is that what you told him?

Yes.

Okay. He had visits to primary care and Urgent
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Care and eventually ended up in our emergency

department; is that what you told him?

Yeah.

Okay. You didn’t tell them about Dr. Izard, did
you?

I think T did tell them about -- I told them about
-- ever when I went there I told them that.

Okay.

I think I did. I told them every doctor I went
to.

A1l right. And it looks 1like he put you on -- the
only prescription he gave you was Flexeril; is that
correct?

Correct.

Low back pain, it says Flexeril underneath it?

Uh-huh.

Yes?

Yeah. Yes, sir.

And you had already been put on F1exeri1 as far
back as June the 11th, correct; two (2) weeks before --

Yes.

-- more than two (2) weeks --

Yes, sir.

~- before June 24th --

Yes, sir.
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-~ or actually two (2) weeks before June 24th?

Yes, sir.

‘Okay. And had been on Flexeril all that time,
correct?

Yes, sir.

Then you saw Dr. Boyd, himself, for the first time
on August the 7th, torrect?

Correct. Yes, sir.

And for the first time in any medical report you
indicate that you injured yourself puliing rubber at
the Michelin plant as opposed to doing heavy 1ifting

and those other things; is that correct? 1Is that the

. first time you told anybody specifically about puliing

on rubber?

I -- I told everybody that but -- well, everybody,
they just -- yeah, I told everybody -- anybody thatAI
seen what had happened.

would you agree that’s the first medical report
that said you were pulling rubber? ‘
Yeah, that’s the first medical report --

would you agree all the other ones said you were

doing heavy 1ifting?

-- yeah, I'11 agree to -- if they said it, yeah; I

agree with it if that’s what they’re saying.
And somehow you remembered -- even though you
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kind of things -- you told pr. Boyd that you’d had
previous back problems maybe -- it says maybe

twenty-five (25) years ago he had an episode that

resolved without any treatment; did you tell Dr. Boyd

that?

Twenty-five (25) years? I -- I don’t --

That’s what you said --

-- yeah.

-- that’s what he said you told him.

Okay. If it’s --
Mr. Beard: I'm looking at page 58,

Commissioner, of the Claimant’s APA’s --

Witness: -- okay.
Mr. Beard: -- on August the 7th.
commissioner wWilkerson: oOkay.

It says, he states that he Eea11y --

Yeah.

-- hasn’t had previous back probliems except maybe

twenty-five (25) years ago he had an episode that
resolved without any treatment --

Yeah.

-- area 6f this pain --

Yeah.
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-- is made worse by bending over or picking
anything up.

I guess that’s -- that’s -- tell him that -- I did
tell him.

So -- so, you remembered when you saw Dr. Boyd you
had a prior back problem but you didn’t remember
anybody -- any other time when you had the opportunity
to answer that question; is that correct? |

Thaf’s correct. |

Okay. And apparently you were going through
physical therapy -- I think your Tlawyer asked you all
this -- and physical therapy was actually helping you
and making you better; isn’t that right?

correct.

And I think you said something about -- I think
you said you -- you -- you never finished physical
therapy --

Right.

-- 1is that what you told him?

Right.

Ookay. The whole time you were going to Dr. Boyd
your pain level, according to him, was always around
three (3) out of ten (10); does that sound right?

Yeah. Whatever he put -- yeah.

So --
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whatever he put. \

-- the whole time you’re seeing Dr. Boyd you’re
three (3) out of ten (10); you would agree that’s a
whole heck of a lot better than ten (10) out of ten
(10), isn’t it?

Uh-huh.

That’s yes?

Yes. Yes, sir.

And yet, when you were ten (10) out of ten (10)
you were still working at Michelin and when you’re
three (3) out of ten (10) you’re not working anywhere;
isn’t that correct? |

Correct. |

So -- so, you could work in ten (10) out of ten
(10) pain but you can’t work +in three (3) out of ten
(10> pain; that’s your -- that’s what you’re telling
us?

No, I'm not telling you that.

Okay. This also says that you have pain that
radiates down from -- to your right leg on August --
oh, excuse me -- September 14th, page 63. You don’t
have radiating pain into your right Teg, do you?

No.

Okay.

That was from who?
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Dr. Boyd. Then you went to -- or you started
going to the Physical Therapist; Dr. Boyd sent you over
there, correct?

" correct.

All right. |

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, permission to
approach? _

Commissioner wilkerson: Please.

Mr. Beard: Claimant’'s page 73, I
believe, start -- or at least that’s part of
the physical therapy; it actually looks like
it starts on page 72. |

Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay.

You went to Lexington Physical Therapy; is that
where you were going?

Yeah,

Okay. 1Is that all your handwriting on page 737

Uh-huh. veah. ‘

Okay. There’s a question that says, if injury is
due to an accident, when was the date of accident; did
you answer that question?

Yeah. I didn’t -- I didn’t even see that, yeah.
No, I didn’t answer that question.

Okay. You answered every other question on there
but you just didn’t answer that question?

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

55403) 358-0515
www.PaﬁmettoCourtReporting.;om




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

o r»r O P

O>§D>P

187

Yeah. They knew what the date was -- they -- they
knew what the date was when I had the accident, it was
the 24th.

You filled the form out?

Yes.

Did you write on there the date of the accident?

No.

- Okay. And you started going to physical therapy;
it looks 1ike -- the first time you went it looks Tike
was July 27th at page 76. It says -- they made sure to
put in there that you had a lawyer at that time
representing you; so, you had a lawyer on July 27th,
correct? It wasn’'t Mr, Samuels; you had another Tawyer
before him, correct? |

Correct.

Okay. And you were going -- there’s the report
update on August 25th. We’ve got all kind of dates
here that always say you’re getting better; you were
gettiﬁg better contiﬁuous1y, right?

Yes.

That’s a yes?

Yes,

okay. 9/7/17, it says --

Mr. Beard: -- page 79, Commissioner,
the very last entry.
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Patient no-showed, tried calling patient but
number is disconnected. So, you just quit going; is
that correct? |

No. I mean, I -- I -- that -—'that’s the time
when my phone was off --

okay.

-- and I -- I told the instructor, the lady, that
I -~ I wouldn’t be coming back because I -- I could
have -- I couldn’t afford it.

Okay. well, this says that you actually got
discharged on october 13th of 2017. It says condition
upon discharge -- this 1is page 80 of your medical
recbrds -- you were significantly improved at the time
you were discharged. It says, potential for further
improvement is excellent. You were discharged to a
home exercise program; that means you weren’t going to
be coming to physical therapy, they gave you exercises
to do at home --

| NO.

-- and you were going to self-manage with your
home exercise program. And just so you understand
before you say no, you submitted this document into
evidence; you understand that?

Did I?

Your lawyer did.
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oh, okay.

You understand and --

Right.

-- and that means you did.

Okay. well, they got that -- I didn’t never -- I
didn’t -- a11 I -- I told the lady up front that I
couldn’t come back.

Okay.

So, they did them -- the other things as far as
discharging me or what may have -- because I’ve got a
bi11 now for them.

You agree --

So, I couldn’t --

-- you agree this record says you were discharged
to a home exercise program --

-- no, I'don’t -

-- 1is that what it says?

-- I don’t agree on that.

Is‘that what the document says?

That’s what the document says.

That’s all I'm asking.

okay. Yeah --

Okay.

-- that’s what the document says.

Mr. Beard: Stephen, just for the
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record, earlier when you, I think were
questioning the application, you actually
have that in your evidence at pages 85, 86 of
the APA’s; the application that I read from,
Commissioner,

Commissioner wilkerson: The one -- the
employment application?

Mr. Beard: Correct, for Michelin. Mr.
Samuels --

Ccommissioner Wilkerson: Hold on.

Mr. Samuels: Right.

Mr. Beard: -- actually submitted that
at page 85 and 86 of the APA’s and there is
-- it’s the identical application that I
showed him. No.indication of Richtex --

commissioner wilkerson: Oh, I see it,
yes. |

Mr. Beard: ~-- from '97 --

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay.

Mr. Beard: -- those kinds of things.

Commissioner wilkerson: 1I've got you.

Mr. Samuels: Yes. Thanks -- thanks for
pointing that out because that was why I
couldn’t find it.

Mr. Beard: oOkay. Yes.
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Your attorney, again, submitted another record at
page 88 that is a Michelin chart that indicates who you
talked to, in which I talked about; he showed you that

a little earlier, remember, it talked about Nurse

Sirois?
No, sir.
Or Sirois how he -- 1 think he pronounced it Nurse

Sirois; remember when we talked about that, the -- the
company Nurse and he showed you the form and said did
you call her and what did you all talk about; do you
remember all that?

Today?

Today, yes, sir.

Okay.

when -- when wmr. Samue1s asked you questions about
it; you don’t remember that?
| About Nurses calling --

Yes. About the Nurse --

~- okay.

-- about Mr. Lowman, about all those --

veah. Yeah.

-- kinds of things?

Uh-huh. Yeah.

Okay.

Yeah. Uh-huh.
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A1l right. And he showed you some forms and he
asked you if you talked to her on the phone. And on
June the 24th this is what she said, it says, employee
stated on June 24th, around 5:30 A.M., that he was
working on PAP when his back started to ache; is that
what you told her?

Uh-huh.

That’s yes?

Yeah.

Okay. It says, he said he continued to work and

- the back pain got worse; is that what you told her?

Yes, sir.

How -~ how much longer did you continue to work if
you got off at six o’clock and you were at the hosbita1
by 6:00 something in the morning?

well, I wasn’t at the hospital at 6:00 something.

“How quick did you go to the hospital?

At first I went to the Nurse and then I went to
the family health center.

They were closed.

I didn’t -- I didn’t get to the hospital until --
I can’t remember what it is right now, 9:00 or 8:00 or
9:00 or something 1ike that.

How did you get there?

Drove.
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Yourself or did somebody take you?

I drove.

Okay. A1l right. so -- all right, so you got to
the hospital several hours later, correct?

Uh-huh. Yeah.

okay.

Yes, sir.

But you admit that you quit working at 6:00 A.M.
because you said that’s when your shift ended, correct?

Yeah.

okay.

I'm thinking 6:00 A.M. or 7:00 I don’t --

Okay.

-- I can’t remember. Go ahead.

You told her you went to the Lexington Medical
Center ER, you said you -- this is what it says,
employee stated he left work and wént to the Michelin
family health but they were closed, correct?

Correct.

A1l right. He then went to Lexington Medical
Center ER, correct?

Correct.

Employee did not report injury to anyone until
being released from Lexington Medical Center ER; that’s
what the Nurse said that your lawyer submitted into
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evidence.

oh.

SO0 -- so, you didn’t report it until you were
released by the Lexington Medical Center Hospital,
correct?

well --

And that’s when you called Mr. Lowman?

-- no, sir.

Okay. So -- okay. You were diagnosed with a

Tumbar strain and given prescriptions for Percocet and

Flexeril; 1is that correct?

Correct.

Okay. On that same report she indicates that you
denied anything specific starting the pain at work and
you denied anything personal outside of work during
your telephone conversation with her as causing your
Tow back probTéms; is that true?

It said I denied? |

You denied anything specific that started the pain
at work and you denied anything outside of work or
personaT‘that caused your back pain; is that what you
told her?

No. I told her -- I told her what had happened --

So -- so, you didn't --

-- so, I told her --
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-- go ahead.

-- let me finish.

i’m sorry.

I told her that -- you know, she said, what
happened and I told her that I was stretching rubber --

Okay.

-- you know --

So, when she writes --

~- I told her several times when I did that.

-- so, you deny what she wrote in the report, that
you didn’t tell her that?

I -- I mean, I don’t know what she wrote but I

know --

I just told you what she wrote.

-- but I know what I told her.

I just read it to you.

Yeah. I‘dOn’t know. I -- no, I -- I deny what --

okay . |

-- what' she said, yeah.

That’s fine.

But I -- I -- I told her what had happened.

A1l right. And she told you she was scheduling
you an appointment with Dr. Izard on -- on June the

26th or on Monday, correct?

Correct.
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All right.

Yes, sir.

A1l right. she went with you to tbe appointment
with Dr. Izard; is that correct, on June 26th?

She met me there.

okay. well, that’s what I mean; she was there.

Okay. |

She was at the appointment, correct?

Correct.

okay.

Yeah.

And then she reports on June the 28th -- it says,
she received a call from you on June 28th at 9:11 A.M.
Do you remember-ca11ing her two (2) days after you saw
Dr. Izard?

I -~ I think so. I think I remember --

It says you told her --

-- talking with her.

-- you went to Lexington Medical Center the day
before and got an injection in your lower back --

Yeah.

-- and you had been written out of work for three

- (3) days?

Yes.
He told me that he could not come to see Dr. Izard
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~today because he did not have a ride; that’s what you

told her, right?

I don’t know about that part.

You -- did you tell her that or not?

I don’t -- I can’'t remember what I told her.

Okay. well, why -- why did you tell her you
couldn’t come to Dr. Izard?

You’rg saying --

You can’t remember what you told her?

-- no, I told -- what I --

well, you just told me you can’t remember what you
told her.

-- okay. well, let me -- let me say this. Now,
the Tast you said on the -- I'm trying to remember
verbatim what you be asking. So, I’m trying to --

well, she, verbatim, said that you told her you
could not come to doctor -- to see Dr. Izard today
because you did not have a ride; that’s what you told
her? ‘

-- yeah. I told her more things as well, too.
Because I was --

But did you tell her that?

-- yeah.

That's all I asked you.

Yeah,
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okay.

I think so, yeah.

It says, she asked you if you were treating this
personally and you said, no, that it was work-related;
is that correct?

She -- no, she didn’t ask me that.

okay . |

Personally and work-related, she didn’t --

A1l right.

~-- she didn’t really ask‘%e about that.

It says, she explained to you the workers’ Comp
process and you told her you had never been notified --

‘Correct.

-- 1s that correct?

Correct;

Okay. Even though you’ve already admitted you
went through the PowerPoint that told you about the
workers’ Comp process and all the safety rules that
you’re supposed to go through; you’ve already admitted
that, correct?

Mr. Samuels: Your Honor, I -~ I have to
object; that’s facts not in evidence in the

commissioner Wilkerson: That isn’t
going to win the case.
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Mr. Samuels: -- all right. 1’11 --
fine.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I promise you.
We’re so -- we’re at three (3) plus hours 1in
of witness one (1) with seven (7) more
waiting. Wwe’re not going to finish today;
you all know that. You all can just come
back Monday; 1’m okay with that too.

It says --
| Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t think
we’re going to finish are we, today?

Mr. Beard: -- we probably will. I
think we will. I hope we will.

Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t know.

Mr. Beard: I would hope so.

Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t believe
it.

Mr. Beard: I'm -- I'm a lot quicker
with my witnesses but we’'ll see. I haven’t
gotten to mine yet. .

Commissioner wilkerson: And summer is
coming.

She told you, you needed to talk to your
supervisor 1mmed1ate1y, correct?
Correct. |
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And --

I think -

-- and --

-~ yeah, she --

-- and, 1in fact --

-- no.

-- you really wouldn’t even let her talk to you
and you hung up on her; isn’t that right?

I hung up on her?

Yes, sir.

No.

You deny that?

Yeah, I deny it.

okay.

I didn’t hang up on her.

You did not show up for the appointment wifh Dr.
Izard at 2:30 that afternoon, did you?

No, sir.

Okay. Now, you had been contacted, you said by
somebody you thought named mark, that would be Mark
Gross. You were contacted by the Safety person 1in \
charge at Michelin in uUS 7, Mark Gross, and he told you
he would send a taxi to take you to Dr. Izard, he would
send somebody else to take you to Dr. Izard, he would
get you to Dr. Izard; isn’t that correct?
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comfortable going out.

-~ you don’t understand what I’ve been through.

Correct.

And you refused that; disn’t that correct?

I will -- can I answer it fully?
Did you --

oh.

-~ refuse it --

Yeah. Uh-huh,
-~ yes or no, and then you can answer it.

Yes, I refused it.

Okay.
Okay.
Go ahead --
Commissioner Wilkerson: Now, you can
answer it.

201

~- if you’ve got something else you need to say.

commissioner wilkerson: Go ahead.

Yeah. T was under Oxycodone and I didn’t feel

I didn’t feel comfortable going out by myself to --

I couldn’t barely walk and I didn’t feel comfortable

mean, I didn’t feel comfortable with that.

I was very highly medicated and

with a -- yeah, I couldn’t -- I couldn’t barely -- you

It --

with that. And I was told, hey, Took, you know, I -- I

You didn’t feel comfortable going to a doctor for
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medical problems?

No. Not the doctor who told me I would come to
work.

Okay. That’s -- that’s the truth right there --

'Yeah.

-- isn’t it?

Yeah.

The reason you didn’t go is because it was Dr.
Izard and you just didn’t want to go to Dr. Izard --

| Yeah.

-- even though the company authorized and was
paying for you to do that; isn't that true?

To go t¢ Dr. Izard?

Yes.

Dr. Izard -- well, for what my instruction was,
Dr. Izard wanted me to come to work. He wanted me to
come to work. So, I got mis-confliction information
from when the doctors -- the Nurse told me on -- Troy
told me come back to work and then --

Mr. Brailey, that’s a whole different story than

-- and -- and --
-- than what you just answered to.
- Qkay. But --
You just said --
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-- let me --

-- you didn’t go --

-- let me show you how it ties in --

-- because you were on Oxycodone --

-~ can I finish all of that?

-- go ahead.

Okay. But when Dr. Izard told me to go back to
work, that’s the last I heard of Dr. Izard. The other
folks told me --

I didn’t ask you what other folks told you.

-~ oh, okay.

Mr. Samuels: Your Honor --

Mr. Beard: 1In fact, I object to

anYthing -—
Mr. Samuels: -- Your Honor --
Mr. Beard: -- other folks told him.

Commissioner Wilkerson: He asked him
why he didn’t come see Dr. Izard. His
justification is, he didn’t see Dr. Izard
because he thought he was going back to work,
right?

Witness: Huh-uh.

Mr. Samuels: -- he’s not --

Witness: Yeah. Uh-huh.

Mr. Samuels: -- he needs to be able to
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answer the question.

Mr. Beard: Not by telling me what other
people who aren’t here --

Commissioner Wilkerson: we can’t hear
what other people said --

Mr. Beard: -- to testify to.

Witness: Yeah.

commissioner Wilkerson: -- it’s when --

it’s a -~ we're --

Witness: Right.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- we're --
concentrating on the phone call from Mark,
who was going to send a taxi, who told him
they would send a taxi to get him there to
see Dr. Izard. He said he didn’t want to go
because he was on Oxycodone, boom, boom,
whatever, okay?

Witness: Uh-huh.

Commissioner wWilkerson: And then he
said that Dr. Izard had already indicated
that he was putting him back to work -- and
correct me if I'm wrong -- and you believe if
you went back to the plant that Dr. Izard was
going to put you back to work; is that
correct?
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Witness: Yeah. That’'s sort of what --

Commissioner wWilkerson: That's what he
said.

Witness: -- that’s -- I mean, that’s --
that’s sort of --

commissioner wilkerson: Not -- not that
__I..._

wWitness: -- I'm not -- I'm not -- I'm
not -- I'm -- I'm saying that --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- I --

Witness: -- Dr. Izard -- when -- when I
got too many conflicted things when they --
everybody was -- I mean --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- this whole
thing is conflicted.

Witness: -- yeah.

Commissioner wWilkerson: Let me tell
you, this is a mess.

witness: Yeah. You know, yeah -~ yeah,
it is a mess. It is a mess and they made --
but anyway, I didn’t -- I didn’t want to be
no -- I wasn’t even thinking about no
workman’s Comp. The Nurse indicated to me
about workman’s comp.

Commissioner wWilkerson: we'’re not --
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wait a minute. Wwait --

witness: well, anyway --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- we’'re not
here --

witness: -- okay.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- to give a
speech.

witness: Okay.

Commissioner wilkerson: Your job, again

witness: Okay.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- is to answer
the questions --

wWitness: Okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- not give a
speech about --

‘Witness: Okay.

commissioner wilkerson: -- what you
believe to be right -- |

witness: A1l right.

commissioner wilkerson: -- what you
don’t believe to be right.

Witness: Okay. All right. I’ve got
you. |

Mr. Samuels: But he is entitled, Your
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Honor --
witness: Oh.

Mr. Samuels: -- to explain his reasons

Commissioner wilkerson: oOn that --

Mr. Samuels: -- thoroughly.
Commissioner wilkerson: -- I agree, on
that issue, not -- not on issues that

happened in 1492, not -- not on issues that
happened in 2014; only on that specific issue
has he got the right to explain.

Mr. Beard: Can I --

Mr. samuels: But he did and Mr. Beard
interrupted him --

Mr. Beard: -- because he --

Mr. Samuels: -- and would not let him
answer the question.

Mr. Beard: -- because he tried to do it
through hearsay and he can’t do that.

iCOmmissioner wilkerson: That’s right.
He can’t say somebody -~

Mr. Beard: It doesn’t matter. He can’t

Commissioner wWilkerson: -- I don’t who

somebody is.
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Mr. Beard: -- that door was not opened,
no hearsay -- no question that would ask for
-- that would open hearsay was -- was ever

asked in this case --

Mr. Samuels: And -- and, Your Honor,
that's the --

Mr. Beard: -- other than by mr.
Samuels.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Right.

Mr. Ssamuels: -~-- that's the distinction
with hearsay. He is not offering it to -- to
prove -- | |

Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t know
what he’s offering it for.

Mr. Samuels: -- to prove --

Commissioner wilkerson: That’s your

opinion.,
Mr. Samuels: -- to prove --
Commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t -- your

opinion is he is not offering for that; I
don’t know what he’s offering it for.

Mr. Samuels: -- he’s not offering it to
prove whether Dr. Izard was right or whether
the othef doctors were right.

Commissioner wilkerson: Okay.
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Mr. Samuels: He’s offering it to
explain what he is about to explain.

Mr. Beard: which would be an excuse for
you to say 1it’s reasonable, which is a Tegal
issue in the case --

Commissioner wilkerson: 1It’s not --

Mr. Beard: -- and that’s improper.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- yes. He
just needs to answer the question.

Mr. Beard: Nice try but improper.

Commissioner wWilkerson: Yes.

No, I didn’t go see Dr. Izard.
All right.

Commissioner wilkerson: 1I'm fine with

that. -
And ydu were offered a ride to do so, correét?
Right.
And you turned it down?
Right.

And you told Mark Gross you weren’t goihg,

correct? You told him don’t send --

Right.
-- don’t send anybody; I'm not going?
No. Right.
okay.
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Right.

A1l right. Now, 1997, working at Richtex, didnft
tell us about it but you did work at Richtex, correct?

Correct.

You had a workers’ Comp claim with Richtex,
correct?

correct.

You got injured on the job 11Ft1ng bricks,
Titerally, right afteh you started working there,
correct?

correct.

Okay. Sound pretty similar? It sounds exactly
like what we’re doing here, doesn’t it? You started
working for Michelin and righf after you started
working, I mean, within weeks, the exact thing that
happened to you then is what's going on now; isn’t that
correct?

Can I answer?

True or false?

oh, no.

Yes or no?

No, it’s not correct.

Okay. It’s not correct.

Mr. Beard: A1l right. Permission to
approach?
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Commissioner Wilkerson: Sure.

Mr. Beard: I'm looking at pages 1 and 2
of Defendant’s APA’s.

commissioner wilkerson: Defendants.

wWell, it wouldn’t be 1 or 2, would it or is

it?
Mr. Beard: Yes, sir. My -- I --
commissioner Wilkerson: You all marked
them same?

Mr. Beard: -- I think I submitted them
before I got Stephen’s.
Commissioner Wilkerson: o©h, I’'m sorry.
Mr. Beard: I may have -~ or at least I
~had not seen them yef.
COmmissioner wi}kerson: I;m sorry.
okay. 1 and 2, I’ve got you. Okay.
A1l right. December 4th, 1997, so -- so, you saw
a Dr. Thomas Norris at Springwood Lake Family Practice;
is that correct?
Correct.
You remember seeing him?
I think --
You remember the doctor?
-- I don’t remember.
Okay. He says, you had been working for Richtex
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for three (3) weeks and of note he had back pain for
three (3) weeks, meaning, from the first day you
started you had back pain; is that correct?

That -- they -- they writing it different than
what it’s -- we -- we talked about.

well, that’'s exactly what --

Yeah.

-- what you told the Lexington Medical Center
folks and what you told --

well --

- Dr. Marom about working at Michelin.

-- no.

As soon as you started doing physical wprk --

Uh-huh.

-- immediately you had back pain; that’s what you
to1d.them.

Huh-uh. No, I -- it ain’t 1like that, so.

It’s exactly like that in the record you
submitted; isn’t that correct? I showed them to you;
we went through them.

well, yeah, you showed them to me but it’s --
things can be kind of -~ things can be kind of iffy on
that but I just don’t agree on how it is but if that’s
what'it says but it’s a lot of variables in there that
needs to be connected and --
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Well, the only variables that seem to be getting
connected, Mr. Brailey, are when you need a --
-- yeah, I --
~- when you need to create an explanation because
something doesn’t sound right, that’s the only time
we’ve had any variables; isn’t that correct?
Mr. Samuels: Objection, argumentative.
Commissioner wilkerson: Yes, that’s
argumentative.
Mr. Beard: Okay.
well, the records speak for themselves. The
doctors aren’t here to say anything.
Uh-huh.
That’s what we’ve got. Your lawyer submitted --
Uh-huh.
-- a bunch of records.
okay.
I have only submitted two (2) medical records,
just two (2) --
okay.
-~ correct? And -- and got Tucky that I found
them.
Uh-huh.
This has been worsening over the past couple of
days since a possible injury while Tifting some bricks
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on Tuesday of this week.

Okay.

You lifted some bricks and hurt your back,
correct?

Right.

You filed a workers’ comp claim; they accepted
your Workers' Comp claim, I think. They sent you to
the doctor?

well, yeah, they -- they offered that to me.

Okay. You also told them that you were having
some right hand and arm tingling and, in fact, you were
diagnosed with carpel tunnel syndrome at some point in
your lifetime; you treated with Dr. Ugino out at
Midlands Orthopaedics, didn’t you?

I didn’t have it.

Did you treat with Dr. Ugino at Midlands
Orthopaedics for carpel tunnel syndrome?

Not treated, he looked at me.

Doctor -- Dr. Ugino?

I --Idon’t know. I can’t remember who it i1s; I
mean, that’s over --

Midlands Orthopaedics?

-~ twenty-one (21) years ago.

Midlands -- Midlands orthopaedics?

I --1Ican’t -- maybe so. Yeah, I know I’ve been
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to Midlands orthopaedics, yeah.

But you remember --

wheh -- when 1 --

-- going out there to --

-- I went to a series of doctors when I was under
them.

-- okay.

Yeah.

And you remember going to --

Yeah.

-- to Midlands --

Yeah.

-- for carpel tunnel syndrome?

No, I don’t remember carpel tunnel syndrome.

well --

I think it was something -- I thought it was
everything related to the -- what I was doing with
bricks. |

-- right hand and arm you think -~

Yeah.

-~ well, you thought your right hand and arm were

being hurt by the bricks too, correct?

Yeah. Because I was just simultaneously
Right.
-- doing this a lot (demonstrating) but --
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You didn’t tell Michelin when you came to work for
them that you had problems with your right hand and arm
and carpel tunnel syndrome back in the ‘90’s either,
did you?

-~ no.

You didn’t tell them about that?

Because I don’t have it now. I mean, I never had

it.

I didn’t ask you about now.

Yeah. Yeah.

You complained about it back then?

No. I didn’t really complain. They -- théy did
all that assessment on what -- what was going on with

me Tifting bricks.

Okay. |

okay. So, they tested for that and I don’t have
no -- no carpel tunnel, you know. A1l that stuff
you’re saying_about cardiologist and stuff, that’s -- 1
don’t have --

It says you had an x-ray on 1997 -- well, wait a
minute. Are you testifying that br. Isbell is not a
cardiologist?

-- no, I ain’t testifying he’s not a cardiologist.
He is a cardiologist.

well, you just said --
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No, I was just saying that we had -- with the high
blood pressure thing earlier -- |

-- yes.

- they checked me out to see whether it was a
heart thing.

I understand.

Okay. It wasn’t that --

I understand.

-- but now --

Okay.

-- this with the carpel tunnel and you’re saying
about the carpel tunnel.

- Yes.

I -~ I don’t have no carpel tunnel.

okay.

They checked that out because I was doing -- I
told them my motions was like this (demonstrating) and
I was doing it so much and it was new to me --

Okay.

-- you know what I’m saying? So, they checked
that out and they also had Richtex -- okay. 1I’m sorry.
Go ahead, finish what you’re saying.'

It says -- your lawyer made some point about you
were having pain at L2,3 at a different part of your
back but then at the x-rays on this same page it says,
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L -- LS spine films are obtained and show no
significant abnormalities, except for some questionable
abnormal posterior wedging at L5; do you know that LS
is what you’re claiming is wrong with you now?

I -- I guess -- I know it’s lower back left, 5, 6
or something like that. i

Yes.

Yeah. Uh-huh.

And they found some wedgihg at L5 back in 1997, on
an x-ray; you didn’t tell Dr. Boyd;.you didn’t -tell any
doctor about that, did you?

No, because I -- I didn’'t have no -- no -- no
issues.

okay. It says you have a 1uhbar strain and then
here’s what is important to me, Mr. Brailey, he says --
and this is the doctor telling you -- correct me if I'm
wrong --

Uh-huh.

-- he is instructed on no heavy 1lifting times one
(1) week; did the doctor tell you that?

Uh-huh.

Do you remember that?

Uh-huh.

That’s yes?

Yes.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073

5;%03) 358-0515
www.Paﬁme@toCourtReporting.com




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

o r O Pr O

219

Okay.

I'm sorry. Yes.

So, you do remember that?
Yes, sir.

- Al1l right. I also discussed with this gentleman
in no uncertain terms, if he has been having back pain
for three (3) weeks, the entire time he has been |
working for Richtex, if he does not respond very well
and véry fast to some conservative treatment, it might
be in his and Richtex’s best interest for him to find
new employment; now that’s pretty specific information
from a doctor, isn’t it? He told you you couldn’t do
heavy duty work, based on your complaints; isn’t that
what he told you?

wWell, he -- verbally, he didn’t tell me --
verbally, he didn’t tell me that. So, verbally, he was
just saying -- you know, because he said that maybe you
can get -- you know, everybody, you know, it’s -- it’s
-- it can be recovered if you need time off or what may
have you. It wasn’t like what -- I didn’t -- this is
the first time I’'m hearing this -- well, after my loss
-~ well, this is the first time I’m hearing this --

Okay .

-- on how he wrote it.

And if you would have been truthful when you went
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to Michelin and if you had told them the truth about
your back pain and you had a workers’ Comp claim and
you’d been injured in 1997, we might have all seen this
report before you ever started work doing any kind of
heavy manual work or any 1ifting or any of those things
at Michelin. If you’d have just been truthful on thét
form; isn’t that right? They could have investigated
and seen if you were okay to do the job; isn’t that
right?

You’re saying that --

If you’d have told the truth they could -- they
might have found this medical record before you started
working; isn’t that true?

-~ I -- I.don’t\know; maybe it is.

okay.

Yeah.

And if they would have found this record and had
read that to you, you would have then been able to say
to them, that’s the first time I've ever heard that.
You know, I guess, maybe I can’t do heavy duty work
because that’s what the doctor told you, right, right
here in this report?

I’ve been working heavy duty work. for twenty.(ZO)

something years.

okay. well, we’ll get to that in a minute. But
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that’'s what the doctor told you in the report --
vh-huh,

- correct?

Uh-huh.

Yes?

what? The doctor didn’t tell me -- I mean --

That’s what he said in the report. That’s what
the report says?

-- that’s what’s in the repoft.

okay.

I -- I haven’t heard that.

I understand.

This is the --

I understand --

-- okay.

-- that’s what you’re‘c1a1ming.

Uh-huh.

On December 11th you went back to Dr. Norris for
the second time; is that correct?

Right.

A1l right. And it says, had been working for
Richtex for three (3) weeks; he had noted back pain and
soreness for three (3) weeks. Then he reported this
vague episode of 1ifting some bricks -- man, that
sounds exactly like our case, doesn’t it? You went to
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work for Michelin, within three (3) weeks you were
having back pain, going to the hospital, going to your
personal doctor and then all of a sudden you came up
with some vague accident exactly like this case right
here, isn’t it? I’m it couldn’t be any closer.

But let me just say this --

Mr. Samuels: oObjection, Your Honor,
argumentative.

-- can I --

Witness: -- okay.
Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes.
h : Mr. Beard: okay.
Commissioner wilkerson: I understand.

It says --

Commissioner wilkerson: I’m already
“bluing the report.
Mr. Beard: -- all right.

And he felt that he may have injured himself at
that time, although he denied any significant change at
the time of this incident. of note, three (3) days
after he saw me he was at Doctor’s Care wanting a
second opinion. Wow. So -- so, you went to Dr. Izard;
you didn’t like what he said so, you ran off to another
doctor. That’s exactly what you did in 1997, wasn’t
it? You didn’t 1ike --
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I wanted to get a --

-- what that doctor said, so you wanted aqother
opinion?

-- I wanted a second opinion --

Okay.

-- on what it is --

All right.

-- you know.

Mr. Beard: I do not have the record --
Jet's see --

It says you weren’t following that doctor’s -- Dr.
Norris’ instructions; is that true, you weren’t
following his instructions at that time?

I don’t remember. what you -- what -- what are
you --

I don’t know what his instructions were --

— T --

-- I'm just telling you what it says.

- I follow all the instructions.

Okay.

We -- I was at physical therapy.

Okay.

I did physical therapy -- okay.

Okay. It states he is having difficulty sleeping
at times, although, at the same time he tells me that
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the Flexeril knocks him out at night; is that what you
told the doctor?

Yeah, I had a difficult time sleeping and the
Flexeril will knock me out sometimes.

Okay. Is the Flexeril you’ve been taking from all
the doctors you’ve seen in this case, does that knock
you out?

If I take it enough. I mean, if I take it for --

Did you take any before you came here today?

-- no.

Are you still under it; are you still under a
prescription for Flexeril?

He can’t give me none of that; Dr. Boyd can’t
prescribe no more medicine to me because I don’t -- I
mean, I've seen the --

okay.

-- I haven’t been to him.

I've got you. I do not have the records from the
Doctor’s Care and he is unsure exactly what the |
diagnosis was or what he was told. He mentions that he
knows something is wrong with his back and he wants to
go to a back specialist. So, you told br. Norris in
1997, you knew something bad was wrong with your back,
didn’t you, and you wanted to see a specialist because
you were having bad problems in your back in 19977
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Not bad -- I don’t know what it was, I just wanted
to make sure I didn’t hurt me long term. So, the -- as
far as telling him I wanted to see a back specialist, I
don’t remember saying that but that sounds -- you know,
I will -- you know, I -- I would definitely want to see
a back specié?ist to make sure that I'm not being --
won’t hurt myself if I did.

Okay. He then says, it seems today that Mr.
Brailey and I have a very difficult time communicating
and I certainly feel that with him having only been an
employee three (3) weeks at Richtex and mentioning a
back specialist after he had been improving on the
therapy I had recommended, he may very well be in a
Titigation thought process; do you know what that
means?

No.

It means he thinks that you’re doing -- doing that
because you were going to file a lawsuit and try to get
some money.

No.

That’s what I think. That’s what I think you’re
doing here.

well, you’re wrong.

okay.

I didn’t even want to be in no --
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okay.

-- I wanted to be told about my back.

okay.

I didn’t even want to be in no workman's Comp.
Chris -- I mean, what’s the Nurse -- came to me with
that. I didn’t say, oh, I want wWorkman’s Comp. No.

~ okay. |

I just went to the»doctor to -- I went to Dr.
Izard -- if they would have had a doctor open on
Saturday and Sunday I’d have went to them.

well, it’s -- | |

But Dr. Izard told me -- hold -- let me -- Took --
lTook, Dr. Izard told me go .--

-~ I didn’t ask you want Dr. Izard told you.

-~ okay.

Nobody asked you --

well, T --

-- anything about what anybody told you.

-- he told -- okay.

commissioner Wilkerson: That’s the
part, Stephen, that we can’t get through.

witness: okay.

Commissioner wilkerson: we keep --

Witness: Yeah.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- recreating
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what happened in 1492.

Witness: well, not for -- |
Commissioner wWilkerson: He’s not
answering the questions. He’s rambling all

over the‘p1ace. He answered them pretty

clearly when you asked them:; he clicked them

off. These questions are close but not exact
witness: -- uh-huh.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- and we jump
all over the point with them. I don’F know
where we’'re coming from. I think we’ve gone
from playing a football game to tennis. 1I
don’t know Qhat we’'re doing. Wwe’ve been on

it three and a half (3 %) hours but --

Q. You keep saying --

Commissioner wWilkerson: -- and have
shed no more Tlight than before we started,

S0.

Q. -- you keep saying you didn’t bring up the

Workers’ Comp process but the Commissioner has already
read the records from the hospital and I showed them to
-you where you, at the very first consult on June the
24th, had questions of the doctor about the workers’
Comp process, that was you that asked those guestions,
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not the Nurse, not anybody from Michelin; that was
Isaac Brailey asking the consult Nurse at Lexington
Medical Center. So, don’t act Tike it was my people;
it was you, wasn’'t it?

No.

You brought up this workers’ Comp, you wanted
workers' Comp, you hired a lawyer to file a workers’
Comp before Mr. Samuels. |

I did not want -- again, like I said, I didn’t
want -- that’s not -- that’s not what I wanted.

He then says I believe it certainly would be
prudent for both myself and Richtex Bricks to send him
to an orthopedic surgeon. Did you go to an orthopedic
surgeon in 19977

I don’t remember whether I went to an orthopedic

'surgeon in 1997.

A11 right. At the bottom here he goes -- at the’
-- at -- still under the -- the S portion it says, he
reports the pain is in the middle of hiS back, hurts
sometimes when he is sitting and when he bends forward;
is that what you told him or do you remember?

Sitting and bending forward?

Yes, hurt your back.

Yeah. I mean, as far as what I went to the doctor
for? Yeah,
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A1l right. He says he did not perform a physical
examination that day because he felt that you were
being very hostile with him in his office; is that
true?

No.

were you being hostile with the doctor?

No.

Okay. He diagnosed you with both a Tumbar and a
thoracic strain. He says, it seems he wants to be
evaluated by a back specialist. I feel Tike Dr. Bethea
at Moore Clinic would certain1y put this to rest most
expediently; however, as stated above, I doﬁ’t feel
that Richtex nor myself need to undertake any liability
with this young man who in my opinion is unable to
perform the job required at Richtex and he was even
told this the very first day. Do you remember having
that conversation with the doctbr?

No, I don’t remember having that conversation with
him.

I restated that today and I placed him oh no heavy
1ifting until he sees the surgeon. Now, correct me if
I'm wrong, the only surgeon you have seen since 1997,
for your low back woﬁ1d be Dr. Scott Boyd at Lexington
Brain and Spine; is that correct?

Correct.
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so, from 1997, you’ve been under restrictions of
no heavy Tifting and didn’t tell anybody about that
when you were going to -- going to work at new jobs did
you; you didn’t tell anybody about it? )

when I was doing -- -

Answer --

Commissioner wilkerson: Answer the
question.
-- answer my question.
-- no.
I'm correct? You didn't tell anybody --
. No, I didn’t tell anybody.

-- that you went to work for --

I didn’t tell nobody.

-- that you were under heavy duty 1ifting
restrictions?

No, I didn’t tell nobody.

okay. Now, if you want to explain, go ahead.

Twenty (20) -- it -- it’s -- well, the -- the
heavy 1ifting, I went -- went through physical therapy.

Okay.

when I finished physical therapy with the doctor,
he -- they released me. It -- I got my back better; it
was no problem when I went to physical therapy, I --
twenty (20) something years ago.
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A1l right. You just read the report. He said
until you go to a surgeon you’re under no -- you’re
under heavy lifting restrictions, correct? That’'s what
it said.

Uh-huh. oOkay. Yeah.

And you just admitted you haven’t been to a
surgeon since then, unti]vyou went to Dr. Scott Boyd,
correct? |

correct.

And you did not tell Dr. Scott Boyd that in 1997,
you were placed under restrictions until you were seen
by a surgeon, did you; you didn’t tell Dr. Boyd that?

No. |

Hé had no idea that you were injured --

No.

-- 1in 1997, correct?

well, I -- I -- I don’t know whether he -- no, I
don’t --

well, you didn’t tell him?

-- no. No, I didn’t tell him. Huh-uh.

okay. So, unless -- unless he is a genie or
unless he is some magical person and just knows
everything, there is no way he could possibly know that
unless you told him, correct?

okay. Correct.
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Okay. A1l right. Now, earlier you were
describing your job at westinghouse and you said --'I
think you said that it was actua11y.heavy duty, you
said something about that was heavy work; is that
correct?

Yes. Some parts of it is heavy work --

wWere you --

-- when you start on certain areas.

-- okay. Wwell, do you recall in your deposition
testifying that -- you were asked about the physical --
the -- a Tlittle bit about the physical demands of that
job and this is what you said, well, it really wasn’t
no -- you know, it was basically only physical -- it
was not too much physical demand on that job; it was
just basic. Wwe had rods we would pull on the table but
it just -- it was really light, you know, two (2) rods,
three (3) rods at a time to inspect them; do you
remember saying that?

Right.

well, where did -- where did you put heavy duty,
manual, hard; all those kind of things?

well, I'm -- I was talking about in the beginning

‘where I started from different sections of

westinghouse.
Okay.
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A

Mr. Beard: Page 16, Commiséioner, of
Defendant’s APA’s, again.‘
This is the questionnaire you filled out at
1in, correct?

Correct.

‘That’s your signature, correct?

in fr

correct.

It Tooks Tlike March 21st of '17, correct?
Correct.

All right. And you said they stuck the form in --

ont of you and you just, real quickly, just check,

check, check and turned it 1in, right; is that what you

said?

what

that

Yeah. Basically --
But you did --
-- that’s correct.

-- you did take time to write high blood pressure

Uh-huh.
-- on there, correct, or whatever that word 1s§
is that word (indicating)?
High blood pressure.
Okay. what’s the last part of that word; what’s
other word that you wrote on there?
High -- I don’t know. That’s high blood -- I
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don’t know what that is. High -- controlled.

Okay. All right. So -- so, you took the time to
tell them that you had high blood pressure that was
controlled but you didn’t také the time to tell thém
the truth about all these other things that Mr. Samuels
has already had you admit were not truthful, correct,
because you just -- said you just quickly filled 1in the
form because they stuck it in front of you?

what other things are you saying about?

well, your -- the lawyer actually asked you a
bunch of questions on here, he said --

Yeah.

-- there’s a question about back injury, back ache
or pain. ‘

okay.

Do you have -~ in fact, he went back and read it
really slowly.

Uh-huh.

Do you have problems with or have you ever had
medica1 attention for any of the following. You
claimed that you stopped reading it when it said do you
have probiems with; that’s what you said --

Yeah.

-- correct?

correct.
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All rjght. And even though that’'s what the rest
of the statement says is --

Right.

-- 1is have you ever had those problems because he
asked you, have you ever in your whole 1ife ever had
that and you said, yeah, that wasn’t true when I
answered the way I did; do you remember all that?

Yeah.

okéy.

Uh~-huh.

And so, you just checked the boxes, no, no, no,
no, no, all the way down --

Uh-huh.

-- correct?

correct.

And you did that because you were afraid if you
didn’t do that you weren’t going to get a job; isn’t
that right?

No.

Okay. You haQe had prior cervical -- surgical
procedures to your knee; we know that’s true, correct?

Yeah.

You didn’t put that on the form, even though it
asked you, right?

Right.
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[

You have had prior back aches, prior back
injuries, prior back pain. In fact, you were on
restrictions for heavy duty, basically, since 1997; you
didn’t put anything about that on the form, did you?

No.

okayf Have you ever experienced a -- he didn’t
ask you this question, page -- number 21 -- have you
ever experienced a medical problem that affected your
ability to perform your work; you put no, didn’t you?

Right.

But you had to quit a job because you couldn’t

perform the job at Richtex, correct? You physically

‘couldn’t do it.

No. I quit that job but, you know, no, that’s not
-- I quit that job because I didn’t want to go through
more physical where they was really -- he -- they
didn’t tell you, oh, I -- well, we -- we was 1lifting
bricks every day.

okay.

We was 11ftihg -

Because you had a medical problem that --

-- no, /

-- prevented you‘from being able to perform your
work?

No. Lifting bricks, that -- they knew that it was
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-- that it was harmful to everybody; so, they -- they
-- and I didn't want to go back there and risk my back
getting really hurt bad, so.
Okay.
You know, I didn’'t know and -- and it was only --
I'd only been there -- I haven’t -- it -- it -- it --
it was where -- when I started Richtex it was like I
was working a machine and then they threw us on a
monorail --
Okay .
-- so.
when you went to westinghouse it was apparently on
May the 16th of 2001, when you had to fi11 out their
medical history form --
uh-huh.
-~ and examination; is that correct?
Correct.
'Is that --
Yeah.
-- all that stuff is properly you; is that
correct?
correct.
okay.
Yes, sir.
Mr. Samuels asked you about this question, it
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says, do you have or have you -- or are you troubled by
-- and it said recurrent low back pains, you said you
didn’t have any back pains at that time; that’s why you
said that?

correct.

okay. And then, for some reason he went to page
20 and 21 but he skipped over page 19 and page 19 has
got some pretty good things on there, and this was in
2001, so this was a whole lot closer to 1997, than
twenty-one (21) years later; this'was less than four
(4) years later, correct?

Uh-huh.

About three and a half (3 %) years later?

uh-huh. |

Is that a yes?

Yes. Yes, sir.

A1l right. Have you ever -- it doesn’'t say -- it
doesn’t start off with have you -- do you have a
problem now or have you ever had, the only question is,
have you ever.

Uh-huh.

‘Now, ever means your whole T1ife, correct; you
understand that?

Right.

okay. Question mark, any of the following:
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Undergone a surgical procedure or.operation, you put
no; that’s not true is it because you had a surgical
operation, you said, from a young person, to your right
knee; so, you lied on that, correct?

well, I didn’t know-- well, I didn’t really
understand a surgica} but I took it as now. I -- I
never -- I couldn’t even remember my --

Have you ever, I mean --

-~ yeah.

-- I mean, you --

I -- I know what you're saying, it’s ever -- when
you said that it’s ever but that -- T took it as now
but I never -- I couldn’t remember the surgical thing.

Commissioner wilkerson: well, help me
understand what forever means when it’s typed
on the form.

Witness: Yeah. well, I can’t remember
all the back thirty (30) years ago.

Mr. Beard: oOkay. well --

Commissioner Wilkerson: So, you can’t
remember, 1is the answer now?

wWitness: No, I'm saying -- you're
saying now. Yeah, it's -- it’s just --

-- read for me, if you would, before T ask --
well, let me -- let me finish this. There’s another
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question that says, have you ever had a work-related
injury or illness; what did you check on that box?

-- no.

Is that true?

work-related injury?

Injury or --

IT11ness?

-- 111ness. Have you ever had a wWorkers’ Comp
claim? Yes, you just got --

Yeah.

-- paid for one in -- from a -- from a 1997
workers’ Comp claim.

correct.

okay. So, you Tied on that, correct?

I -- I -- if that's what you want to say, yeah.

well, how -- I mean, you can -- yoﬂ can say all

this forever and make that excuse

Yeah.

-- but you can’t make that excuse for that
qguestion.

No. I can’t make that excuse for that question.

And you said no, correct?

I said no.

Okay.

Uh-huh.
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Have you ever been restricted, medically, from
doing any part of your job? Now, we just read Dr.
Norris’ 1997 report that said you couldn’t do any heavy
work until you went to a surgeon. So, you put no
there; that’s was also incorrect and not truthful,
right?

From what I understand, yes, that’s -- well, on
paper, yes, that’s what it says --

A1l right.

-- so, I put that.

Now, what I'd 1ike for you to réad is --

Commissioner wilkerson: Are we still on

page 197
Mr. Beard: -- yes, sir.
There’s a box, see this -- see this little --

Commissioner Wilkerson: 1I’ve got the
rest of 1it.
-- black writing right above your signature and
your --
Uh-huh. |
-- what does the very first sentence of that say?
I certify that the ébove answers are true and
complete. _
‘Okay. Did you read that before you signed it; did
you read your certification? That’s pretty big --
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that’s a pretty important statement that they put on a
piece of paper, isn’t it?

Right.

Did you read it?

Yeah.

okay.

I mean, as far as did I read the statement?

So --

No.

-- so, you certified and, in Fact, you lied
because you knew what these questions were and you
certified them and you knew when you signed that
document going to work for westinghouse that you were
putting them at risk if they found out about it and you
were afraid to tell thé truth because you didn't think
they would hire you if you told the truth; isn’t that
right?

No. I -- I didn’t -- wou1dh’t say that, no.

You were asked about something that happened --
apparently, you had another questionnaire and a
physical in -- in 2013, it looks Tlike it was also done
at Healthworks, which is where Dr. Izard 1is; isn’t that
right? |

Correct.

okay. And on that form, while you were still
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working at westinghouse, there’s a question that says,
do you have or have you ever had the following. It
went through all these things --

Right.

-- and you said you just check marked them really
fast. well, that’s not true because you actua]Ty took
time to check mark some of these things under now,
correct; sd'you did read them, correct?

Correct. | )

A1l right..

Uh-huh. |

So, you said you do have hypertension or high
blood pressure now; you told -- you told the truth
there, correct?

Correct. )

It says do you have any pain, numbness, Timited
motion, injury or surgery of the -- check mark, knee
pain, with weather; is that what you said? -

Right.

So, you were having knee pain back then, you put

it on their form; why didn’t you put it on Michelin’s

form?

Because it was -- it was not -- it was -- it
wasn’t a -- it’s nothing steady and it wasn’t nothing
-- it’s something like I hit my knee;.it was nothing --
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it was not no -- no -- no, what you call it? It wasn't
"no -- whatever. It wasn’t -~
okay.

e serious in my opinion. It wasn’t nothing. I
just said knee pain, whatever. It wasn’t nothing where
I had a -- I can’t -- go ahead.

Do you have any pain, numbness, limited motion,
injury or surgery of -- again, you checked, yes, now,
and put knee pain.

Yeah.

There’s a specific question about back or neck
pain; what did you put?

No, I think. well, what is it?

You put no? Yes, straight across there wbu]d be
no. |

Yeah. Uh-huh.

A1l right. There's also one about hip, knee, leg,
ankle, foot; you put no on that, correct?

No. I put the -- yeah, now. It says nhow.

I mean, now; I'm sorry.

Now.

Then you wrote over here what that was, knee pain
with weather, correct?

.Yeah.
So, you knew enough to tell the truth about knee
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

515803) 358-0515

www.P;amettocourtkeporting.com :



10
11
12
13
14

15

16|

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

o » O » O » DO > o >» 0O

245

No, no, no, no, no. This says, hip, knees -- then

-- and it says now.

Correct.

And then, over here, it’s on the other line over

here, shoulder, head, arm, hand and wrist, finger.

That’s a no; that’s correct.

okay.

what I said was, you -- you took --

Yeah.

-- you actually wrote on this thing --
Yeah.

-- knee pain -- is that pain with weather?
Yeah, pain with weather.

Okay.

Yeah.

But then, they have a question and it doesn’t say

, db you have now or have you ever had -- guestion number
28, explicit, have you ever had a work injury, workers’
Compensation claim, been given an impairment rating or
disability rating, applied for or received any type of
disability or pension including military VA, received
an award or a settlement for any injury, accident,"

disease or other disorder; what did you say?

Never.
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That’s a 1ie, isn’t it?

It's a -~

You just had settled a workers’ Compensation
claim.

-- no, I just now have; that’s twenty-one (21)

" years ago.

No, sir. This -- this is not twenty-one (21)
years ago.
No, you’re talking ébout this -- you say you -- I
just have settled.
I'm talking about --
Yeah.
-- when you filled out this form.
when I filled out that form?
It just --
Commissioner wi]kérson; Stephen?
-- it wasn’t twenty-one (21) years ago?
Uh-huh. Yeah. | |
Mr. Samuels: Your Honor --
Commissioner Wilkerson: Can I meet with

the attorneys for a minute?

Mr. Samuels: -- the form he’s asking
him about --

Commissioner wilkerson: Let -- let me
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Mr. Samuels: -- is from 2013.
Commissioner wilkerson: -- fine, let’s
go -- let’s go in here a minute.

Court Reporter: Off the record?
Commissioner Wilkerson: Off the record.
Court Reporter: Thank you.

(off The Record)

Commissionef wilkerson: A1l right.
Let’s go back on the record. The last notes
I have 15, we’re on - we were on page 19.

Mr. Beard: Yes, sir. And I had -- I
had just finished with that, Commissioner.

Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay. That’s
fine. That’s the last notes I've got. All
right. Wwe’re back on the record. I think we
also covered page 20, as well.

Mr. Beard: Wwe did. I was about to say
I think -- |

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Beard: -- I covered 20, as well.

commissioner wilkerson: we do. I’'ve
got it right here; I had to flip one more
paper.

A1l right. Mr. Brailey, I think you stated
earlier, you at least started college at South Carolina
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State, correct?

correct.

So, you know how to read and write, correct?

Correct.

A1l these documents that we’ve shown you today,
you can read them?

correct.

You understand the difference between forever and
now --

correct.

-- now versus ever; you understand the difference
between all those words -- |

correct.

-- correct? oOkay. 1It’s my understanding you also
have training or have been trained -- you -- you’ve got
forklift training, safety training, counseling
training, first aid, CPR; all those kind of things
you’ve learned throughout your career and your life,
correct?

Correct.

okay. So, those are things that you can do if
need be, correct? Those are jobs you could go work at

Correct.

-- potentially, correct?
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Correct.

Okay. we had Tooked at that application when you
came to work for Michelin that your 1aWyer put into
evidence; I think it was at pages 85 and 86. And you
said something about working at DJJ before you came --

Right.

-- to Westinghouse and my client, correct?

correct.

why is that not on the épp]ication?»

I just -- I was —

I don’t see anything about DJJ.

-- no, I didn’t put it on there.

okay.

I didn’t.

So -- okay. You don’t know why you didn’t put it
on there? It was the most recent job you had and you
didn’t put it on there?

That was -- after that -- I'm trying to remember -
because I filled out several applications for Michelin.

Right.

So, the first one we had to fil1l out -- because I
just got that job at DJJ.

oOkay.

So, yeah, that's how I think I missed that one.

A1l right. And when you had this workers’
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Compensation claim back in '97, you claimed that you
had had an MRI scan but you could not remember where
you had that done when I asked you, correct? |

No. |

And you couldn’t --

Correct.

-- and you --

Correct.

-- and you couldn’t remember if you ever went to a
specialist, correct?

Correct.

You don’t remember --

Correct.

-- going to a specialist?

Correct.

Okay. Now, I want to just make sure I am correct,
that I understbod your testimony, because I had some
confusion. When you went to the hospital on June the
11th and told them that working -- you had been doing
hard work at Michelin for a couple of weeks and had
been having back pain for a couple of weeks, you never
told the folks at Michelin that you went to the
emergency room on that date, correct?

Correct.

All right. At some point while you were 1in
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training and before you went out onto the PAP machine
and doing that work, Mr. Brailey, you specifically
asked the folks at Michelin if you could do an x-ray
job out there because you had some training in that;
isn’t that correct?

Yeah.

And the reason you asked them to do the x-ray job
is -because that’s a -- pretty much a sedentary job, it
doesn’t really require any manual work or any labor or
anything 1ike that; isn’t that true? It's Tike a
quality control job; isn’t that true?

No. |

It’s not true?

No. I -- I --1I did ask them but I -- I -- I had
some experience in x-ray. I didn’t know what --

well, my question was --

-- I didn’t know what their x-ray was there; I
just know --

-- your experience in x-ray was at Westinghouse?

-- we did a lot of -- Tike I was saying, we did a
Tot of things.

Okay.\ X-ray is like qua1ity control x-ray; is
that what you’'re talkihg about?

It could be in another area, as well, too.

okay. And that does --
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Yeah.

-- that’s a sedentary type of job, correct? 1It’s
not a manual job; it’s --

_No.

-- it’s a sedentary job. 1It's a light duty kind
of job, right?

Right.

And you wanted --

You have to --

-- and you wanted to do that at Michelin and you
asked to do.that at Michelin because you knew you
couldn’t do the physicé1 job that you were about to go
try to do; 1sn’t}that correct?

-- no. I was just, basically, trying to find out
all the jobs there and since I had'experience in that
job, I was like, hey, I could try that, whatever. I
didn’t know -- we didn’t know which job we was going
to.

okay.

we didn’t.

You --

I didn’t tell nobody. I just -- théy told us to
ask questions and, you know, what -- when we go to
these different areas ask questions about the job and
this, that and the other.
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-- okay.

So, that’s what.

You have not been to a doctor, at least from the
records or from what I can tell, to an actual doctor,
about your back since October of 2017, correct, almost
six (6) months; is that right?

Correct.

okay. You haven’t been doing anything else in the
meantime to make yourself better physically; is that
correct?

Correct.

You've made no efforts, whatsoever, to get a job
in any of those areas that I described earlier that you
were capable of doing; you haven’t tried to get a job,
have you?

Not at -- I was -- are you talking about after I’d
done -- | 7

I'm talking about right now --

-- no. I haven’t --

-- you haven’t tried any of these other --

-- no, I couldn’t -- no, I couldn’t. I’m out of
work, no. .

-- well, you’re out of work but -- but you haven’t
tried to get a job doing anything, have you? Even the
jobs that are sedentary you haven’t tried to do; is
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that correct?

I’ve been looking. I haven’t -- I haven’t found
-- I.haven't had no Tuck.

Have you applied?

:I applied at verizon.

okay. So, you do -- well, you do believe that
there are jobs you can perform that are Tlighter duty
types of jobs?

Yeah.

okay. And you’'re trying to find those jobs?

Yeah.

And you just haven’t been successful at getting
any yet -- as of this time?

No.

Okay.

RigHt. A

Did you file for unemployment after you were
terminated at Michelin?

No, sir. ’ ;

okay. You testified earlier that on June 13th
when you went to the doctor, your personal doctor, that

-- and I’'m quoting -- I put in quotes what you said,

you said you went to see him about some minor back pain

on that day, correct?

Correct.
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And yoﬁ saw the report where it said the pain that
you had that day was a ten (10) out of ten (10) pain,
correct?

Correct.

You would. agree ten (10) out of ten (10) pain is
not minor back pain, wouldn’t you?

I -- I agree.

In fact, it’s the worst pain you can have,
according to the very chart that was on your doctor’s
report? |

Correct.

Okay. And on June the 24th, whenever you’'ve said
that you were having the problems that you were having
that pafticu1ar day, you didn’t tell anyone in
management before}you left that day that you had any
problems, did you? You just left and went --
eventually went to the hospital, correct? You tried
the medical faci1ity, it wasn’t open and then you went
to the hospital but you didn’t tell anybody at Michelin
you were going to go do that, did you?

Right.

You didn’t even tell anybody you had hurt
yourself, did you, before you left?
| I told -- 1ike I say -- I mean, I was -- nho, I

didn’t tell nobody.
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Q. Okay.
Mr. Beard: Commissioner, I be11eve'
that’s all the questions I have.
commissioner wilkerson: Mr. Samuels.

Mr. Samuels: Thank you, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Samuels:

Q. Isaac, what’s your work status with Dr. Boyd?

A. My work status with who?

Q. Has Dr. Boyd written you out of work?

A. Yes.

Q. okay. Even with that, are you still trying to
find a job?

A, Exactly.

Q. when you were -- were you given a physical exam at
Michelin --

A. Yes.

Q. -- before they -- before you started working?

A. Yes, sﬁr.

Q. okay. Wwas it a thorough physical exam?

A. Yeah, pretty much, I mean, pretty much so.

Q. what was examined?

A. I -- where was it?

Q. what did -- what did'the doctor examine?

A. Eyes, bending down; just as you do as on -- well,
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just, you know, check your -- your reflexes, when you
can turn, bend or, you know, 1ifting; stuff 1like that.

Turn, bend and 1ift with your back?

y Lift -- I think it’s 1ifting, I think; I can’'t
remember.

Q. okay.

A. Lifting or something -- I think he was turning me

or whatever.

Q. And did you suffer any pain during that
examination?

A. No.

’Qi Did you have to squat?

Yes. Squat, yeah, different things you done with
your upper body and lower body, he did.
Q. ' what doctor was it that gave you this physical
~examination; do you remember?
A. No, I sure don’t. I -- I don’t know -- the Nurses
gave me one, then they did the eyesight and the doctor

came in and did some things.

Q. Okay .
A. Yeah.
Q. And -- and then, you were cleared to work full

duty for Michelin?
A, Yes.
Q. No -- no restrictions?
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No restrictions.

when you wént to the doctor the first time you
were having back pain at work, Lexington Medical
Center, 3June 11th, 2017, did the doctor put you under
any work restrictions? |

No.

You were c1éared to work full duty?

Cleared to work full duty.

Now, when you went to Dr. Marom on Juﬁe 13th, did
he put you on any restrictions?

No: No, sir.

I'm looking at page 11; I will just read this.
From what we see on page 11 of Dr. Marom’s medical
records: Exercise to lose weight, a need for
strengthening up of core muscles and proper 1ifting
techniques; was that discussed with you?

Yes.

But no restrictions?

No restrictions.

Okay. Now; the -- the first time you saw Dr.
Marom was even before you had applied at Michelin; is
that right?

Excuse me?

The first time you saw Dr. Marom was before you'd
app1ied’at Michelin?

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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Correct.

And we have a record at page 1 of the APA

submissions dated January 3rd, 2007, oh, excuse me,

2017.

Marom?:

Yes.

Did you go there to establish care with Dr.

He was going to be your family doctor?

Yes,

sir.

And did he ask you to discuss all of your medical

conditions?

Yeah, he did go‘over that with me. Yes, sir.

Were you having any problem with your back when

you saw him?

NO.

Mr. Samuels: And, Your Honor, simply
for the record, there is no mention of back
pain in that record.

Mr. Beard: 1In fact, there’s not mention
of an examination of the back or any mention
of the back whatsoever; so, I'm not real sure
what Stephen’s point of telling you that was.

Mr. Samuels: well, the -- the point is,
he's gone to his family doctor, talking about
his current problems and his history and back
pain is not one of them.
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Commissioner Wilkerson: 1In January?

Mr. Samuels: In January.

Commissioner Wilkerson: VYes,

Mr. samuels: Before he went to work at
Michelin.

Commissioner wilkerson: But in July,
major back problems. He goes from nothing to
ten (10) out of ten (10) in June; in less --
in less -- in about six (6) months.

Mr. Samuels: Right.

commissioner Wilkerson: Less than six
(6) months. |

“Mr. Samuels: Because he’s doing heavy
work and it’s hurting him.

Commissioner wilkerson: But no Workers’
Comp case filed until June the 24th?

Mr. Samuels: Correct.

Commissioner Wilkerson: And that’s the
day the accident happened --

Mr. Samuels: Correct.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- June 24th,
not June 11th or the 13th or May?

Mr. Samuels: Yes, sir. I mean, we’re

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay.
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Mr. Samuels: -- we’re not -- we’'re not
disputing what the medical records say --

Commissionervwi1kerson: Okay .

Mr. Samuels: -- that he was having back
pain or whether it had ripened into a true
injury -- N |

commissioner wWilkerson: oOkay.

Mr. Samuels: -- and he hadn’t had any
radiculopathy up to that point.

Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay. 1I’'m
fine. I just wanted td make sure I didn’t
miss it.

From both June 11th and June -- June -- June 1llth,
2017 and 3June 13th, 2017,‘those doctors released you at
full duty?

correct.

okay. Isaac, how long was the probation period at
Michelin?

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, I believe
that’s asked and answered and he said he
didn’t know the answer to the question when I
asked him earlier. I asked him was it ninety
(90) or a hundred and twenty (120) days and
he said he didn’t know.

Mr. Samuels: Between those two (2).
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commissioner wilkerson: Yes, So, do
you know how many -- what’s the probationary
period?

witness: I can’t remember but I'm
thinking it’s -- you know, acceptable, Tike,
ninety (90) days, you know. I can’t
remember.

Commissioner wilkerson: You said
earlier it wasn’t.

witness: No, I said I don’t -- I can’t
remember. I don’t know.

commissioner wilkerson: well, either
you remember or you don’t.

Witness: Yeah.

commissioner wilkerson: You can’t -- if
you can’t remember --

witness: Yeah.

commissioner wilkerson: -- do you
understand that means you don’t have any --

wWitness: Yeah.

commissioner Wilkerson: -- idea?

witness:. Yeah. I can’t remember.

commissioner wilkerson: ' oOkay.

witness: Okay;

commissioner wWilkerson: And if you do
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remember, then that’s the answer I want.
witness: oOkay.

Commissioner wilkerson: So --

Withess: Yes, sir.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- do you
remember or don’t you remember or are you
just making up an answer?

Witness: I don’t -- I don’t remember.

Commissioner Wilkerson: So, when you
said I thought it was ninety (90) days, you
just made tﬁat up?

 Witness: I just assumed everybody would
be ninety (90) days, sir.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Wwell, we can’t
assume --

Witness: Yeah.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- you know
what that problem with that is. We can’t
assume; we --

Witness: okay.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- we’ve got to
have -~ I want correct answers; I don’t want
what somebody else told you or what we assume
to be the answer.

Witness: oOkay.
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Commissioner Wilkerson: So, you don’t
know; is that fair?

witness: I don’t know.

Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay. .

Isaac, did you delay filing your workers’ Comp
claim till you were outside the probationary period?

Did I delay?

Yes, sir. Did you delay filing your workers’ Comp
claim or telling Michelin that you got hurt at work
until after you were outside the probationary period?

Ccommissioner Wilkerson: He doesn’t know
what the probationary period is. So, how
would he know if he did or didn’t?

Mr. Samuels: That’s part of the point,
Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I agree. So,
if he doesn’t know what it is --

Witness: Yeah.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- if he says
yes, he’s wrong; if he says no he’s wrong.

Mr. Samuels: 1It's -- it’s been
suggested by Mr. Beard that he delayed --

Mr. Beard: Stephen, you’re not --
you’'re not allowed to tell your client -- I
mean, you’re basically telling your client
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what he needs to answer a question;lyou can’t
do that. with all due respect, you get to
ask questions; you don’t get to just stand up
there and talk. You’re testifying.
Objection. |

commissioner wilkerson: He doesn’t know
what it is. How do you ask him a question if
he doesn’t know what the probationary period
is?7 A proper question would be, why did you
file a workers’ Compensation claim on the
24th day of June and not the 11th day of

June; that would be a proper question.

Answer that question, Isaac.

I -- I didn’t -- was not -- I -- I didn’t -- my

pain wasn’t that severe and I wasn’t thinking about

workman's Comp, you know, from on June 11th, June 13th;

I -- I wasn’t even thinking about Workman’s Comp no

time.

commissioner wWilkerson: So -- so, let
me ask you a duestion. You would only file a
claim if you thought about workers’ cComp,
right?

Witness: Excuse --

Commissioner Wilkerson: Tell me what --
what -- tell me what you mean by, if you
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think about workers’ Comp.

witness: -- if I thought about
workman’s -- I mean --

commissioner wilkerson: Wwhat do you
mean by when you say, if I thought about
Workers’ Comp?

Witness: -- it’s just, like, if I
thought about -- I wasn’t even thinking about
workman’s Comp. I just ~-

commissioner Wilkerson: Tell me what
you mean by, if you were thinking about
workers’ -- I don’t know what that means.

witness: -- well --

Commissioner wWilkerson: I mean, I don’'t
come to work every day and say -- s

Witness: -- yeah.

Commissioner wi1kersong -- I think I'm
thinking about workers’ Comp --

wWitness: Yeah. I was just referring to
your answer --

commissioner wWilkerson: -- or I think
I'm thinking --

witness: -- I was just referring to
your --

commissioner wilkerson: -- I don’t have
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an answer.
Witness: -- I mean, I'm just referring
to --
Commissioner wilkerson: I asked you
what --
Witness: -- I'm just referring to what
everybody was saying. I -- I --
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- it doesn’t

matter what -- I'm asking you. I don’t care

'what Mr. Samuels thinks. I don’t care --

Witness: -- yeah.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- what Mr.
Beard thinks.

witness: well, okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I want to know
what you think.

Witness: About WOrkman’s Comp? About
filing a workman’s Comp claim?

Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes, sir.
That’s all I -- that’s all I’m asking, what
you think.

witness: How I think it’s done or how I
think it -- why -~ why should I file it or
what -- that’s what you’re asking me?

Commissioner wilkerson:- No. 1I’m asking
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you what your answer was; what do you mean by
that.

Witness: That it -- it just -- there’s
no reason for it. I mean, I just didn’t
think of it. I mean, you know, just replying
to your answer. I meah, I -- I'm -- make
sure --

| Ccommissioner wWilkerson: I don’t have
any answers.

Witness: -- I'm just trying to make
sure I understand what you’re saying. You
said that why would I answer --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I asked you,
what do you mean by what you stated; that was
the question --

Witness: ~- okay.

Commissioner wi1kerson:' -- about --
you’'re the one that said I wasn’t thinking
about workers’ Comp; I didn’'t say that.

Witness: Right. Right.

Commissioner wiTkerson: I don’t know
what you mean by, I wasn’t --

witness: Well, I was referring to --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- thinking
about workers’ Comp.
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Witness: -- because they meant --
because you all said that -- the previous
question was June 11th.

Commissioner Wilkerson: You're not
listening. You're not -- this has been
fairly consistent for five (5) hours that --
I don’t know what you've been saying. I
don’t know what -- tell me what you méan by
that statement. Nothing or --

Witness: Nothing, it’'s --

- Commissioner wilkerson: -- tell me what
that statement means.

“Witness: -- it’s telling -- it don’t
mean nothing.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I -- I don’t
know.

witness: I don’t mean nothing to me.
It don’t mean nothing, sir.

Commissioner wi]kersonﬁ well, when you
say I --

Mr. Samuels: Respectfully, Your Honor

Commissioner wilkerson: -- never mind.

Go ahead.
Mr., Samuels: -- okay.
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A1l right, Isaac, your back was hurting at work

and you went to the doctor on June 11th, 20177

with

correct.

Did you tell anybody at Michelin about it?

No.

Did you discuss any pain you'd been having at work
anybody at Michelin?

Yes.

Did you discuss in the context of an injury or an

accident?

No.

A1l right. So, June 1lth, you didn’t tell anybody

at Michelin you were going to the doctor?

No.

Okay. June 13th, did you tell anybody at Michelin

you were going to the doctor?

No.

who paid for those first two (2) visits?
I did. |

Did you ask Michelin to pay for it?

No.

If you had pain at work, and that’s what you told

the doctors, June 11lth of 2013 -~ June 11th of -- June

13th, why didn’t you tell the doctors that it was --

lTet me rephrase that. Wwhy didn’t you tell Michelin and
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ask them to send you to the doctor or for them to pay
for your doctor visit?

Because I wasn’t -- it was no -- it was no back
pain that was -- it was no severe back pain and I
didn’t think nothing of it because they were -- they
said just give -- do some muscle relaxers --

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, object to what
they said, again. -

Commissioner wilkerson: .I don’t know

who they are.

withess: -- oh. No --

commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t know if

it’s --

wWitness: -- well --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- Jermaine or
the --

witness: -- okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- plant Nurse

or the Receptionist.
wWitness: Oh..
Mr. Beard: I think he’s talking about
the hospital or the doctor.
Witness: Yeah, that’s what I'm talking
about --
Mr. Beard: That’s the reason I object
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witness: -- the doctors.

Mr. Beard: -- I object to that.

wWitness: oOkay.

Mr. Samuels: You won’t be able to say
what the doctdr said.

witness: Okay.

To pre-imp Mr. Beard, because I know he's going to
ask, you said it was no severe pain but you also told
one of the doctors that it was pain of ten (10) out of
ten (10)?

Correct.

Okay. 1Is that -- since he’s going to ask you --

Yeah.

-- if I don’t.

Yeah.

would you agree that’'s --

Yeah.

-- that’s pretty severe?

Correct. Yeah, I agree.

Okay. why didn’t you go-to Michelin and tell them
you were having pain that bad at that time?

I didn’t do it because the doctors -- well, I
can’t say the doctor. well, I just didn't do it.

Okay. wWere you given any restrictions at that
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time?

NO.

Okay. bid you continue working?

Yes. |

Did you miss any time from woék?

NO.

On June 24th, what happened at 5:30 the -- in the
morning that was different from what had been happening
in the weeks before?

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, just, with all
due respect, this has already been covered on

regular direct; I don’t know that he can just

go --

Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Beard: -- redirect and say the same
thing over again. He’s -- he has asked that

exact question, I think, on direct
examination.

Commissioner wWilkerson: I -- I mean, I
don’t disagree.

Mr. Beard: I mean, he can only go into
new matter and this is -- that’s not new
matter --

Mr. Samuels: well --

Mr. Beard: -- and it has to be new
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matter pursuant to my cross-examination.
Commissioner wilkerson:
Cross-examination, yes.
-- what was different on the 24th that made you
actually talk to Michelin about a work accident?
okay. Wwell, it was very severe pain on June 24th.
Now, you already had pain of ten (10) of ten (10).
okay. Yeah. |
So, what was different?
It made a -- it just really -- I couldn’t -- it
was hard to -- to bend down and it was -- it was just a
-- a sharp pain that was very different from the last.
A1l right. And I'm going to show you page -- I
believe this is 16. So, see here on the left it’'s got
dates and time?
Uh-huh.
june 24th looks 1like the first entry, patient
arriving in ED is 9:07 A.M.7
Right. Yes, sir.
And 1is that about the time you arrived?
Yes, sir.
And then, before you got examined you called
somebody at Michelin?
Yes, sir.
And that’s when you had the various discussions
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w{th the Nurse, the supervisors and so forth; is that
right?

wWith Troy Lowman and Derrick Gibson.

And then later, Christy --

Later on called my house.

-- okay. After you had already left?

Exactly.

And part of my question is, Mr. Beard asked you

about questions about possible workman’s Comp. I’m

- going to show you page 17, June 24th, 2017, that seems

to be at 11:02; so, that’s after you’ve already been
there an hour and a half.
correct.
Had you spoken to --
Ccommissioner wWilkerson: How is 9:07 to
©11:02 an hour --
Mr. Samuels: -- I'm sorry.
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- two (2)
hours and a half?
Mr. Samuels: Almost two (2) hours.
Thank you.
commissioner wilkerson: oOkay.

You’d already -- you’d been there almost two (2)

hours --

Uh-huh. Yes.
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-- in that two (2) hours had you already spoken to
Troy and Derrick?

Yes.

To follow up on something Mr. Beard had asked you
about in Dr. Marom’s record of June 13th, 2017, when
you’d had back pain in 1997, where was it?

In the middle.

Middle --

Middle.

-- at your ribs and just below?

Yeah, at my ribs and just below.

okay. And where was your back pain on June 13th,
2017, when you went to see Dr. Marom?

on the lower left side.

Okay. And you've never'had pain there in-the
past?

cCorrect.

okay. 1Is that something ydu.to1d Dr. Marom?A

correct.

Commissioner wilkerson: Even though
there’s a prior medical report that says L5?

Mr. Samuels: well, Your Honor, I
disagree with that. The prior medical report
that you’re talking about from 1997, says
x-ray shows a wedge on L5.
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commissioner wilkerson: oOkay. And it's

Mr. Samuels: It -- in thekcontext --
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- and it’s
different -- it’s different than a wedge and
pain is what you’re saying; is that fair?
Mr. Samuels: -- right. He'’s --
Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay.
Mr. Samuels: -- right.
Commissioner wWilkerson: That’s fair.
Mr. Samuels: what I'm saying is --
Commissioner Wilkerson: Thatfs fair.
Mr. Samuels: -- that record says
symptomatic at L2,L3.
Commissioner Wilkerson: That’s fair.
Mr. Samuels: Forgive me for my pace
here, Your Honor.
Commissioner Wilkerson: No, no, no, no,
I -- no. Not a problem.
And, Isaac, when you were terminated -- I'm going
to show you your record from Michelin.
Ccommissioner Wilkerson: Just give me
the page, Stephen; that’11 help me.
Mr. Samuels: 83, Your Honor.
Commissioner Wilkerson: I mean, I don’t
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

P645303) 358-0515
www . PalmettoCourtReporting.com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

.23

24

25

o r O P

. 278

know where it is, just so I can document my
stuff here.

Mr. Samuels: Yes, sir.

Commissioner wilkerson: Thanks.

Apparently, this was signed by somebody at
Michelin, 7/6/17, 7/9/17 --

Uh-huh.

-- and they told you, Isaac, you are being
terminated for not being a good fit ddring your
probationary period.

Uh-huh.

Okay?

Yeah. Yes, sir.

And then right after that, did you -- did you
receive a letter advising you that your workers’ Comp
case -- case was denied?

Yeah, I received a ]etter. Yes, sir; I received a
Tetter.

Commissioner wilkerson: 7/137 1
Mr. Samuels: Yes, Your Honor, page 83. ‘

Are Derrick and Troy people that you are supposed
to report a workers’ Comp iﬁjury to?

No. I don’t think. ’

who are you supposed --

I don’t -- I don’t know.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

P646503) 358-0515
www. PalmettoCourtReporting.com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20]|

21

22

23

24

25

o > P >0

279

-- well, “you had a question about the bosses --

Yeah.

-- okay? !

Uh-huh.

Mr. Beard asked you about the bosses; who are the
bosses?

Troy Lowman is the person we -- that's our point

of contact, Troy Lowman.

Okay.

Derrick is -- he was a -- we was working beside
them -- working with some of Derrick’s team but he’'s
not the person that -- he said don’t -- you can’t call

me for any absentees or anything; you need to touch
base with Troy. But I get -- do the trainers’that
we’ll be training undér -- training with. You’ll be
training with some of my trainers, I mean, his
trainers.

who did you report your accident to originally on
June 24th?

Troy. Troy Lowman, I gave a call to him, I'got a

‘answer machine. I called Derrick. Derrick said, don’t

-- he’11 keep -- put it out there too and Troy Lowman.

called me back.

J

Ookay.
I wanted somebody to know.
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Q. A1l right. Thank you.
Mr. Samuels: No further questions.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr. Beard:

Q. You were asked, Mr. Brailey, about page 69 of the

medical records from Dr. Boyd and were you written out

of work was the way the question was asked; is that

correct?
A. correct.
Q. Let’s actually read what it says. It says --
Commissioner Wilkerson: Hold on. Let
me get to that one --
Mr. Beard: -- page --
Commissioner wilkerson: --1I don’t
remember that one. Okay.
Mr. Beard: -- page 69 of Claimant’s
APA’s.
commissioner wilkerson: o0Oh, we haven’t
1ookéd at that one yet. Okay. |
/ Mr. Beard: Yes, I think he -- Stephen
just asked him about it on redirect.
Commissioner Wilkerson: Sure.
Q. Does this not say, I do not believe he can work at

his former occupation in his current condition so 1’11
keep him out of work until next follow up. He -- he
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said you can’t work at your former occhpation, correct?

Correct. That'’s what he said --

Okay.

-- right there, yes.

okay. But you can certainly do other jobs because
you’re applying for jobs that you think you can
physically do, correct?

Ccorrect.

And, in fact, you went from ten (10) out of ten
(10) pain before you filed a workers’ Compensation
claim, about two (2) weeks before, and now only three
(3) out of ten (10) the whole time you’ve been treating
with Dr. Boyd and these other/fo1ks you’ve never been
ten (10) out of ten (10) --

Correct.

-- according to their records; isn’t that correct?

Correct.

So, then, why did you file a WOrkérs’ Comp claim
when you were only three (3) out of ten (10) and you
don’t file a workers’ Comp claim when you’'re ten (10)
out of ten (10); it makes no sense, does it?

It doesn’t make any sense.

okay.

Yeah.

You had a ten (10) out of ten (10) pain, told two
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- (2) doctors that you thought it was related to doing

your job at Michelin, you had a duty to tell your
employer that that was going on, didn’t you? You had a
duty to tell your employer that you physically could
not be doing their job because it was killing your back
to a ten (10) out of ten (10) pain and you chose not to
do that; isn’t that true?

I chose not to do that?

Sure. You twice went to fhe doctor --

Uh-huh. Yeah.

—- and twice-didn’t say a word to my client --

Correct.

-- when you were telling them that you had been
having the problem for weeks; isn’t that true?

correct.

‘You had a duty to tell thém that so that you
wouldn’t hurt yourself or some other co-employee,
didn’t you?

I didn’t Took -- I didn’'t see it that way.

okay. Wwhat if you had been working with a
co-employee, Mr. Brailey, and sudden]y.your back went
out because you hadn’t told my clients you couldn’t do
this and that person got injured; would you feel bad.
about that?

Yes, I would feel bad about that.
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You claim you told somebody -~ you said Troy and
Derrick -- before you actué11y had any medical
treatment on June the 24th, correct?

Say that again now.

You claim you told Troy and Derrick you were going
to have medical treatment at the hospital --

NOt --

-- before you had the treatment; that’s what you
claim?

-- correct.

You disagree with what Nurse Sirois said you told
her; is that correct? Because she said you didn’t --
you didn’t tell anybody until you got released from the
Lexington Medical Center emergency room? |

Yeah, I disagree with what she said.

Ookay. And my last question or series of questions
is about your prior Workers’' Compensation claim.

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, again, page 1
of Defendant’s APA’s.

Your attorney said your back problems were all at
L2,L3, correct; isn’t that what he said?

Yes.

That’s not what this report says, though, is it?
This report says your back exam shows tenderness to
palpation at space at L2,3 but then it also goes on and
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says, also there is pain with forward flexion. There
is tenderness and muscle spasm in the bilateral lumbar
region. It doesn’t say your problems were restricted
to L2,L3, that just says that’s one of the places,
doesn’t it?

Yeah, that’s what it said..

Okay. And it also says you’ve got a problem at L5
on your x-ray and it also diagnosed you with a Tumbar
strain, correct?

Correct.

And then the next day or -- or the next report at
page 2, it’s not only a lumbar strain but now we’ve
gone to the thoracic strain; you’ve got two (2) strains
going on at that time, correct?

correct.

Mr. Beard: That’s all the questions I
have.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Anything else
in the redirect questions?

Mr. Samuels: No, Your Honor.

commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay.

Mr. Samuels: That completes this
witness.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Can he be --

Mr. Samuels: I -- yes, he can come back
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and sit down and --

with

say.

Sir,

commissioner wilkerson: -- yes, sit
you. Yes, that’s what I was going to
Mr. Samuels: -- yes, sir. Isaac --

Mr. Brailey: Huh?

Commissioner wilkerson: o0Okay. Thanks.
you may step down.

Mr. Brailey: oOh.

Commissioner wilkerson: I just wanted

to make sure. I guess we’re going to call

Jermaine next?

Mr. Samuels: -- yes, sir.
Commissioner Wilkerson: well, I --

Mr. Samuels: Wwe said we’d call Jermaine

Commissioner wWilkerson: -- well, I know

Mr. Samuels: -- so, we’ll call
Jermaine.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- well, that’s

why -- that’'s why I asked. we need to get

Jermaine.

(off The Record)
commissioner Wilkerson: Jermaine,
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what's your last name?
Mr. Lemon: Lemon, like the fruit --
Commissioner wilkerson: Oh.

Mr. Lemon: -- L-E-M-O-N.

Commissioner wilkerson: well, I can
actually spell that one. Some of these names
that come in here I don’t have a clue how to
spell them. Thank you.

Mr. Lemon: Al1l right.

Court Reporter: I’ve been saying Lowman
all this time.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Lowman, I have
too; that’s okay. Sir, I'm going to get you
to raise your right hand; the Court Reporter
is going to swear you in and we’ll take a
Tittle testimony from you. Thank you.

whereupon;

Jermaine Ante Lemon, being duly sworn and cautioned to
speak the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,
testified as follows:

Cdurt Reporter: Now, I'm going to ask
you to state your full name for the record,
one more time, please.

wWitness: A1l right. Jermaine --

Court Reporter: You -- you don’t need
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- to do that.

Commissioner wilkerson: It'l1]l get you.
It -- it -- you don’t even have to touch it.
It will --

Court Reporter: That just goes‘to my
ears.

Witness: -- okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- believe it
or not, she may have heard what you said
outside --

Witness: All right.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- because
that’s how sensitive it is, all right?

wWitness: All right. I’m sorry.

-Commissioner Wilkerson: 1I’m not joking.

Court Reporter: Okay. 1It’s Jermaine?

wWitness: Jermaine Ante Lemon.

Court Reporter: All right. Spell Ante
for me.

Witness: A-N-T-E--

Court Reborter: A-N-T --

Witness: -- E.

Court Reporter: -- E.

commissioner wWilkerson: I Tike that.

Court Reporter: Thank you, sir.
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Commissioner Wilkerson: I like that.

Court Reporter: All right.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Thank you, mr.
Lemon. | |

wWitness: All right.

Ccommissioner wilkerson: Please.

Mr. Samuels: Thank you, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Samuels:

Q. Mr. Lemon, my name is Stephen Samuels; I’'m Isaac
Brailey’s attorney.

A. How you doing, Steve?

Q. I’'m doing fine; how about you?

A. I'm doing all right.

Q. Good. Nice to meet you; sorry for keeping you
having to wait here.

A. All right.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Just remember,.
it's their fault, not mine; I'm just here to
listen, okay?

Witness: All right.

Mr. Beard: He was warned it was going
to be a while. I warned him long -- I warned
him, I mean; he was warned.

Commissioner wilkerson: Okay.
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Mr. Lemon, where do you work?
Michelin.
How long have you worked there?
Ten (10) years 1in September.
what area do you work in?
confin. I used to run the PAP; I’'m on the PNS
right now.
Okay. where were you working in --
Court Reporter: Wwait a minute, what was
that first thing you said?
commissioner Wilkerson: where you’re
workingknow.
withess: confin on the --
Court Reporter: cConfin?
. Commissioner Wilkerson: Confin.
witness: -- right, confin.
Court Reporter: C-0-N-F-I-N?
Witness: Yes, that’s the area.
Court Reporter: Thank you.
commissioner Wilkerson: Thank you.
She’s just got to get it down for the record.
Witness: Okay.
-- when did you leave PAP?
" In -~ on December 1st of last year.
‘December 1st of 20177
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Yes.

So, in March, April, May, 3June of 2017, you were
working at PAP?

Yes, sir.

okay. Wwhat is PAP?

It’s basically where you make a -- the carcass,
that actual -- that’s actually ends up being blown up
and made into the tire but you have to make it on the
PAP before it can move to what they a BNS to be made.

Does that apply to all tires, small to big?

Yes.

what’s the largest tire Michelin makes in that
plant?

A 60/80.

- And tell me how big that is in regular terms for
those of us who know nothing about Michelin.

The best way I can describe it is it wouldn’t fit
in this room.

Okay. |

commissioner wilkerson: 1Is it bigger --
is it taller than this building?
witness: Not than the buining but it
-- the height of it would not come in this
room; it would not --
Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay.

~
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Witness: -- fit in this room.
Ccommissioner wilkerson: But it’s --
when I say building, it’s not taller than
/ this entire building, is it?
Witness: No, sir.
Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay.
Witness: No, sir.
commissioner Wilkerson: All right.
Okay.
Is the work, 1is that pretty hard work working the
PAP?
Yes, sir.
- When you first started at Michelin were you doing
hard, physical, work?
Yes, sir.
Do you have an§ -- ever have any aches and‘pains?
Yes, sir.
Ever had to take any aspirin or Advil or anything
for your pain?
No, I never had to do that.
Ever had any sense that -- especially when you
first started that this work is hard?
Oh, yes, sir. Yeah.
Commissioner wilkerson: How old are
you?
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witness: I am thirty-seven (37).
Commissioner Wilkerson: Thirty-six
(36). so, he started at twenty-six (26) and

thirty-six (36).
witness: Yeah. I started at
twenty-seven (27), yeah.

commissioner Wilkerson: we’'re talking

Witness: Yeah.
Commissioner wilkerson: -- fifty (50).
Okay. I just wanted to make sure.

How often would you say you felt aches and pains

from doing the work you do there?

I mean, it -- you know, on a given day, I mean, it

could differ but how often? You know, maybe every

other week or every other month or something like that.

It’s tougher when you first start and aren’t used

to it, isn’t it? B

Yeah.

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, he’'s leading
the witness.

commissioner Wilkerson: Yes, I don’t --

Mr. Samuels: That's a hostile witness,
Your Honor.

Mr. Beard: No, he’s not --
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Commissioner Wilkerson: -- no, he --
you called him.

Mr. Beard: -- he’s a co-employee.

Commissioner wilkerson: He's not
hostile; you called him.

Mr. Beard: He’s a co-employee.

Commissioner wWilkerson: You called him,
he didn’t.

Mr. Samuels: Okay.

Commissioner Wilkerson: He’s not
hostile.

Mr. Samuels: Fair enough.
it take any time to get used to the job?
sir.
do you have to get used to?

that -- probably the mental aspect of it

first, and then the physical.

would you say it’s a young man’s job or an old

man’s job?

I would say that depends on the man.

Okay.

And was it -- what’s the process of getting

used to the physical aspects of it?

Doing it over-and-over; that’'s what I would say

the process is.

The more you do it the -- do you need to get in
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shape to do it?
Yeah.
When new people come on board do you tell them

what to expect about any aches and pains they may feel

~on the job?

No, not about aches and pains but that it could be

hard.

what could be hard in what way and what do you
tell somebody_new?

well, if you -- if you haven’t done this before it
just takes time to get used to. .So, that’s, you know,
with almost anything.

Used to the physical hard-work aspect of it?

Yes.

How long do you figure it takes somebody, on
average, to get used to it?

Each person is different; I would say --

How long would it --

-- some people pick it up, you know, faster than
others.

-- do you know Isaac Brailey?

Yeah.

Did you work with him?

Yes. |

when did you work with him?
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I can’t remember the timeframe but I knew -- T do

know that I work with him, though.

Did you have anything to do with training him or

supervising him or anything like that?

I trained him; yes, sir.

How did he do in the training?

He did pretty good.

Did he seem Tike a hard worker?

Yes,

Did he miss any time from work, up until he

ultimately Teft?

No.

Always showed up on time?

Yes.

Did he have any difficulty doing the job that you

observed?

only just with what to do, kind of, like the

steps.

Did he report any injuries to you?

No.

Did he speak to you of any aches and pains he was

having?

No.

'Did you see him having any aches and pains?

No.
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would you have expected him with being new at the
job to have some pain?
Yes.
Now, was that something that was explained to
everybody that was put in that job?
Mr. Beard: Asked and answered already,
commissioner. I object to the question.
He’s already said they didn’t talk about
aches and pains.
Commissioner Wilkerson: And he wouldn’t
know if that’s to be expected.
Mr. Beard: He specifically said that
answer.
commissioner Wilkerson: He wouldn’t
know if it’s expected. So, you don’t have to
answer that one; 1it’s already been answered.
Mr. Samuels: A1] right.
Mr. Lemon, do you know if you were working on June
24th, 20177
No.
what -- what shift were you working May/3June,
2017, or do you all rotate shifts?
We rotate, so.
okay. Wwhat are thé shifts?
Evening -- I mean, M-shift and E-shift, which {s
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the morning and a -- a evening shift.

Q. - And what’s the time of each -- starting/ending
time of each shift?

A. Morning Shift, 7:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M., evening
shift, 7:00 P.M. to 7:00 A.M.

Q. Okay. How do you feel at the end of that twelve
(12) hour shift?

A. Tired. |

Q. Even now after doing that after ten (10) years?
A. oOh, yeah.

Q. Do you know off the top of your head how long the
| probationary period is at Michelin?

A. No, I don’t,

Mr. Samuels: That’s all the questions I
have. Please answer any questions Mr. Beard
has for you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
By Mr. Beard:
Q; Jermaine, did you ever 1lie on your application to
get a job at Michelin?
A. No. ‘
Q. Do you remember when you went to work for Michelin

having to fill out the questionnaire about your medical
history and getting a physical and all those kind of
things?
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Yes.

Were you truthful to all the answers on the
questions that were asked of you?

Yes.

Did you expect and the reason that you answered
the truth was because you knew that Michelin needed to
know whether you could perform these jobs or not?

Yeah.

Okay. So, it was important to be truthful about
that; 1s that correct?

Right. |

Okay. Being someone who trains folks to do this
job, if a doctor had indicated to someone they could do
no heavy 1lifting until they had been seen by a surgeon,
could that person perform the job on the PAP?

Probably not.

okay.

No, sir.

A1l right. Did Mr. Brailey ever tell you that he
had, in fact, had to give up a job in 1997, because he
physically couldn’t perform the job because of back
problems? |

No.

Did he tell you that the last time he saw a doctor
because of his workers’ Comp claim in 1997, was the
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doctor told him that he would place him on no heavy"
1ifting until he saw a surgeon?

NO.

Did you know he’d never seen a surgeon all the way
up until the time he came to work for Michelin?

No.

And if I understood your testimony, you don’t
believe a person who had been told that by a doctor or
had been -- indicated that in a report would be
physically capable of doing that job; is that correct?

That’s correct.

okay. Is it important for the folks -- well, Tet
me ask you, would you want to know if the person
standing beside you or helping you put together one of
these carcasses or doing some heavy manual labor, would
you want to know if that person was physically capable
of doing it?

Yes.

Because if they’re not and something goes wrdng,
could you also get hurt?

Yes.

okay. Is that the reason Michelin asks all those
qgquestions on -- on these questionnaires?

Yeah.

So, Michelin relies upon what you and every other
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person --
Mr. Samuels: Object.
-- who applies for a job does; is that correct?
Mr. Samuels: Objection, Your Honor,
outside this witness’ personal knowledge.
Mr. Beard: Wwhether or not Michelin
relies on what he says?
Mr. Samuels: He cannot speak for
Michelin.
Mr. Beard: well, let’s find out if he
knows.
Mr. Samuels: If he could speak for
Michelin he would be out -- he would a --
legally a hostile witness.
Do you know whether or not Michelin relies --
commissioner wilkerson: You just need
to redirect the question --
Mr. Beard: -- yes, sir.

commissioner wilkerson: -- if he knows

Mr. Beard: Okay.
commissioner wilkerson: -- he may not
know.
Do you know whether or not Michelin relies upon
the answers that people givé on those questionnaires as
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to whether or not they can perform the jobs?

Yes.

Because -- because you’re informed that as part of
thevsafety program that you go through, correct?

Yes.

You're informed that because of the -- the -- day
one when you come to work for Michelin you have to
watch a PowerPoint that talks about workers’' Comp

safety, what you do if you have a Workers’ Comp claim,

“immediately tell somebody when you get hurt, how the

process works; is that correct?

Yes.

Every employee sees that'and, in fact, you were
involved in training employees that probably had to see
that PowerpPoint? |

Yes. |

okay. And does it make any sense to do a
guestionnaire with all those questions about people’s
physical capabilities if it's not going to be relied
upon; does that make any sense whatsoever?

NO. |

And at no time did Mr. Brailey talk to you about
or discuss with you aches and pains on the job; is that
correct?

No.
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Mr. Beard: That’s all I have.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
By Mr, Samuels:
Mr. Lemon, have you ever pulled a muscle?
NO.
Never in your 1ife, you, never pulled a muscle?
No.
ever had any kind of injury at all?
Yes.
what kind of injury have you had?
A knee injury.
A knee injury?’ o
Yes.
How is your knee now?
It’s fine.
It got completely better?
Yes. /
How long ago was that knee injury?
I was, like, twenty-five (25).
- Twenty-five (25)7
Yeah.
So, it was about- ten (10) or eleven (11) years
ago?
A. Yes.
Q. Ookay. It doesn’t give you\any problems now?
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NO.
Did you see a doctor for it?
Yes.

Did the doctor put you under any work

restrictions?

gone

want

No. !

okay. You saw a doctor because ydu were in pain?
Yes.

But you got better?

Yes.

Your knee doesn’t bother you now at all?

No. .

If in the twenty (20) years that Mr. Brailey had
since he had a back injury in 1997, would you just
to know that he didn’t have anymore back pain?
Yeah.

And would you want to know if he didn’t have any

restrictions; no doctor was putting him on

restrictions?

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, object to the
form because he was under restrictions.

Ccommissioner wilkerson: I understand
that.

Mr. Samuels: Not on June 1ith or June

13th, Your Honor --
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Mr. Beard: He sure was.

Mr. Samuels: -- he was not.

Mr. Beard: He sure was. He was -- he
was --

Mr. Samuels: The doctor took him off
restrictions; he was released to full duty.

Mr. Beard: -- no. No one took him off
restrictions. I object, Commissioner, that’s

commissioner wilkerson: Not the -- he
wasn’'t taken off restrictions because he
never --

Mr. Beard: -- never saw a surgeon --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- went to see
the surgeon.

Mr. Beard: -- ihat’s correct.

commissioner wilkerson: ﬁe,was still on
those restrictions for twenty '(20) years
because he never saw.the surgeon, unless
there’s a report out there that he saw a
surgeon. I don’t know. The information
before me still says he’s on restriction from
1997.

Mr. Samuels: No doctor, currently, 1in
2017, put him on restrictions until June
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24th.

Mr. Beard: with all due respect, no
doctor that he saw knows about 1997, and what
the doctor said. I am -- with all due
respect, we can sit here and --

Commissioner wWilkerson: I know; I
understand.

Mr. Beard: -- play the games, I mean,
chip up questions and semantics --

Commissioner Wilkerson: That’s why
we’re probably going to have to go back and
take Dr. Boyd’s deposition --

Mr. Beard: -- I agree.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- because once
you tell him that I donft know what he’s
going to say but --

Mr. Beard: I don’t either but we can
play this semantical game all day and -- and

twist and turn the words --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- I
understand.
Mr. Beard: -- but the bottom line is --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.
Mr. Beard: -- these doctors didn’t know
because this gentleman didn’t tell them and,
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with all due respect, there’s no way any of
us can know what they would say otherwise.

Commissioner wilkerson: The -- the only
report I’ve got before me is a doctor put him
on restrictions until he saw a surgeon. So,
you -- that means I have no medical report
before me from 1997 until 2017, other than
that report, okay? Now, is there a doctor in
2017, that confirms that report? No.
There’s'not one in ’'16, ’15, '14, 13, ’'12,
11, ’10, 09, ’'08, '07, '06, ’05, '04, '03,
02, ’00, 99, '98 or ’97, except that’s the
only report I’'ve got before me and I don’t
know -- and if that wasn’'t covered in Dr.
Boyd’s deposition of January the 15th, 2018,
I mean, I -- I know a motion was made and I
said I would wait and consider it at that
poiht in time but it sounds like, unless
something chénges with the next witness, i
don’t think it will because they have nothing
to do with this, I think we -~ you’ve got to
go back to Dr. Boyd and ask him those
questions. Unless it’s in there, I mean, you
all -- you all covered it; I -- I --

Mr. Beard: 1It’'’s -- it’s not because the
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records weren't available; we didn’t have the
records. |

commissioner wilkerson: -~ I don’t
know. I -- as you know, I don’'t read the
entire thing; I just go to what you all tell
me when we’re in here.

Mr. Samuels: No. Mr. Beard is correct.

Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay. well,
then --

Mr. Samuels: Those records were not --

commissioner Wilkerson: -- okay.
That’s fine.

Mr. Samuels: -- available at the time
of Dr._éoyd’s deposition.

| Commissioner Wilkerson: well, I think

since we’ve opened that wide gate with those

questions, unless -- I -- I would say we’ve

got to take Boyd’s -- we’ve got -- we’ve got

to patch ’97 to ’17. I don’t know how we’d

patch it; 1’11 leave that up to you all.
Mr. Beard: I agree. I don’t know how

he does it either and I'm going to withdraw

my motion to reconvene. I don’t think at

this point we have to do that anymore; I

thiﬁk the evidence has turned it around.
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commissioner wilkerson: Okay. I’1l ask
you that when we finish.

Mr. Beard: Okay.

Mr. Samuels: Bésed on your comments,
Your Honor, if there is a -- if there is a
question that those restrictions somehow‘from
1997, applied twenty (20) years with no
complaints, no symptoms, no treatment after
then, then I would at that point -- I think
if that’s where we’re going, then Mr. Beard
has made it necessary for us to depose Dr.
Boyd.

Commissioner wWilkerson: The second
hearing this week that --

| Mr. Beard: Unbelievable.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- that once
the evidence is presented everybody changes
their positions.

Mr. Beard: Somebody yesterday filed a

Mr. Samuels: well --

Mr. Beard: -- a seven (7) or eight (8)
or ten (10) page response of why I'm not
entitled to it; it’s unbelievable.

Commissioner Wilkerson: So, are you
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saying you still have the option right now to
withdraw your 507
Mr. Samué1s: ~~ to withdraw my 507
commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Samuels: well, that’s -- that’'s an

interesting question, Your Honor. I mean,

Preston McDaniel did have a case where --
Commissioner wilkerson: Here or --

Mr. Samuels: -+ he had wanted to

"withdraw his Form 50 --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- no.

Mr. Samuels: -- after the hearing and
after the record had been closed, after the
order instructions had come down but before
the - an actual order was signed and the
Supreme Court, in that case, said no, you
cannot pull your 50 at that point.

Commissioner witkerson: bkay. So,
that’s the Taw of the Tand.

Mr. Samuels: Right. So, no, I don’t --
I don’t believe I --

commissioner Wilkerson: So, how can you
withdraw -- how can you withdraw what you’ve
said about the motion that you’ve already put
on the record at 2:50 this afternoon when
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your position was totally different this-
morning at 9:457 |

Mr. Samuels: -- I --

commissioner wWilkerson: Tell me what
the difference is in withdrawing your 50 and
now wanting to reconsider your opinion at
9:45 this morning on the motion.

Mr. Samuels: -- well, Your Honor, your

-- you indicated to us at --

Commissioner wilkerson: I did.

Mr. Samuels: -- at the beginning of
this hearing thaf you would have the hearing
go forward and you would decide at the close:
of the evidence whether to reconvene Dr.
Boyd’s deposition.

Commissioner wilkerson: And if he
withdraws it it’s over or if I deny it it’s
over, right?

Mr. Samuels: I think if you deny it
it’s over but the -- the point about it as
what has come out is, you know, my -- my
position is this, my position has been that
records from 1997, are stale; they are not
probative evidence of Mr..Brailey’s condition
at the time he went to work for Michelin or
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his condition at the time he got hurt--

Commissioner wilkerson: That’s fair.

Mr. Samuels: -- particularly when there
are -- there is no history of any back
problems in the meantime. Mr. Beard has sent
out, I think, nine (9) subpoenas. There's no
history of an accident at any other job.

Mr. Beard: The only job that we’ve
gotten records from is -- would be
westinghouse and --

Commissioner wilkerson: 'Michelin.

Mr. Beard: -- D33, that's it --

Commissioner Wilkerson: D3JJ.

Mr. Beard: -- the only two (2) and one

of which he didn’t even tell us about. but --

Commissioner wilkerson: I understand.
Mr. Samuels: But there is -- there is
» ‘\ ’

no evidence of -- of any other -- any other

accidents, any other workers’ Comp claims,

‘except for 1997, twenty (20) years ago --.

Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t
disagree with that, what’s before me.

Mr. Samuels: -- which had no surgery,
the treatment was physical therapy, settled
for a nominal amount.
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Mr. Beard: -- that’s because it was --

Commissioner Wilkerson: But we don’t
know why the surgery wasn’t done or was -~
because he never got to somebody that could
tell him if it needed to be done; that’s

what’s before me. I don’t know.

Mr. Samuels: To -- but --
Mr. Beard: -- what’s before you is no
heavy work --

commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.

That's --
Mr. Beard: -- until he sees a surgeon.
commissioner wilkerson: -- and I don’t
know. I -- that’s the problem sometimes with

workers’ Comp, and you all know this, 1is’
there.may be somefhing out there or something
that's discovered two (2) years down the_road
that could have turned or flipped the whole
case but we don’t get to decide what’'s maybe
out there, what could be, what should be
there; we’ve got to make the determination
based on what I hear todéy. That’s the only
thing I can do.

Mr. Samuels: ~-- but what my -- my
position is, you have indicated that you give
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some weight to Mr. Beard’s argument that
records from 1997, say no heavy 1ifting until
he sees a surgeon are permanent restrictions
covering --

‘Ccommissioner wilkerson: I don’t --

Mr. Samuels: -- twenty (20) years.

commissioner wilkerson: -- I don’t know

until I read the whole thing. I haven’t even

read the doctor’s depo. I mean, I -- I mean
Mr. Samuels: And -- and my point is, if

that is -- if that is where you are --
commissioner Wilkerson: -- I don’t know

until I finish --
Mr. Samuels: -- but it’s --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- that’s the

~ problem.- That’s where I am now because

that’s what I'm looking -- that’s all I’'ve
got. If you all want to stop and let me read
all this stuff I can tell you where we are
but I'm not going to -- I mean, or we can
come back Monday and I can tell you where we
are. I mean, you all have had this stuff for
how long? How long have you had this case?
Mr. Samuels: -- how long have_I had
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this case?
Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Samuels: Probably August, I think. .

commissioner wilkerson: oOkay. So --

Mr. Samuels: -- 2017.

commissioner wWilkerson: -- you’ve had
it since August, I just got it today; how do
you expect to know where I am now? I mean,
we’ve Tearned stuff in here today that
neither party knew anything about. So, I
don’t know how I would know what I know rﬁght
now until I read the whole stuff.

Mr. Samuels: I agree, Your Honor, but
the -- the -- the motion to reconvene the
deposition was made to -- as I understand it,
was made to question Dr. Boyd.

commissioner wilkerson: That’s fine.
SO, you -- you agree he can’t withdraw it, 1is
what you’re sayihg? | |

Mr. Samuels: I’m saying he can withdraw
it but I'm saying I'm not bound by the
withdrawal. I think --

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. I
understand.
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Mr. Beard: He is bound by the
withdrawal when he --

Mr. Samuels: -- if he had good cause --

Mr. Beard: -~- when he opposed it in the
first place. If he had agreed with me then
he -- then he could go forward. He hasn’t --
in fact, he did everything in his power
forcing me to pay a lot -- my client to pay
me substantial money to draft a motion and to
go through all that process. He could have
very easily said, yeah, let’s go take the
deposition; he said no. we had a date, he
said, no, I'm busy and I'm not going to Tet
you do it anyway; I mean, that’s his
position. |

Commissioner wWilkerson: I understand.
I just wanted to make sure. Let’s get
through with this poor guy; he’s probably --

Witness: I’m all right.

commissioner Wilkerson: -- he’s
probably ready to go get something to eat.

Witness: I'm all right.

Mr. Lemon, when you were hired at Michelin --

Yeah.

-- di

d you have to undergo a physical exam?
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A. Yes, sir.

And have you undergone other physical exams from

o

Michelin every year or is it just the one (1)?

Just the one (1).

okay. It was a doctor who examined you?

Yes. |

Did the doctor do a thorough exam?

Yes.

Did he examine your back?

Yeah, I would say.

okay. Made sure that you could twist, turn, bend,
stoop, 1ift without any problems? | |

A. Right.

Q. And he -- and the doctor examined your back and
cleared you to work; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Even though you haven’t any problem with your
back, the doctor still examined your back to determine
that you were able to work at Michelin?

A. Yes.

Mr. Samuels: Thank you. No further
gquestions.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION.
By Mr. Beard:
Q. If you had had a prior WOrkefs’ Comp claim where
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you were advised by a doctor that you could not go back
to work and do heavy labor type of work, as I indicated
to you earlier, don’t you think you need to tell the
doctor that so he can investigate that even more
thoroughly?

Yes.

Just doing an examination -- I mean, you know
beop]e; you’ve probably faked pain before yourself
because you wanted to make sure you got a job or -- or
things of thét nature. If -- if you want the money, if
you want the job, sometimes you’ve got to eh, you know,
stretch it a lTittle bit; isn’t tﬁat true?

Yes, sir.

okay .

Mr. Beard: That’s all I have. Thank
you.

Commissioner wilkerson: Anything on
those two (2) questions or three (3)7?

Mr. Samuels: No, sir.

Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay. Can this

Mr. Samue1s:‘ The Claimant --
Commissioner wWilkerson: -- witness be
excused to go where ever he needs to go next?
Mr. Beard: Yes, sir;
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commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay. I just

wanted to make -- 1’11 ask you?

Mr. Samuels: -- no objection and -- and

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. Sir, you
may leave and go where ever -- whatever you

need to do next; you don’t have to hang

around here --

Mr. Lemon: A1l right. Thank you, sir.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- unless you
need to for rides with everybody else or
whatever --

Mr. Lemon: All right. Thank you.

commissioner wilkerson: -- it doesn’t
matter to me. Thank you, sir. I appreciate
ybu being here. Any other -- I'm sorry.

Mr. Beard: Did you --

Mr. Samuels: No other witnesses, Your
Honor.

Mr. Beard: -- did you drive yourself to
my office?

Mr. Lemon: Yes.

Mr. Beard: 1’11 get a runner to come
pick you up and --

Mr. Lemon: Okay.
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Mr. Beard: -- so you can get on back.

Mr. Lemonf A1l right.

commissioner Wilkerson: Have you got --
is that the Claimant’s case?

Mr. Beard: Can I --

Mr. Samuels: Except for the possibility
of Dr. Boyd’s deposition; yes, sir. |

commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t know if
he heard that. I think I heard it but I'm not
sure he heard it. 50; when he comes back
I'1T just get you to repeat what I think I
heard you say.

Mr. Samuels: oOkay. Wwould this be a
good time for énother two (2) minute bathroom
break?

commissioner wilkerson: Yes, if you
want to. Wwell, yes.

Mr. Samuels: Two (2) minutes.

commissioner Wilkerson: Yes. I
understand. Go ahead. we’ll just go off the
record real quick; that will make it easier
for everybody.

Mr; Beard: -- are -- that must be what
I missed --

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.
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Mr. Beard: I apologize.

commissioner Wilkerson: No.
(off The Record)

commissioner wilkerson: I told him --
he Hidn’t'understand what you said and I -- I
said -- we’'re back on the record and I asked
was this the Claimant’s case --

Mr. Beard:fiokay.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- and,
Stephen, I think -- you can go ahead and té]]
me what you said -- I think he said, except
for if I allow Dr. Boyd’s deposition to
reconvene; is that correct?

 Mr. Samuels: That’s the gist of it --
commissioner Wilkerson: Okay.

Mr. Samuels: -- yes, Your Honor.

Ccommissioner Wilkerson: oOkay. A1l
right. That’s the only -- that’s the only
thing he said.

Mr. Beard: oOkay. Do I need to respond
to that?

commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t think
so because I --

Mr. Beard: well, I mean, my response
will be, I’'m withdrawing that motion --
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commissioner wilkerson: --1I
understand.
Mr. Beard: -- because I think the

evidence has taken us to a place that --
commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Beard: -- they didn’t want it to
take us and I don’t think I need the
deposition anymore.

commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. And --
and your position was that he cannot withdraw
it --

Mr. Samuels: well --

commissioner Wilkerson: -- is that
right?

Mr. Samuels: -- I think he can but I
will say this, if he -- if he has withdrawn
the motion and cannot depose Dr. Boyd, then
he cannot meet his burden of the third prong
of the Cooper v. McDevitt and Street test -

Mr. Beard: I completely disagree.

Mr. Samuels: -- because he --

Mr. Beard: I’'ve got a --

Mr. Samuels: -- he --

Mr. Beard: -- I’ve got a report that
says he physically cannot do it and I’ve got
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"a doctor who says he physically cannot do it

now, a surgeon. I disagree with him.

Mr. Samuels: -- he --

commissioner wilkerson: I understand.

y Mr. samuels: -- he has td prove through

expert testimony a causal connection between

Commissioner wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Samuels: -- the alleged
misrepresentation and the(jnjury and that’s
got to be proven though medical evidence.

commissioner wWilkerson: I understand.

‘Mr._Samue1s: That's why I opposed
reconvening Dr. Boyd’s depositioh; he can’t
meet the burden, he --

Commissionef wilkerson: So, why do you

want to reconvene it? I mean, you can’t --

you can’t have your -- you can’t have the --

you can’t have your cake and eat it too.
| Mr. Béard: Because he knows I have met
my burden. He knows that --
commissioner wilkerson: I -- well, I --

Mr. Beard: -- he knows that that final

commissioner wilkerson: -- but you
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can’t have twb (2) positions; that doesn’t
work.

Mr. Beard: -- that final report counts
as a causation report and its sufficient to
do it and then -- and then what has
transpired, you can look at the facts that
transpired after the ]ying on the application
and exactly what happened and you can compare
2017 to 1997, yourself, and you’ve got a
medical report that says he shouldn’t have
been doing that job --

Commissioner wilkerson: I --

Mr. Beard: -- with all due respect. I
mean, we can -- again, we can --
Commissioner wilkerson: -- argue that
Mr. Beard: -- hash it out here but --
commissioner Wilkerson: -- till the

cows come home.
| Mr. Beard: --. Stephen and I both 1ike

to go to the big boy court and I don’t mind

going up there anytime -~
Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.
Mr. Beard: -- love to go up there.
Commissioner Wilkerson: we're glad you
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all take them up. wWe -- we rule on stuff
five (5) years ago that we’ve found out we’re
now wrong on of course five (5) years from |
now we may find out we were right from five
(5) years ago; I don’t have a clue.

Mr. Beard: But that’s not the only
defense of this case.

commissioner wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Beard: There’s also credibility --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I --

Mr. Beard: -- if you believe anything
that has been testified to here today.

Ccommissioner Wilkerson: -- I
understand. 1I’ve got -- this will be fun
sitting down and going through. We don’t
have many 1ike this and I'm glad you all
brought it. These are always fun. It’s not
the broken knuckle and is it the knuckle or
did it go into the hand and -- those are --
those are aggravating; these are fun.

Mr. Samue1s: And I don’t want to be too
repetitive, Your Honor, but the MRI shows a
herniated disk at L4,5 --

Commissioner wi]kefson: That’s -- 1’11
read it.
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Mr. Samuels: -- he didn’t have it
before.

commissioner wilkerson: I’m going to
read it.

Mr. Beard: We don’t know that he had it
-- didn’t have it before; we have no earthly
idea what he had before.

commissioner Wilkerson: we’ll read it
-- I'11 read it, I promise; I’11 read all of
it. 50; other than that one issue, that is
the Plaintiff’s case; is that fair?

Mr. Samuels: Yes, Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Tell me how
many you’ve got left for the Defense side. I
hear -- the rumor is everybody is gone, which
I don’t believe but --

Mr. Beard: No,. they’re not all’gone.
I've got --

Court Reporter: Oh, I'm sorry.

Mr. Beard: -- Troy Lowman, I’ve got the

Nurse, I've got Derrick Gibson and 1’ve got

Mark, so.
- Court Reporter: -- okay. Just
understand -- you know this because you were

here the other day -- I like you all but I
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don’t 16ve you all 1ike I love my grandson
and he’s got a baseball gave this evening; we
-- I can come back after his baseball game or
I’11 see you Monday, okay? Because I'm not

Mr. Beard: I'm going to be here Monday
anyway .

commissioner wilkerson: -- I'm not
giving up his Tittle baseball game for you
a11, okay? There’s a lot of things -- I’11
give up missing a dinner or whatever but I’'m
not giving up the five (5) year'o1d’s
baseball game, okay?

Mr. Beard: I understand.

Commissioner Wilkerson: So --

Mr. Beard: I’m with you.

commissioner wilkerson: -- at around
five o’clock-ish if we’re not through -- I
mean, if we close — I'm gone because he
plays at -- have I got it right? He -- they
move all over the place -- six o’clock; so,
Avery will be gone, okay?

. Mr. Beard: The only thing I can say,
commissioner, if you want -- if you want to
make a comment to the two (2) lawyers right
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now, is if we stay on what is relevant to the
case we’'ll be through, I would presume, 1in
forty-five (45) minutes with these four (4)
people because every one of them are
miniscule in nature, in my opinion, and --

Commissioner wilkerson: well, can get
through as many as we want to --

Mr. Beard: -- Stephen --

commissioner wilkerson: -- I don’t
care. I'm just trying to tell you all that

five o’clock-ish I'm going to go watch

'grandson play baseball, so.

Mr. Beard: -- I’ve got you.
commissioner wilkerson: All right.
Mr. Beard: Do you want me --
Commissionér wilkerson: Yes.
Mr. Beard: -- to call my first one?
COmmissioner wilkerson: Yes, let's keep
N

Mr. Beard: A1l right.

ACommiésioner w{ikéféonﬁwv%ﬁéi;;vjﬁstvmé.
If not we’re here Monday.
(off The Record)

Commissioner wilkerson: Stephen, I
don’t know what your schedule is; I know he

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

pe9s803) 358-0515
www. PalmettoCourtReporting.com



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

whereupon;

328

is back Monday for that case that lasted

eight (8) hours earlier this week, so. I’'m
not sure what schedule is. I apologize.

okay? we can check later; if we doni’t get

through we’l11l just check. I’m not saying --

okay, it wouldn’t be fair to you. Sir, I'1l
get you to raise your right hand; I'm going

to have the Court Reporter swear you in.

Troy Alton Lowman, being duly sworn and cautioned to

speak the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,

testified as follows:

Court Reporter: Please state your full
name for the record.

witness: Troy Alton Lowman.

Court Reporter: There’'s the Lowman; I
knew we had a Lowman in here somewhere.
okay. Thank you, sir.

commissioner wilkerson: Alton, right,
is it?

wWitness: Yes.

Commissioner wWilkerson: Troy Alton,
okay, thank you. Please, Mr. Beard.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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Mr. Lowman, if you would please tell me where are
you employed.

- Michelin Tire.

How long have you been with Michelin?

Thirty-six (36) years.

okay. Are you in US 5 or 77

Seven (7).

All right. And what is your title there?

The Training Manager for the plant.

okay. Wwhat does that mean?

That means I'm responsible for on-boarding new
people and insuring the training takes place and it’s
conducted right and -- and we’re meeting our training
referentiais’and stuff.

okay. Does that include folks who are stili in
the probationary part of their -- their hiring or their
employment process? |

It includes up to the point of validation.

okay. what dbes validation mean?

validation means you can do the job safely with

good quality while you're developing your speed.
okay. |
So, at validation you can work alone.
All right. And are you familiar with Isaac
Brailey?
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Yes.

And how do you know Mr. Brailey?
He was a new hire.

Okay. And he worked at us 77

worked at US 7, came into the training department

.training for PAP.

Okay. Wwhich means that he -- he was 1in your
department?

Yes.

A1l right. Did he ever successfully make it
through validation?

No.

All righf. So, he was in -- under your
supervision the whole time?

Right.

A1l right. New employees at Michelin, do they go
through any type of training on workers’ Compensation,
safety; those types of things?

Yes. All the new employees go through pre-work
before they get hired with EfLearnings -

Okay.

-- that talks about safety and -- and different
personnel issues and stuff.

Okay.

Then when they come into the plant, on their first
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day, they’ve got that on-boarding process and we have a
-- a portion designed just for safety and we go through
how to report +injuries and what to do.

Okay. |

And we go through the same thing with quality and
Michelin history and so on.

A1l right. Does it include workers’ Comp as part
of the safety?

It --

How do you report Workers’ Comp --

-- yes.

-- what you do on workers’ Comp?

It —- it --

A1 right.

--— it includes how to -- how to report an
accident.

“Al11 right. And do you have -- did you -- the job
you do, are you -- do you have an educational
background; did you go to college?

No.

"okay. The emp1oyee$ who are under you, are they
instructed to notify Michelin whenever someone has an
injury on the job or a workers’ Comp claim?

Yes.
All right. what is the protocol for doing that? .
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Thét all access report it when they happen --

okay.

-- and that you notify your shift Manager, you
safety spoke, you fill an accident investigation out.
If medical is not open, you go to -- you go to Security
because our Security officers are trained EMT’s and
they provide care for you.

okay. And all the new employees are notified of

~ that before they start?

Yes.

A1l right.

And we even take a tour of the hea]th center,
which is Michelin's Health Center'we have on the
corner. It’'s a family health center and the first
thing the health center lady says 1is that you do not
bring work-related injuries to us; we cannot see you,

okay. And Michelin also has Plant Nurses?

Yes.

A1l right. Does US 7 have a Plant Nurse?

Yes, US 7 --

who is it?

-~ Christy.

okay. what’s her last name?

Sirois.

okay. And Tet’s -- let’s get more specific about
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this particular case.

Uh-huh.

Mr. Brailey was working for Michelin back in --
sometime between April and -- and, I guess, September
of 2017; does that sound about right?

Uh-huh.

okay. You need to say yes or no instead of
uh-huh, just --

Yes.

-- just to make sure --

I'm sorry.

-- we get it on the record.

Yes.

when did you first become aware that Mr. Brailey
was claiming to have filed or have -- to have injured
himself on the job and wanted to make a workers’
Compensation claim?

It was June, about lunchtime. It was in June on a
saturday; I believe it was the 24th.

okay. And you said about lunchtime?

About Tunchtime, right. I know that because I was
at the Town Square Market working the market when he
called me,

okay. And what did he tell you?

He told me he was at the emergency room with back
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pains, that he’d -- had hurt his back.

Okay.

And I asked him where he hurt his back and he said
he thought he hurt it at work.

A1l right. when he told you he was at the -- at
the hospital, did he tell you this was before he was
being seen or this was after he had been seen? |

T'm assuming it’s after he’'d been seen.

Okay. And you said it was after -- it was
sometime in the -- around 12:00 or so?

Around 12:00.

A1l right. So, if the medical records from June
24th indicate that the last time he saw anyone was
around 11:02 --

Mr. Samuels: Object to the leading,
Your Honor.

-~ according to the timeline ghat Mr. Daniels --
Mr. samuels went through later with his client,
Tunchtime wou1d be after eleven o’clock in the morning;
is that fair to say?

Yes.

okay. And based upon that phone call, what did
you do?

well, he and I talked and I .explained to him the
proper procedure; that the health center was not the
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place to go to. He said he stopped by the health
center in the morning and it was closed; I said, well,
that’s not the right place to go to. I said you go see
-- you -~ you report to medical and he said, well, the
medical was closed and it is closed. I said, but the
EMT’s in Security, once you report the accideﬁi, the
EMT’s and the Security officers will take care of you
and -- and get the proper situation. And he was saying
he was at the hospital. And he then asked me how to
file workers’ Comp.

okay. So, he asked you about Workers®’ Comp,
himself, right then?

Right then.

Okay. So, he was concerned about workers’ Comp?

Uh-huh.

Yes?

Yes.

A1l right. Prior to June the 24th --

Uh-huh. Yes, sir.

-- did Mr. Brailey ever tell you that he had any

No, sir.

okay. Wwere you aware that Mr. Brailey had been to
both Lexington Medical Center on ~-- on June the 11th of
2017, and to his personal doctor on June tﬁé 13th,
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2017, claiming to haVe ten (10) out of ten (10) severe
back pain as a result of his job at Michelin?
No, sir.
He made no comments to you?
No.
would he -- would the proper procédure be to
notify you?
Mr. Samuels: oObject.
Yes. v
should you have been notified of that?
Mr. Samuels: Object to leading, Your
Honor.
Mr. Beard: oOkay.
commissioner Wilkerson: Okay. Yes.
Just -~
what is the pfotoco1 --
commissioner Wilkerson: -- proceed,
yes. )
-- when someone has an injury; who ére they
supposed to report to?
Their Manager or the Spoke.
okay. You’'re the Manager?
I am the Manager.
A1l right. The Safety Spoke would be who?
The people théy work with. we have Spoke roles;
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so, the -- the safety Spoke is responsibie for
reporting the accidents. So, you have the Manager; I’'m
not there twenty-four/seven (24/7), I’m there Monday
through Friday. So, if you get injured on the weekend
or a back stick you report it to your Safety Spoke, the
Flow Manager 1in the plant who is responsible for the
plant flow and the environment and then they would get
in touch with medical to get the proper treatment.

All right. The medical records indicate that Mr.
Brailey started complaining two (2) weeks before June
the 11th; so, somewhere in the -- to the end of May.
So, from May until June the 24th, 2017, did you work at
Michelin any of those days?

Yes.

okay. So, Mr. Brailey would have had ample
opportunity --

Yes.

-~ to notify you --
Yes.

-- and he never did?
No. -

okay. Now, if someone is claiming to have ten
(10) oUt bf ten (10) severe pain that they think is
related to their job at Michelin, is that something you

would want to know?
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Yes, most definitely.

why would you want to know that?

For their safety and for the safety of Michelin,
sir.

okay. what about their co-employees; would you be
concerned about their safety?

I would.

okay. some of the -- some of the jobs that these
folks do in US 7 require teamwork, not just single
individuals?

virtually every job requires teamwork to some
degree.

okay. So, if someone has that kind of pain, it
could impact the other employees as well?

Yes, it could.

A1l right. And it’s your testimony that at no
time béfore June the 24th had you ever heard that Mr.
Brailey had been complaining of these problems for at
Teast almost a month?

At --

Mr. Samuels: Object to 1ead1ng, Your
Honor.
-- at no time before --
commissioner wilkerson: Whoa.
-- June 24th --
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Commissioner Wilkerson: whoa, whoa,

whoa --
A. -- June 24th was the first --
Ccommissioner wilkerson: -- whoa, don’t
answer.
Mr. Beard: Yes.
‘commissioner W11kerson: Just rephrase.
Mr. Beard: Yes, sir.
Q. Prior to June 24th, 2017, had you ever been given

any indication of -- of injury or accident by Mr.
Brailey?

A. -- ho, sir.

Q. okay. Are you familiar at all with the -- the
physical examinations and the questionnaires that are-
filled out for safety purposes or for medical questions

-~ medical history questionnaires that the employees

fi11 out?
)
A. No, sir.
Q. Okay.

Mr. Beard: Thank you, Mr. Lowman.

~ That’s all I have. S -
Commissioner wilkerson: Mr. Samuels?
Mr. Samuels: Thank you, Your Honor.
CROSS~-EXAMINATION
By Mr. Samuels:
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Mr. Lowman, do your employees at Miche1in just
sort of day-to-day -- it’s pretty physical work, 1isn’'t
it? B

It is physical work. |

It requires a lot of 1ifting, pulling, stretching?

It requires 1ifting, pulling and stretching, yes.

And a lot of employees, especially when they’re
new and not used to it, they get pain, don’t they?

Yes.

I mean, that’s a normal, expected, thing?

That’s a normal, expected, thing.

You don’t want them filing a Workers’ Compensation

claim just because they’re sore from normal work, do

you?

If the pain is affecting their Tife and they can’'t
work -- they can’t function propef1y; yes --

okay . ’

-- I'd want them to report an accident.

well, what if it’s not an accident, what if it’s
just --

well --

-- pain from just the normal work; do you guys --
would you want them to report that, would you accept
that as a workers’ Comp claim?

== I'm not in the workers’ Comp; I just -- I just
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it as an accident to report and an accident

investigation. So, the accident investigation, it says

accident but pain could be an accident because you’ve

got pain from something. S

have

have

I just want to know that the -- the next time I
a claim against Michelin with somebody who doesn’t

an accident but still has pain from working that

you all will accept it.

Commissioner wilkerson: He -- that’s
not his job.

Mr. Samuels: I know.

Commissioner wilkerson: He said hev
didn’t do workers’ Comp.

Mr. Samuels: It was --

Commissioner wilkerson: He can't accept
1t because he doesn’t know what happened --

Mr. Beard: This --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- that caused
the pain.
Mr. Beard: -- this is why we don’t get

" finished before five o’clock --

Commissioner wilkerson: I understand. '

Mr. Samuels: -- it was --
Mr. Beard: -- because we go down these

tangents.
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Commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t have a
clue. Pain --

Mr. Samuels: -- it was simply --

commissioner wilkerson: -- pain is not
an accident. |

Mr. Samuels: -- it was simply a lighter

Commissioner wilkerson: oOh, I
understand.

Mr. Samuels: -- a lighter question but

commissioner Wilkerson: An accident

that causes pain is an --

Mr. Samuels: -- I think Your Honor made
my point.
commissioner Wilkerson: -- is an.

accident, okay? Pain 1is not an accident.
Mr. Samuels: That's -- and that’s
precisely my point.

Pain is not an accident and what they’re taught to

~do is how to report accidents, correct?

I would say pain is a accident, I mean, you -- you

\ .
could hurt 'your back and not have an accident. I mean,

you did something to cause your back to hurt; so, yes,
it’s a accident. Pain is the result of some kind of
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injury that happens. So, we were -- we are trained to
report injuries that happen when they happen. So, if
you notice pain in your back or if you notice some kind
of stiffness that you can’t do your job function

properly and you can’t function at home, you report it.

Q. But if you can do your job, then you don’t need to
report it --

A. Are you having --

Q. -- if it 1s just pain?

A. -- pain; that’s the question, are you having pain?

commissioner Wilkerson: And you believe
if you're having pain you can’t do your job?
witness: If you’'re having pain --
Commissioner Wilkerson: And you --
Witness: -- where your back can’t .

straighten up and you’re hunched over and you

can’t do your job, you -- you can’t do it.
commissioner wilkerson: -- okay.
That’s fine.

witness: I mean, but you may not have
-- you may not have "had an accident, okay? -
Commissioner wilkerson: That’s fair.
Witness: My knee has pain But did I
have an accident and cause my knee to hurt?
Q. And your -- you’ve already testified that people
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new in the job are going to have pain but fhaf’s not
going to be considered an accident, right?
NO.
Just getting used to it because it’'s hard work?
You’ve got to get in shape --
Mr. Beard: Commissioner, again --
-- work up to it?
Mr. Beard: -- I'm going to object.
He’s already testified he doesn’t do workers’
Comp; he doesn’t understand the nuances of
what we're talking about; that’s a -- that’s
an --
Commissioner wilkerson: He doesn’t do
workers’ Comp.
Mr. Beard: -- that’s actually a legal
question. |
Commissioner Wilkerson: And he doesn’t
do workers’ Comp.
Mr. Beard: Whether it’s an accident or
not is a legal question.
commissioner Wilkerson: And he doesn’t
get to decide it nor does this gentleman get
to decide 1it; the insurance carrier gets to
decide it.
Mr. Samuels: That I understand but --
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Commissioner Wilkerson: The Employer --

Mr. Ssamuels: -- the question --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- does not get
to decide..

Mr. Samuels: -- but he’s -- he’s

testified about training people about
reporting accidents; he used the word
accident. So, if he is the Trainer then he
should be able to -- to testify that we
accept -- if -- if everybody who takes the
job 1is going to be sore and feé1 pain until
they get used to it, are they wanting them to
report that as an accident?

Commissioner Wilkerson: well, it can’t
be everybody; the last guy said he didn’t
have any problem. So, 1t‘can’t be everybody.
He's never

Witness: Everybody does not --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- had a muscle
strain.
"7 ‘Witness: -- have pain, okay? =~ -

Mr. Beard: with all due respect --
witness: A new.person into the job
could develop pain if you’re not in shape.
Mr. Beard: -- he’s -- he’s testified
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that they should notify them if they are 1in
pain; that’s-what he said..
Witness: Yes.

Mr. Samuels: I think counsel is

'testifying --

Mr. Beard: No.

Mr. Samuels: -- to this guy’s
testimony.

Mr. Beard: A1l right. well -- well,
Commissioner, you heard it; with all due
respect, come on.

Commissioner wilkerson: I’m here
Monday; I don’t care.

Court Reporter: I am too.

Mr. Samuels: All right.

And, Mr. Lowman, let’s talk about what happened on

Uh-huh.

So, you received a call from Mr. Brailey?
And he was reporting an accident to you?

And he told you it happened that morning at 5:307

He was reporting to me that he was at the hospital

with pain in his back and thinks that he hurt it at

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac cCircle Lexington, SC 29073
(803) 358-0515
www . Pap7)4:toCourtReporting.com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

. 5 |

22

23

24

25

o

O >» o » o »

> O »- 0 > O >

347

work around 5:30. I canft remember. I -- I put it
down in my notes but I can’'t remember what time it was.
Do you have notes on this? Did you create a paper
record of his report of an accident?
Yes. |
where is that, sir?
- where 1is it?
where is it? It’s never been produced to me.
It’s --
Did you do an accident report?
---no. I -- I did a documentation of what our
phone conversation was.
Okay. Is there supposed to be an accident report
done when somebody makes a -- a claim?
- There should be, yes.
okay. who -- who does that?
The safety Spoke and the employee who was injured.
Okay. so, you’ve got this report now --
No, I don’t have the report now.

-- no, I don’t mean now. I mean, you -- forgive

- -me,--bad---~-bad-way to-ask-the-question. “You got this -~~~ -

phone call from Mr. Brailey reporting the accident at
work at Michelin?

Yes.

You took some kind of notes?
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Yes.

And those are somewhere; do they sti1j exist?

Yes. |

Michelin has there somewhere? Do you have them?

Yes.

Do you keep them in a file?

Yes.

Okay._ Is it a file of accidents? 1Is it a safety
file? 1Is it Mr. Brailey’s file?

It’s just a Tist of documents that I maintain.
It’s a coaching session, a document session; a

documented phone call.

All right.
Yes, sir.
So --

Yes, sir. Yeah.

-- when Mr. Brailey reports to you that there is
an accident, was an accident report ever filled out at
Michelin?

No. Because Mr. Brailey has to be there to fill
one 6ut so he can put the facts into it.

A1l right. When he came to -- do you know if he
was ever asked to fill out an accident report? ,

He was asked to come back into work and then we
could fill an accident report out.
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was he asked to come back and specifically to --
to fi11 out an accident report?

No. He was asked to come back to work.

Did anybody --

He was asked to report the accident to Security,
which in turn would generate an accident investigation.
He was asked to report back to the plant to -- to
report to Security to let them know of his issue and
that would have initiated the accident report and
investigation going on.

-- and I'm sorry, sir, you didn’t testify to that
and I don’t see any record of that in --

Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes, he did.

-- the progress notes for a particular case,
Michelin records.

Commissioner wWilkerson: He did testify
to it. He said there was a three (3) prong
system that if nobody 1is there on the
weekends that their -- all their Security is
trainéd as EMT’s, EMS’s, and thatfs the last

- - =~ resort of reporting anything-and whomever
that is would take him to the proper place he
needed to go to; so, he did testify to it.

Mr. Samuels: He testified that that was
‘the procedure that, essentially, should have
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happened.

Commissioner wilkerson: But it didn’t.

Mr. Samuels: It didn’t.

Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay.

Mr. Samuels: But now that he has
reported -- now that Mr. Brailey has reported
to Mr. Lowman --

-- did anybody do an investigation?

Ccommissioner Wilkerson: That's --
that’'s a fair question.

No, because he didn’t report back to work.

Even though he was sent to Dr. Izard?

He did not --

You still didn't do -- you still didn’t do an
investigation or create any kind of accident report?

-- no.

If I understood your testimony, Mr. Brailey
telling you -- he was calling you from the emergency
room?

I believe that’s correct. |

Were you aware he had Teft the emergency room by
11:027

NO.

Did you have any involvement with any of his work
restrictions or getting him back to work or anything
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Tike that?

A, He never returned to work, so --

Q. A1l right. were you involved with his termination
at all?

A. -- no.

Q. Okay. This probationary period people have --

A. Uh-huh. | |

Q. -- is it ninety (90) days?

A. A hundred and eighty (180).

Q. A hundred and eighty (180)?

A. (Nodded head in an up-and-down motion).

Q. A1l right. so, at the time that Mr. Brailey had
his work accident on June 24th, he was still well
within the probationary period?

A. Yes.

Q. And the probationary period Michelin, basically,
reserves the right to terminate for any reason?

A, Yes.

Mr. Samuels: No further questions.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Beard: e , B

Q. If Mr. Brailey would have ever returned to the
plant as instructed, what wou]d have occurred?

A. We would have completed an accident investigation.

Q. Okay. How'wou1d you have done that, by
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interviewing him?

Yes.

Okay. And did he ever give any explanation for
why he wasn’t returning to work --

No. He didn’t --

-- or did you ever even hear from him again?

-- he didn’t return my phone calls.

Okay. Now, I asked you if he notified you about
his problems on June the 11th and June the 13th and you
indicated no; is that correct?

correct.

On June the 11th we have a report --

Mr. Beard: -- Commissioner, it’s page
13 of the Claimant’s APA’s.
He was there seeing the Lexington Medical Center

Hospital ER folks and this was his complaint: Back

~ pain after 1ifting at work. Does that sound Tike an

accident to you?

Back pain after 1ift1ng at work?

Yes.

It cod1d be.

Okay. would you want your employee who was severe
enough in back pain to go to the hospital claiming it
was lifting at work; would you want them to tell you
that?
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I would want them to tell me that.

okay. And he didn’t tell you that, did he?

No, sir. / |

A1l right. And had he told you that, what kind of
precautions or actions would you have taken?

Had he have told me that we would have gotten him
in contact with medical to have him -- to have him
evaluated and provide the proper treatment.

Okay. You could have determined whether he is
physically capable of doing the job?

 VYes.

A1l right. The report says, the patient was doing
some heavy 1lifting at work prior to the onset of his
pain. He didn’t tell you that, did he?

No.

To your knowledge did he ever tell anyone in
management that or anyone in that chain, the Spcke,
you, any of those folks?

Not thai I'm aware of.

okay.

Claimant’s APA’s, June -- this is June the
13th of 2017.
I think I understood you testified that Mr.
Brailey did not tell you he went to his personal doctor
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on June 13th with Tow back pain; is that right?

Correct.- )

It says, has had a‘new job at Michelin moving
heavy stuff, there now for about the past two (2)
weeks, having Teft lower back pain for the past two (2)
weeks, and I'm quoting the report, “Pain is ten (10)
out of ten (10)”. Now, if you’'ve got an employee with
pain that is ten (10) out of ten (10) that they are
saying has been going on fbr multiple weeks after
starting to 1ift heavy stuff, would you want.to know
that?

Yes, I would.

Does that make you question whether that person
would be physically capable of performing your job?

Yes.

Okay. And had Mr. Brailey to]d_you that, you
could have properly investigated it, cobrect?

correct.

It's hard to do that years after or a year after

Yes, it 1is.
Okay. Are you aware that Mr. Brailey previously
worked at a company called Richtex Bricks in 19977
. *  Mr. samuels: Your Honor, objection,
beyond thé scope of cross.
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
www.Pa}qzztOCOurtReporting.com



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

- 21

22

23

24

25

. 355

Mr. Beard: I’11 withdraw.
Commissioner wilkerson: It is.
Mr. Beard: No further questions.

Commissioner wilkerson: Thank you.

RECRQSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr. samuels:

A1l right. so, Mr. Lowman, your testimony is that
if Mr. Brailey had told you he’d gone to the emergency
room on June 1lth or actually Urgent Care on June 11th
and his family doctor on June 13th, you would have
filled out a report and investigated?

I would have had him report to Medical first’
because everything that is work-related should go
through Medical first and not through your personal
physician; when you go through your personal physician
it’s more personally related. Everybody is trained to
go through Medical to report it in the proper way.

I’ve got that.

Okay.

That’s not really my question. My question is,

disn’t 9t true that Mr. Brailey reported an accident on

June 24th and neither you nor anybody else at Michelin
did an investigation?
That is correct because Mr. Brailey did not return
back to work into the production environment, into the
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac circle Lexington, sc 29073

(803) 358-0515
www. Palp723toCourtReporting. com



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

> 0o »r O >

> O > 0O

356

plant.

And isn’'t it also true that no one did the
Michelin Accident Report from thatyJune 24th accident?

That is true.

And I know you want to put this on Mr, Brailey but
he is a new employee, you’re the Manager; don’t you
guys have a responsibility to fill out reports?

we do.

"And you didn’t do that in this case, did you?

We didn’t because I couldn’t --

Even --

-- I could not determine if it was work-related.

I talked to Mr. Brailey, he was at his personal doctor;
I asked him to come back to Medical to report it to
Security, he failed to do that. So, at that point, in
my judgment, it’'s personal and it’s notvwork—re1ated.

-~ S0, you don’t fill out a report?

correct.

Even though he told you it was work-related?

He failed to come in to -- to even sit down and

talk about it. Sso, I could not call him back; I tried

‘ca111ng him back and he didn’t return my phone calls.

well, didn’t he go to Miche11n’s company doctor?
He did but I don’t -- I don’t work with Michelin’s
company doctor; I don’t work with him, I'm not in an
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office with him. The Michelin company doctor is over
here (indicating); I'm over here 1in this facility
(indicating). /

Wouldn’t somebody have met him when he was at the
Michelin company doctor?

Security, EP, wou1dvhave sent him up to the
doctor. So, you come into a different gate at the us 5
facility, I’'m at us 7, and Security Tlets you into the
gate and you go up this -- up this walkway to the
doctor. So, I didn’t know he was coming and it was
being handled through Medical; that’s all I can say.

Medical, 1is there a Nurse?

Yes.

That’s christy -- I don’t know how to pronounce
her name?

Christy Sirois or Janet Ruoff.

Christy Sirois or Janet Ruoff?

Uh-huh.

Court Reporter: could we get a spelling
on Janet’s name -- last name, please?
- oo Mri- Samuels: R-U-0 ---
~ Commissioner Wilkerson: I misunderstood
~you, Mr. Beard --
Mr. Samuels: -- okay.
commissioner wilkerson: -- I thought
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yoﬁ said forty-five (45) minutes for four
(4), you meant forty-five (45) per the four
(4. I’'m sorry I misunderstood you; so,
we’re three (3) more hours. Okay. My fault.

Court Reporter: I never did get the
spelling for Janet’'s last name.

Mr; Beard: R-U-0-F-F, Ruoff.

Court Reporter: Thank you.

So, if we have a letter from a lady named Sharon
West and she says we have investigated this claim,
talking about Mr. Brailey’s claim; that’s not a true
statement, is it?

Mr. Beard: Commissioner --

who is Sharon west?

Mr. Beard: -- Commissioner, with all
due respect, he has already said he’s not
part of the workers’ Comp process, Sharon --

Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t think
he knows.

Mr. Beard: ~- I will stipulate Sharon
West is the Adjustor --

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Beard: -- for workers’ comp and
this gentleman couldn’t possibly answer this
question.
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Commissioner wilkerson: I mean, I don’t

know. |

Mr. Beard: And Stephen knows --

Commissioner Wi?kerson: He doesn’t know
anything --

Mr. Beard: -- he can’t answer the
question.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- about

workers’ comp. This is a procedure guy; the
gist of his discussion is, your guy never
followed the procedure. Since he never
followed the procedure, he doesn’t do any
investigations; is that fair?

Witness: That’s fair.

Commissioner wilkerson: okay. That’s
what I thought 1’d heard for --

Witness: Wwe have procedures to do but T

Commissioner wilkerson: -- thirty—two

(32) minutes.

procedure. If you don’'t --
Commissioner wilkerson: He didn’t
follow the procedure.
Witness: -- I don’t know this -- Sharon
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West, I’ve never met her in my thirty-six
(36) years with Michelin.
Mr. Samuels: Fair enough. Thank you,
Mr. Lowman. No further questions.
Mr. Beard: One question, Mr. Lowman.
. FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr, Beard:

Q. Healthworks, where Dr. Izard is Tocated, that’s
downtown Columbia; that’s not out at the plant,
correct, or do you even know?

A. I have no idea where Healthworks is.

Q. Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Beard: That’s all I have.
A. I’ve never been there. |
Mr. Beard: That’s all I have. Thank
you, sir. /
Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay. Because

I thought it was at Michelin. I learned

something too. Thank you. Do we need to

keep this gentleman for anything or can he be
dismissed to go?
Mr. Samuels: He can be dismissed, Your
Honor --
Commissioner wilkerson: okay.
Mr. Beard: Fine --
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Mr. Samuels: -- as far as I'm
concerned.
Mr. Beard: -- fine by me to go.

Commissioner wilkerson: okay.

Mr. Beard: Yes, sir.

- Commissioner wilkerson: Sir, you --
you’re dismissed. Thanks.

Mr. Lowman: Al1 right. Thank you.

Commissioner wilkerson: Wwho is next?

MPr. Beérd: Nurse Sirois.

(off The Record)

Commissioner wi1kerson: Ma’am, raisé
your right hand; we’re going to swear yod in
and take some testimony.

whereupon;

Christy Sirois, being duly sworn and cautioned to speak
the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,
testified as follows:

Court Reporter: Please state your full
name for the record.

Witness: christy Sirois, =~ =

Court Réporter: Yes, we’ve had a Tlot of
people -- \

Commissioner wilkerson: Spell +t, just
for the record --
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Court Reporter: -- spell the Tast name,
please.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- we’ve got it
but --
N Witness: S, as in Sam, I-R-0~I-S, as 1in
Sam.

Court Reporter: Thank you.
witness: You’re welcome. \
Court Reporter: All right. I'm done
with her; you can have her. j

Mr. Beard: Thank you, ma’am.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Beard:

o r O > o ?' o

Do you care if I call you Christy?

That’s fine.

Okay.

Yes, sir.

Christy, where are you employed?

I'm employed with Palmetto Health, Healthworks.

Okay. And as part of your emp1oyment, where are

you actually -- where is the physical Tocation that you

work?
It is at Michelin in Lexington.
Okay. And are you in US 5 or us 7?
I'm at us 7.
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A1l right. And you serve as the Plant Nurse?

Yes. |

Okay. what are your days of work --

I -

~- and hours?

-- I work Monday through Friday --

Okayﬂ

-- but I take calls twenty-four/seven (24/7).

A1l right. And you have been the Plant Nurse at
the Us 7 plant for how long? |

For US 7 I've been there a little over four (4)
years but I started at 5 --

\ Okay. |

-~ a year prior to that.

A1l right. And you were the Plant Nurse
throughout the year 20177

Yes.

That would have included all of June of 20177

Yes, s

All of May of 20177

5 — Yes..__ e e e e e e e e e e o e e e w e i e e e e e e+

Okay. Do you know Mr. Brailey?

Not personally. I -- I saw him when he came into
Healthworks to see Dr. Izard. I may have done his new
hire drug screen and set him up for an appointment but
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I cannot remember.

A1l right. when you say when he came into his
appointment wjth Dr. Izard at Healthworks, are you |
talking about the downtown office of Healthworks?

Yes.

bkay.

The 1333 Taylor Street location.

A1l right. so, that'wou1dn’t have been out at the
plant?

That was out of the plant. That was the Monday
after the weekend of tﬁe incident. |

No. what I'm saying is -- so, you all came
downtown for the visit -- |

Yeah.’ I brought the chart --

-- the visit that to doctor --

-- I brought the chart to Dr. Izard when he saw
him, so.

-- okay. Downtown?

Downtown.

ATl right. so, tell me, chronologically, what yoh
recall from June the 24th of 2017.

What I recall is, on a Saturday I received a call
from the Shop Manager asking me if'I knew‘anything
about Mr. Brailey and an injury or anything and I»did
not.
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Okay. And the shop Manager would be who?

That would have been Tyrone Gilmore.

Okay. A1l right. And then -- so, what happened
after that?

I told him I did not know. He asked me couid I
try to follow up with that and he sent me Mr. Brai]eyfs
number.

Okay. -

So, that was on a Saturday.

All right.

I called Mr. Brailey and asked him, you know, what
happened and what was going on.

Okay. There is a document that’s been submitted
into evidence by Mr. Brailey and his attorney dated
June 24th, 2017. \

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, this would be
page -- |
Commissioner Wilkerson: 88.
‘ME. Beard: -- 88 of the Claimant’s
APA’s.
R Commissioner Wilkerson: Yes.
Witness: Let me get my glasses.
Mr. Beard: Do you need those too?
witness: Yeah, I’11 need them.
Let me ask if that’s an entry you made on June
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24th, 20177

okay. oOkay.

Did you make that entry?

I did. , )

okay. And so -- so, when did you ultimately
actually talk to Mr. -- this may help you -- did you
actually talk to Mr. Brailey? “

I cannot remember -- I -- I cannot give you the
exact time; I just remember it was on a Saturday and it
was probably the afternoon. I actually had calied and
called and called -- . |

Okay.

-- and I couldn’t get in touch with him. And I
called Tyrone back and let him know I was not able to
get in touch with him and reach him. And I think
Tyrone finally got in touch with him or sent him a text

and let him know that I would be calling. And then, I

finally talked to him; so, it was probably later in the

afternoon on that Saturday.

Okay. It says here, I called the employee on 6/24
arouﬁd 3:57 P.M. -- |

Uh-huh.

-- and what did Mr. Brailey tell you?

He had told me that -- well, Tlooking at the note
-~ that his back had started to ache when he was on the
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PAP and he went to the Lexington ER -- he héd actually
went to the Michelin Family Health Center, which was |
the non-ops center but they were closed. And I
explained to him thét, you know, you could have come to
US 7 Medical or Security; that would have been the
protocol. And I asked him if he had -- T think I
remember -- I can’t say for sure if he had reported it
to anybody. b

okay.

I don’t Eemember.

A1l right.

But -- and then, he had just told me -- T asked
him did he have anything radiating, anyAnumbness, you
know, when it happened, how did it happen and then I
think afterwards he had -- he had stated they had
diagnosed him with a Tumbar strain and he told me the
medication that he was given.

Okay. Did he tell you how it happened?

Not specifics, no.

Okay.

I -- he was very vague on how it happened, so.

It says here 1nAthe report, employee denied .
anything specific that started the pain at work and he
denies anything personal outside of work --

Right.
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-- 1is that what he told you?

Right.

Okay. |

That he didn’t really know. That he denied any
specific incident; he just starfed having the back
pain.

ATl right. Prior to June the 24th of 2017, had
you ever heard of or had any communications at all
about Mr. Brailey?

~ No. |

were you aware that Mr. Brailey had been treating
with both the hospital and Lexington Medical Center and
his personal doctor before this June 24th, 17 dincident
about his back?

NoO.

Okay. If someone goes to the doctor or the
hospital or anywhere and claims to be having back pain
to the point that it’s ten (10) out of ten (10) back
pain and they are relating it to the job that they do
out at Michelin, 1is that something that should have
been reported to you or the Bull or the safety Spoke or
the Manager or someone?

Yes.

Okay. To your knowledge had that ever happened
before June the 24th? |
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To my know]edge; no.

Okay. As a Nurse, 1in your opinion, is it safe for
someone who is claiming to be in ten (10) out of ten
(10) pain to continue to do the very thing that they
are claiming to cause them ten (10) out of ten (10)
pain?

NoO.

okay. Do you do some of the physicals and do
these medical questionnaires that the -- that the new
employees fil1l out?

No, T do not.

Okay. If Mr. Brailey had contacted you prior to
June the 24th of ’17, and told you that he was 1in ten
(10) out of ten (10) pain that he thought was related
to doing the Tifting that he was doing out on the us 7
PAP Operator job, what would you have done?

I would have brought him in for an assessment and
then I would have referred him to Dr. Izard for further
evaluation.

Okay. And when he did finally contact you on June

I did. I set him up for Monday, which was the
first business day that he could see pr. Izard downtown
at Healthworks.

A1l right. And you accompanied him to that visit;
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-- okay. And did you -- were you notified of the

results of the visit?

Yes.

Okay. Did Mr. -- was Mmr. Brailey supposed to
return to see Dr, Izard after that?

He was, on Wednesday.

So, two (2) days later on the 28th?

Yes.

Okay. Did he do that?

No.

Do you know why he didn’t do that?

I called him, because Dr. Izard had came to the
plant, and he stated that he did not have a way.

He, being Mr. Brailey, said that?

Mr. Brailey, yes. '

Okay. Were -- was Mr. Brailey notified that
Michelin would come and get him and make sure he got
there or that --

Yes. |

== transportation would be provided?

Yes. |

And did he show up?

No.
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Okay. And this was on a day when pr. 1zard was

Q.

actually coming out to the plant on Wednesdays?
A. Yes.
Q. Is that the only day he comes to the plant?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay.

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, that's al] I
have. ‘

Commissioner wilkerson: Okay. Please,
answer any questions that Mr. Samuels may
have.

Witness: oOkay.

Commissioner wilkerson: Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr. Samuels:

Q. Ms. Sirois, you received this phone call from
Tyrone Gilmore --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- that Mr. Brailey had been to the emergency room
and had reported a work accident, correct?

A. Yes, i S

Q. And you got that call about 9:30 {in the morning?

A. I would estimate, yes, around that time.

Q. Okay. And -- and we know that because this record

that you created here at page 88, that was at 9:30,

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073
(803) 358-0515
www . PalR739toCourtReporting. com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

372

right?

That is when I wrote -- put it in the next
business day that I come into work because I'm not at
wdrk on Saturday.

A1l right. Even though it’s dated June 24th,
20177

I put the date -- when I go in oHM I put the date
in there of when I actually had the conversation.

Okay. So, you're thinking the conversation you
had was about 9:307?

And then I write in the time --

okay.

-- of what I remember from the conversation. I
may or may not have wrote a time on that one --

okay.

-- I wbu]d have to review it, look at it and see.

And you understood that Mr. Brailey had called
Tyrone from the emergency room?

I do not recall that he called him from the
emergency room, no. |

Okay. And what he did report was a work-related

accident; is that correct?

I do not know.
well, he reported -- well, your notes -- left back
pain that started on 6/24/17, while stretching and
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pulling rubber?

Yes.

That would be something he would be doing at
Michelin, right? -

well, if that’s -- yes.

And that’s what he told you as to when his back --

On that Saturday?

-- yes, ma’am.

He was very‘vague that day when 1 was asking the
questions how it started and I will not -- I will Tet
them exp]ajn what happened. To start with he said
nothing specific and I said, well, is there’s something
that happened out of work and he said, no. He was
very, kjnd of, backwards-and-forth. And then, I said,
you need to tell me whefe it happened because I can’t
tell you where it happened. So, I said -- he said it
happened at work. And I said, well, then, how did it
happen at work. And then, that's what he told me.

Stretching and pulling rubber?

That's what he told me, yes.

And that’s what you wrote down?

Yes. That was on Saturday.

Did you do any investigation of his accident?

No.

who would normally --
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I do not --
-- do that?
-- that would be safety.
Okay. Did you speak to Safety about what had
happened with Mr. Brailey?
I updated them.
And do you know whether they did any kind of
investigation?
They usually always do an investigation on that.
Do they create a written report of an
ihveStigation?
They shou1d but I did not éeé'that.
Okay. You ultimately prepared a Form 12-A; 1s
that right?
Pardon me?
You ultimately prepared a Form 12-A, a First
Report of Injury?
(Shook head in a side-to-side motion).
You did not?
First -- is it the First Report of Occupational?
Yes. I’11 -- 1’11 show it to you.
The FROI?
Commissioner Wilkerson: Probably not.
This form right here on page 87.
Yes.
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This?

Yes.

Okay.

Yes, that one I created.

On June 27, 20177

Yes.

And you wrote, employee stated that he was
stretching rubber and his Tower back started to ache;
he kept working and the pain got worse. He did not
notify you?

" Yes.

I assume by not notifying anyone you’re saying
that the first notification came when he was already at
the emergency room?

I do not know that. My notification came on
Saturday after he had been 1in the emergency room.

Right. June 24th, 20177 |

Uh-huh.

If an employee had back pain coming from work,
went to a doctor, you would want to know that they were
under no work restrictions; isn’t that true?

I would want to know, yeah, if they had
restrictions --

Okay.

~- Or no restrictions.
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A1l right. And if Mr. Brailey went to Lexington
Medical Center Urgent Care on June 11th, 2017, and his
family doctor on June 13th, 2017, and was not given
work restrictions, you would be comfortable relying on
those doctors to let him work --

NO.

-- would you not? No? You wanted him to go to
Dr. Izard?

Yes.

Because Dr. Izard is the company doctor?

He is.

And Dr. Izard -- so, you -- you took Mr. Brailey’
to Dr. Izard --

I did not --

~- or met him there?

~-- take him; I told him that he would need to see
Dr. Izard and gave him the address and I went there
with the chart because it was first thing when they
opened and I did not have time to fax or mail; I went
straight from'my home to Healthworks that morning.

And you say the chart, what’s the chart?

It would be my notes or his new hire charts, a
file --

| Okay.
-- and his new hire records and stuff that he
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filled out would be in there.

Okay. That would have included the -- being
cleared for full duty work after the physical exam?

No, because I did not havg that.

Okay. That’s not part of the chart?

No. I didn’t have -- I didn’t know any of that
information. bh, you mean the new hire?

when he was hired.

The new hire? Yes. That would have been part of
the chart, vyes.

Okay. So, this document -- I will show this to
you. I’m going to show you é document received from

Michelin that is in response to a subpoena; do you --

~are you familiar with this document?

Yes, I am.

what is jt?

This is whenever they are a new hire and they go
to Healthworks and get examined by a physician; this is
how I know that they are clear to work at Michelin.

Okay. Do you recognize the signature?

That looks 1ike possibly Dr. Tomarchio.

Dr. Tomarchio?

Uh-huh.

He’'s one of the doctors at Healthworks?

Yes.
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Okay. 1Is he a good doctor?

He is.

He does a very thorough physical exam?

I'm not there at Healthworks but I would assume
SO, yes.

And when Mr. Brailey -- didn’t you -- were you 1in
with Mr. Brailey when Dr. Izard examined him?

No, I was not.

Do you know what Dr. Izard’s diagnosis was?

Lumbar strain.

okay. Did you know he also seemed to think that
Mr. Brailey had a urinary tract infection?

Yés, based on' the symptoms that he 1isted on his
injury report he had to fi11l out when he was there.

He did not prescribe anything for the urinary
tract infection though, did he?

No. He referred him to see his doctor based on
the\symptoms he was having --

Okay.

-- to see if(there was anything else going on.

Did he order an MRI?

No.

Are you aware that Mr. Brailey ultimately had an
MRI?

I do not remember. If I -- if he had had an MRT
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it would have been after the incident and then I
received those results.

wWere you aware that he had an MRI that showed a
herniated disk at L4,57

No.

Were you aware that he has a Neurosurgeon who has
taken him out of work and is recommending he have
surgery?

when did that occur?

That occurred -- I'm not going to look through and
give you the --

was that after --

-- exact date --

-- was that after --

-- but I will tell you it was after --

-- if it was after --

-~ yes.

-- then I have it followed --

Yes. o

-- with the case --

Yes.

-- SO.

Yes, it was after.

Yes.

It was --
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Commissioner Wilkerson: In September or

thereabout --
Mr. Samuels: -- okay.
Commissioner Wilkerson: -- I think.

That’s when he saw the Neurosurgeon, I think.
He saw some other doctor in that. He didn’t
see Dr. Boyd unti1; what, August or
September?

- Mr. Samuels: I believe it was August.
He saw the PA July 24th.

Commissioner wilkerson: 1In August of

17, okay.

As a Nurse, if somebody has a work accident, has a
herniated disk at L4,5 and should have surgery,
wouldn’t you agree that person should be treated and
kept out of work?

That depends at -- yeah, they would need to be
restricted. I don’t always necesséri]y agree with a
herniated disk as having surgery, you know, that’s
based on the doctors and the doctor’s opinion. It --
it all depends on the symptoms and, ]ike I say, I have
not reviewed his chart and looked at anything; so, I
can’t give you a solid answer on that one.

Ltet’s put it this way, wouldn’t you agree that a
doctor who had an MRI and was a Neurosurgeon was better
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Mr. Beard: COﬁmissioner, I -- I would
object to that. other than to say, if that’s
true, I want you to listen to what he just
said ~-

Commissioner wilkerson: I got it.

Mr. Beard: -- then every IME he ever
gives you needs to be thrown in the trash
can.

Commissioner wilkerson: I agree.
That’s why I say --

Mr. Beard: I --

Commissioner Wi1kerson: -- you’ve got
to be careful --

Mr. Beard: -~- I object --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- what you say
in one case --

Mr. Beard: -- yes.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- it carries
over to the next case.

Mr. Beard: I object to the question,
though, as he -- he’s improperly --

Commissioner wilkerson: You may want
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her to answer it.

Mr. Beard: -- well, he's -- it's --
it’s an improper question. There’s no way
she can -- every single surgeon says
something different; they don’t all agree on
everything.

Commissioner wilkerson: I understand.

Do you want her to answer that or not.

Mr. Samuels: If she’s able. If she's
not able to answer it, that’s fine -- |

Commissioner wilkerson: okay.

Mr. Samuels: -- I'1] move on to

something else.

Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay. vso, we
should throw all IME’s out, right, both
sides; is that right?

Mr. Samuels: That’s not what I said,
Your Honor. What I ~- what I said was --

Commissioner Wilkerson: That wasn’t the
question.

Mr. Samuels: -- that --

Commissioner wilkerson: I just asked.

Mr. Samuels: -- that --
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Commissioner wilkerson: And notice T
said both éides because we get them both
ways. “

Mr. Samuels: -- what I'm saying and I
understand his argument, what I'm saying is
that Dr. Izard, who disagreed with --

Commissioner wilkerson: A Neurosurgeon.

Mr. Samuels: ~- a Neurosurgeon,
Doctor’s Care and the --

Commissioner Wilkerson: But --

Mr. Samuels: -- and the emergency room,
is not as well placed as Dr. Boyd 1is, in
particular, because Dr. Boyd had the MRI.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- when was the
MRI done? . |

Mr. Samuels: I’m going to say August
but I would have to look for sure.

Commissioner wilkerson: So, none of
those other doctors had that?

Mr. Beard: Nor did Dr. Izard.

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes, that’s
what I'm saying. No -~ no doctor had that,
SO --

Mr. Samuels: The MRI was done July
29th, 2017.
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Commissioner wilkerson: -- and we don’'t

-- we don’t know what happened between June

.llth, 13th, 24th -- we don’t have a clue what

happened.

Mr. Samuels: Wwell, we do know What
happened on June -- July -- on June 24th,
Your Honor, and we have --

Commissioner wilkerson: well, we had a
lot of coughing and hacking and all kind of
crazy things --

Mr. Beard: And no radiating --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- we don’t
know what caused it.

Mr. Beard: ~- and no radiating pain on

June the 24th.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t know.
I just wanted to make sure I didn’t miss it.
Mr. samuels: And we had radiating pain
and numbness at Dr. Izard on June 26th, 2017,
which he 1ignored --
Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.
Mr. Samuels: -- and did not properly
treat. /
Commissioner w11kerson:‘ I understand.
Mr. Samuels: Ms. Sirois, that’s all the
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questions I have. Thank you.
Witness: Thank you[

Mr. Beard: 3Just a couple, Commissioner.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
By Mr, Beard:
Q. Mr. Samuels showed you a physical exam note from
doctor -- how do you say his name?
A. Dr. Izard.
Commissioner wilkerson: No, the other
one.
Q. No. Dr. Tar --
A. Oh, Tomarchio.
Q. -- Tomarchio --
A. Tomarchio.
Q. -- that indicated that he was apparently -- he had

passed the physical and was fit to come work in the

pTant, correct?
A. Correct.
Q. A1l right. vYou’re a Plant Nurse, if somebody
wants a job bad enough at Michelin -- Michelin pays a
lot of money, don’t they --

- Uh-huh.

You need to answer.

Yes.

£ >» 0O >

Okay.

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073
(803) 358-0515
www.PaltlS:toCourtReporting.com



10{).

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19

20
21

22
23
24

25

386

I'm sorry.

1f somebody wants a job bad enough, can they fake
symptoms --

Mr. samuels: oObjection, calls for
speculation.

-~ can they fake --

Yes, sir.

Commissioner wilkerson: well, anybody
can fake --

Mr. Beard: He -- he started the process
by saying that, you as a Nurse --

Commissioner wWilkerson: -- no.

Mr. Beard: -- Dr. Tomarchio --

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Beard: -- is a great doctor.

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes. I think
he gets to follow back up on that doctor’'s --

Mr. Beard: Sure.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- issue.

My -- my point is this, if somebody wants a job
bad enough, even when they’re not physically capable or
if they -- they’re not physically -- they are medically
not proper]y able to do that, can they pass that
physical?

If they do not tell the truth, yes.
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Now, are you aware that Mr. --

Mr. Samuels: oObjection, Your Honor, she
has no way of knowing -- she has already
testified she doesn’t know what the physical
is --

Commissioner Wilkerson: sShe doesn’t
have any jdea --

Mr. Samuels: -- or the problem.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- if he told
the truth or not, though, does she?

Mr. Samuels: She said --

Commissioner Wilkerson: She said if
they’re not -- she just said if they’re not
telling the truth they can pass it. She
wasn’t in here.

Mr. Samuels: -- she has no way of
knowing that. '

Commissioner Wilkerson: She doesn’t
know if he told the truth or --

Mr. Beard: No way of knowing what?

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- if he did
tell the truth. she didn’t say he didn’t
tell the truth. He just -- she said, if
somebody does not tell the truth that they
can get through that initial evaluation.
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Mr. Samuels: And I would object that
she would have no way of knowing that because
she is not in the initial evaluation.

Commissioner wilkerson: You're not
listening. You’re not listening. If
somebody doesn’t tell the doctor the truth,
there is no way for that doctor to properly
evaluate somebody. It doesn’t matter if it's
your clients or Grady’s client; if somebody
is lying -- I'm trying to be nice, a
bald-faced 1iar, never tells the truth --
she’s saying that the doctor has no way to do
that and they can get through the physical if
they do all those things; is that not what
you testified to?

Witness: Yes.

Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay.

Witness: Yes.

Commissioner wilkerson: If --

Mr. Samuels: Fair enough, Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- she’s not
saying your client did that; I don’t think.
She would have no way to know that; she’s
been sitting.outside for seven (7) hours, I
think, maybe eight (8) now.
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If someone who is giving that physical and asking
those -- answering the questions on that questionnaire
that Dr. Tomarchio is reviewing and making an
assessment base upon, can they withhold information
and, 1in fact, they lie about information from the past,
is it really bossib]e for Dr. Tomarchio to do a proper
evaluation?

No.

In fact, don’t the doctors need to know that
information to follow up and investigate where
necessary --

Yes.

-- because there may be a job that this gentleman
can do that’s just not that job; is that --

Mr. samuels: oObject to leading, Your
Honor.

-- fair?

Yes.

Mr. Beard: I’'11 -- 1’11 withdraw. '

Commissioner Wilkerson: Withdraw that,
yes,

Mr. Beard: Okay.

Commissioner wilkerson: 3Just strike
that from the record.

If the record has established that Mr. Brailey has

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
www.PaP757toCourtReporting. com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

390

not been truthful on multiple documents, is it possible
for Dr. Tomarchio to have done a proper, thorough,
investigation of his condition?

NO.

Okay.

Mr. Samuels: objection, calls for
speculation.

Mr. Beard: That’s all the questions I
have.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Tell me how it
can be speculation. she just testified
earlier if you -- if they don’t tell the
truth there’s a difference in don’t tell the
truth and proper evaluation?

Mr. Samuels: She is not present when
the doctor does these examinations. There
has been testimony -- |

Commissioner wilkerson: I don't
disagree with that.

Mr. Samuels: -- there has been
testimony by another Michelin employee, two
(2) Michelin employees, including Mr.
Brailey, that the physical exam -- even if
you have no complaints about your back, it’s
still very thorough on the back.
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Commissioner wilkerson: I understand.
Those were lay-persons as you would be a
lay-person to a doctor; I would be a
lay-person. She is testifying to a medical
person and as she is a medical person. Her
testimony is that of a Nurse and what she
does dealing with doctors. She would be in a
better position to determine what medical is
than anybody sitting 1n‘this_room;

Mr. samuels: Respectfully, Your Honor,
she is not an expert; she has not been
qualified as an expert.

Commissioner wilkerson: That -- you’re
not Tistening. Do you have a medical degree?
Mr. Samuels: I do not, Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I don’t either.
Mr. Beard, do you have a medical degree?

Mr. Beard: I do not.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Do you have a
medical degree?

witness: Yes, sir.

commissioner Wilkerson: wWwhat is it in?

witness: I have my Bachelors in
Nursing.

Commissioner Wilkerson: That was what I
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just said. The only person in this room that
can testify to a medical situation, I mean,
she’s got a degree in nursing; nobody else
has that degree.

Mr. Beard: And -~ and with all due
respect, her -- her answers were not as an
expert witness --

Commissioner wilkerson: No.

Mr. Beard: -- her answers were as a

medical person.

Commissioner wilkerson: I understand;
that’s why I said that.

Mr. Beard: Mr. Samuels just, basically,
said all these other lay-people were experts
because they said it was a very thorough
examination; that’s a factual dispute that |
you will ultimately decide.

Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Beard: You’'ll get to decide that.

Commissioner Wilkerson: That’s why T
was just‘trying to make sure I didn’t miss
it.

Mr. Samuels: They know and they
testified that the doctor gives them a very
thorough- examination of their back and tested
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their ability to twist, turn, bend, stoop and
1ift.

commissioner wilkerson: But we don’t
know if we 1isting -- Tifting a gallon of
milk or pulling and sfretching a tire on any
of those, do we?

Mr. Beard: I believe the -- this --
this witness just testified that anybody
could fake a -- could fake it --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Beard: -- if they didn’t tell the
truth --

Commissioner Wilkerson: 1I’ve just got

Mr. Beard: -- and they wanted the job.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- remember it
all goes into the pot and I’ve got to figure
out what the preponderance of the evidence
is.

Mr. Samuels: If I méy, Your Honor, I’d
like to ‘introduce the work clearance from the
personnel file.

Mr. Beard: I have no objection.

Commissioner Wilkerson: o©h, that’'s --
that’'s the one you showed earlier, right?
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Mr. Samuels: Yes, Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: That’s fair.

Mr. Beard: I have no objection.

Commissioner wilkerson: Is it c-1?
Good point. We haven't done any C's, have
we?

Court Reporter: No, sir.

commissioner wilkerson: okay. I don’t
remember.

Court Reporter: we only have one
exhibit and that’'s D-1 --

Commissioner Wilkerson: D-1, okay --

Court Reporter: -- and that would be
that --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- which is
amazing in a case 1ike this.

Court Reporter: -- it is.

Commissioner wWilkerson: which is
proper.

(CLAIMANT’S EXHIBIT NUMBER ONE WAS MARKED FOR
IDENTIFICATION)
~ .Commissioner Wilkerson: Any other

questions --

Mr. Beard: None.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- of this
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witness? I’'m sorry.
| Mr. Beard: None from the Defense.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Any other

questions?
- BECRQSS:EXAMINAIIQN
By Mr, Samuels:
Q. Ms. S1ro1s you were not present when Dr.

Tomarch1o did the physical examination of Mr. Brailey,

were you?
A. No, I was not.
Q. . But you are aware that Mr. Brailey was cleared to

work full unrestricted duty by Dr. Tomarchio, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. And were not present when Jermaine Lemon would
have had a -- his pre-clearance physical exam, would
you -- were you?

A. No.

Q. And you wouldn’t have any knowledge as to how

thorough either of those exams were, would you?
A. No.
Q. Thank you.
Mr. Samuels: Nothing further.
Commissioner wilkerson: Wwe need the
Jeopardy thing now. Any other questions?
Mr. Beard: None.
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
www. PaTR7$3toCourtReporting. com



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

396

Commissioner wilkerson: oh, I'm sorry.
Okay. 1Is she -- she can leave?

Mr. Beard: She can unless she wants to
sit and wait for the last so we can all ride
together because this next witness --

Commissioner wilkerson: well, you’ve
got two (2) more.

Mr. Beard: -- just one (1).

Commissioner wilkerson: oh, I'm sorry.
Just one (1) more --

Mr. Beard: Just one (1).

Commissioner wilkerson: -- okay.
whatever you want to do, ma’am, you --

Ms. Sirois: oOkay.

Commissioner wWilkerson: -- you can go
outside.

Ms. Sirois: A1l right. Thank you.

(off The Record)

Commissioner wilkerson: Who is next?

Mr. Beard: Mark Gross, Your Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: oh, so you are
calling Mark. okay. I wasn’t sure who -~ I
wasn’t sure -- I don’t know who 1is outside.

Mr. Beard: No one is left outside.
This is the final witness --
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Commissioner Wilkerson: That’s the
happiest group -- |

Mr. Beard: -- that I will be calling.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- here, the
ones that aren’t outside. Mr. Gross, I think
you’ve been here long enough to know to raise
your right hand.

Whereupon;

Mark stephen Gross, being duly sworn and cautioned to
speak the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,
testified as follows:

Court Reporter: Please state your full
name for the record.
Witness: Mark Stephen Gross.
‘Court Reporter: S-T-E-V or P?
Witness: S—T-E-P—H—E-N.
Court Reporter: Thank you, sir.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By Mr. Beard:
Mark, where are’you employed?
I'm employed at Michelin Tire at us 7.
How long have you been working there?
At Us 7, I’ve been there since May of 2017.
Okay.
Michelin for thirty-seven (37) years.
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ATl right. And what is your title at the us 77

It’s the Safsty Manager.

A1l right. And so, you would have been the Safety
Manager about the time that Mr. Brailey actually
started working in -- in us 77

That’s correct.

A1l right. And do you know Mr. Brailey?

No,. sir.

Okay. Have you ever met him before today?

I talked to him on the phone but I had not met

him.

Okay. As the safety Manager, are you notified
when someone files a workers'’ Comp claim or makes a
workers’ comp allegation or how does that work?

As a Safety Manager if there’s any injuries or
even near misses I am notified.

Okay. Explain the process at Michelin, how are
new employees notified of the rules and the protbco]
and those types of things?

Okay. Before a person comes to work for Michelin |
there is approximately six (6) hours of computer based
training that they go through, which includes some
safety orientation and thén the first day that they.are
at the plant they start a on -- we call on-boarding
process and as part of that, on the first day the
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Safety Department has a couple hours of training time.
In that training time they are given instructions of
what to do if there is an injury, the process to report
it.

Okay. And once they come -- physically begin
working, how do they -- what other training do they
receive in safety and workers’ Compensation protocol?

Once -- once they -- besides that [initial

‘training, when they go to their specific departments

they get some training in that department, which will
include specifically who to notify if they have any
issues.

A1l right. And would. mr. Brailey have -- have

been through that process prior to June the 11th of

201772

"Yes, sir..

Okay. And you’ve, obviously, heard all the
testimony; you’ve heard the witnesses testify. To your
knowledge, did anyone in management at Michelin have
any idea that Mr. Brailey was claiming to have back
problems since somewhere around the end of May all the
way up until at least June the 24th?

No, sir.

Okay. Was anyone notified that he had been to the
hospital at Lexington Medical Center on June the 11th
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claiming to have severe back pains related to doing
lifting, heavy Tifting, at -- at the plant?

No, sir. ’

was anyone notified that on June 13th he went to
his personal physician claiming to have ten (10) out of
ten (10) pain as a result of doing heavy 1iftihg on the
job at Michelin?

No, sir.

Is that something that should have been reported
under the protocol?

.Yes, sir.

Okay. Had he done so --

Uh-huh,

-- what would have been the proper procedure?

If the -~ if he would have been having issues af
work and he would have reported it there’s a listing:
Daytime, we have the Nurse at the plant has been
testified.- In the evenings and back-shifts we have
Flow Managers, a Flow Manager on every crew that would
be notified; they would, in turn, notify Security who
would provide whatever tréatmenf was needed, 1nc1uding'
calling the Nurse if necessary.

what about the workers’ cComp process;_how -- what
kind of determination or what would have gone on as far
as whether that was workers’ Comp or not?
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At that point we're -- we’ré really not looking to
-- at workers’ Comp or not; what we’'re looking is to
get treatment -- treatment for this person.

Okay. And whether it’s workers’ Comp or not is
not an issue?

That is correct.

All right. who ultimately decides whether
something is going to be accepted, as workers’ Comp or
not out)at the plant?

It is determined by an Adjustor outsidé of the
company,

okay. And that person, you assume, is discussing
with your legal counsel?

Yes.

A1l right. 1In this particular case, how did you
become aware that Mmr. Brailey was claiming to have been
injured on June the 24th?

I got a phone call from our Plant Manager, who
happened to be in France at the time, because he had
been informed that there had been a.possib1e injury,

asking me if I had any knowledge of it and -- which 1

“did not.

Okay. And what day was that 6n?
That would have been on the 24th.
All right. And do.you have any idea or any
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recollection of what time you got the phone call?

It would have been Tate in the afternoon.

vokay. And when you got that phone call, what did
you do; what is the next process? |

I called Troy Lowman to --

Okay.

-~ who is -- who -- who was his Direct Manager, to
make sure -~ find out if he knew anything and what was
going on.

A1l right. And did Troy know anything?

Yes, at that time he did.

All right. And what was your understanding?

That Troy had gotten the Nurse involved and that
the Nurse had had contact with Mmr. Brailey and that
there was an appointment set up for Monday morning.

A1l right. And you’ve obviously seen the medical
records that have been -- or the medical documentation
that’s the Michelin documents, page 88 of C1a1mant’$
APA’s; I mean, you’ve seen that document --

Yes.

- before, correct?

Yes.

A1l right. ‘And that’s the normal -- that the
Nurse’s notes, the --

Right.
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-- what the Nurses create?

That’s correct. _

A1l right. what is the procedure following
someone making that claim and whether it’s workers’
Comp or not, what is the next procedure to take place?
In other words, Mr. Lowman explained about --

Uh-huh. |

-- coming back to the plant and fiTlling out
accident reports, what happens?

Oh, okay. 1If a person reports an injury we do an’
incident report; it typically is started by the safety
Spoke that Troy mentioned.

okay.

what is going to be done is a very quick
investigation to see is there some kind of risk out
there that caused the problem. y

Okay.

Then -- and this would be with the person that has
made he report. If the person wasn’t available, we
would wait ti11 that person came back so we could
understand exactly what happened.

okay. So, you need the actual factual basis to do
your investigation?

That’s correct.

All right. And in this case, did Mr. Brailey, to
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this day, ever come back out to the plant and give any
kind of a report or meet with you so that you could
i1l out that investigation?

He did not.

Okay. so, two (2) days Tater he goes to Dr. Izard

. on June the 26th?

That’s correct.

AT right. And has that evaluation, when did you

next become involved with his case?

It would have been on the -- two (2) days later on
the 28th.

How -- how did you become involved?

The Nurse <informed me that Mr. Brailey had a -- an

appointment with Dr. Izard that afternoon but she had
been told that he could not come: he told her -- Tsaac
told her he could not'come because he did not have a
ride.

Okay. And so, how -- what did you do then?

So, I called Mr. Brailey and we discussed -- you
know, we talked for a couple of minutes. I verified
that he didn’t have a ride to come to the plant and
when he said that was correct, I offered to send a taxi
to his house to pick him up to come see the doctor and
then take him back home.

. was it your understanding he lives fairly close to
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the plant?

That’s correct.

A1l right. And what did he say when you made that
offer? ' )

when he -- when I made that offer he immediately
said, you need to talk to my lawyer and hang up on me

Okay.

-~ hung up on me.

S0, on June the 28th, by then he already had a
1awyer or at least that’s what he represented to you on
the phone?

That’s what he represented to me on the phone.

Okay. And you’re aware he had another Tawyer
before Mr. samuels?

That’s correct.

All right.' So, at any other time after that did

you ever contact with Mr. Brailey?

I did not.

All right. And I -- I am assuming -- correct me
if I'm wrong -- did he come back and see Dr. Izard on
the 28th?

He did not.

A1l right. Now, you’ve heard about the physical

examination and the questionnaire information. .
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Mr. Beard: Let me find it here.
Commissioner, I'm looking at page 16,
Defendant’s APA’s,

Commissioner wWilkerson: I can hardly
wait till we go paperless; that’s the rumor,

one day we’re all going paperless.

Mr. Beard: It would be nice if we had a

big old screen we could all just look at.
Mr. Samuels: I'd love it.
Mr.‘Beard: That’s what they do in
Federal Court.
Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.
what is that document?
This is a health questionnaire for a post-offer
examination.
Okay. Is that something that every employee at
Michelin is required to go through?
Yes.
A1l right. And does that take place in
conjunctién with the physical examination?
Yes.
A1l right. And is this document done for a
reason?
Yes.
what is the purpose of the document?
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
321 mac circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
www. Palp774toCourtReporting. com



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

407

To find out if there’s any concerns, health-wise,
physical -- any physical concerns.

Okay. And do you rely on the answers that your
employees give you on those documents?

Yes. ‘

Okay. 1If, for instance in this case, if wmr.
Brailey had said, I do have prior back ache or injury
or pain, in fact, I had a Workers’ Comp claim,
etcetera, etcetera; would you have investigated that?

Yes.

A1l right. were you given the opportunity to
investigate that based upon his answer?

No.

All right. was any doctor given the opportunity
to investigate that based upon his answer?

No. }

A1l right. would you have instructed a doctbr to
do that had they brought that to your attention?

Yes.

A1l right. Knowing what you know now, and hearing
all the testimony you’ve heard today, and all the

information about the prior Workers’ Compensation

‘c1aim, and the fact that he had been released from

heavy duty work until seeing a surgeon, if you had
known all the information and investigated all that
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information, would that have concerned you about Mr.
Brailey? | |

Yes.

Do you -- 1in reviewing what has transpired in this
case from late May, complaining immediately upon going
into physical work up until June the 24th, making no
contact to -- with you whatsoever, does tHis sound at
all 1ike what happened in 1997, based on what you’ve
seen and heard?

Yes.

And just because Mr. Brailey may have had

pre-existing problems and if he had been honest and

- forthright, would then Michelin look to see if there

were other opportunities that he could have within the
plant?

No. Based on the questionnaire and his responses
to the questionnaire, what we would have done. is to
seek further information on the condition itself.

Okay. And let’s assume the information came back
and said he can’t do the PAP Operator job, would he
thén have to go through the process of applying for yet
a different job or you all would have looked for a --
other jobs potentially he could perform?

Probably not.

okay.
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Mr. Beard: Thank you, sir. That’s all
the questions I have.
Commissioner wilkerson: Mr. Samuels.
Mr. samuels: Thank you, Your Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr. Samuels:

Q. Mr. Gross, are the physical examinations the
doctors do important to Michelin?

A. Yes.

Q. "So, they want to make sure that the doctors do a
thorough exam?

A. correct.

Q. And that thorough exam, every exam, is going to
include an examination of the back; isn’t that true?

A. Personally, I’m not aware of exactly what the
physical exam is; so, I can’t tell you how thorough it
is. \

Got it. But you did hear Mr. Lemon testify?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And you would agree that Mr. Lemon described a
thorough examination of the back, testing whether
somebody can 1ift, bend, twist, stoop, squat and so
forth --

A. Correct.

Q. ~- 1isn’t that true?
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That is true but I -- I don’t know how much -- how

weight they’re picking up or how much twisting,

But the point is though --
Uh-huh.

-- that you’ve heard actually two (2) witnesses --

Uh-huh.

-- testify that the doctor gave them thorough

examinations of the back, right?

have

Yes, I heard that.

And you can’t dispute that, can you, because you
not been in those exams?

That is correct.

And, in fact, that examination by Dr. Tomarchio,

he cleared Mr. Brailey to work full unrestricted duty;

isn’t that true?

That is correct. |
And that was what you needed to know --
Yes, sir.

-- if the doctor cleared him; you were good to go,

right?

Yes, sir. }
And you relied on your doctors to be thorough?
Correct.
And you’ve also, I know, heard a lot of testimony
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but does Michelin want every single instance of pain or
soreness to be reported as a workers'’ Comp claim?

We want everyone that has pain doing their job to
report it; yes, sir. I -- but we don’t look at a
wWorkman’s Comp right off the bat.

So, in fact, if somebody has pain, as Tong as they
go to the doctor, the doctor clears them to work,
they’re getting treatment, getting medication, you’ré
okay with that?

If someone reports that they’re having pain, we
want to investigate and see is it just work hardening
or is it something that we need to pursue with medical
treatment.

Got you. So -- so, what you’d want to know is if
somebody has strained muscles due to heavier workload
at new job, no emergent signs of symptoms, exercise to
Tose weight, a need for strengthening up the core
muscles and proper lifting techniques; that’s what
you’d want to know, isn’t it -- |

I'm -- I'm little confused --

-- from a doctor?

-- what -- you’'re asking --

You wanted to make sure that it’s not an injury --

-- correct.

correct?
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Yes.
That it’s just pain --
Right.

-- 1ike pain from working a neﬁ=job, not really

being in shape because you’re new at the job --

job,

just

Right.

-- that kind of thing?

Uh-huh. Yes.

And you -- you expect people who are new to the

a lot of them are going to have pain and be sore
because it’s hard work and they’re. not used to it?
Yes, minor, you know; soreness but --

Right. sSo --

-- okay. Yeah.

-- so,v11ke, with Mr. Brailey, you know, his

doctor tells him, you need to strengthen up your core

muscles and use proper 1ifting techniques --

have

Uh~huh.

-- but you can work?

Yeah.

So, you have the information -- or I won’t say you

the information but Mr. Brailey has the

information, he’s getting that taken care of and he’s

cleared to work. You wouldn’t know anything different

if you’d had that information, wbu]d you?
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Probably not, no.

It was actually on June 24th, 2017 --

Uh-huh. |

-- that you heard -- got a phone call from France,
that Mr. Brailey had had a work accident?

I heard that he had gone to the doctor and claimed
to have a work accident; yes, sir.

And you've heard the testimony, you -- you’ve
looked at his medical records --

Uh-huh.

~- you know now that he’s been diagnosed with a
herniated disk and that surgery is recommended by his
Neurbsurgeon; you’'re aware of that, right?

That’§ what the report says; yes, sir.

Okay. And you would agree nobody before june
24th, 2017, while he was working at Michelin, had put
him under restrictions or recommended surgery?

One more time.

You would agree --

Huh-uh.

-- that no doctor, while Mr. Brailey was working
at Michelin, had put him under restrictions before June
24th, 20177

No doctor that he saw after he came to work for
Michelin had; yes, sir.
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Q. Right. Not Dr. Tomarchio, not his family doctor,

~not Lexington Medical Center?

A. Correct.

Q. Only after June 24th, 2017, did they take him out
of work or put him under work restrictions, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. 'Okay.

A. That’s when he was taken out of work.

Q. And -- |

Mr. Samuels: -- that’s the only
questions I have. Thank you.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
- By Mr. Beard:

Q. If an employee claims to have ten (10) out of ten
(10) pain as a result of doing the job at your plant,
do you expect to hear that information?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In fact, is it important for you to know that
information so that you can make sure they don’t hurt
themselves or anyone else any further?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And, in fact, if mr. Brailey had honestly come in

and told you on the 11th or the 13th what he had told
the hospital or the -- his personal doctor, we probably

wouldn’t be here, would we?
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That’s correct.

Okay. 1It’s because he failed to giVe you that
information that maybe we’re here; isn’t that correct?

That's correct.

Based on everything else you've heard, based on
the review of those medical records from before, based
on the testimony, do you really believe anything Mr,
Brailey says at this point?

Mr. Samuels: oObjection, Your Honor.
That is an absolutely improper question
eliciting a -- a witness’ opinion regarding
other witnesses, pitting witnesses --

Mr. Beard: with -- with all due
respect, Mr. Samuels said, and I quote,
“You’ve heard two (2) people give testimony
about the strenuous things that they do in
these physical examinations.” one of fhe two
(2) people would be this gentleman sitting in
the chair right here. TI’'ve got a right to
then follow up and say do you believe
anything this gentleman said; I’ve got a
right to do that. He opened that door.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Tell me how you
didn’t open the door by pitting the other two
(2) people against another person,
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Mr. Samuels: Because --

Commissioner wilkerson: He has a right
to ask the question.

Mr. Samuels: -- because I -- because I
was talking about the substance of the
testimony that they gave.

‘Commissioner wilkerson: How do I know
what you're talking about? I keep reminding
you, I don’t have a clue what you all are
talking about. You all talk in circles. I
don’t have a clue what you’re talking about.
If you’re talking -- because you’ve got one
opinion before we started about the depo,
you’ve got another 6p1nion now; it moves
based on the question. I never know what you
all are talking about on either side:; that’s
why we have evidence. If we -- ifwe ~- if I
knew what you all were talking about why
would I ask you to put your positions on the
record; wouldn’t I just read what you hand
me? I never know what either side is ta1kfng
about. So, if you open the door, he gets the
right to ask a question.
| Mr. Samuels: I -- I didn’t open the
door as to whether or not he believed

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mac circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
www. Pap784toCourtReporting.com



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

417

testimony. An opinion -- an attorney asking
a --

Commissioner wWilkerson: You asked about
the doctor who is not even here: do you
believe those doctors know what they’re
doing, on several occasions. You asked
several times, do you believe what your
doctor tells you. Sd, I think you opened the
door. He gets to tell me what he believes of
your client; I don’t know what it’s going to
be.

Mr. Samuels: -- okay. Fair enough,
Your Honor.

Commissioner wilkerson: I mean, I think
it’s a fair question.

Do you need me to repeat the question?

Please.

Based on everything you’ve heard and everything
that you reviewed, do you believe anything that mr.
Brailey is saying in this case?

I do not.

In addition to relying on that physical

+ examination Mr. Samuels showed you, the physical exam

or -- or read to you and --_or you’ve heard about the
physical exam that he passed, and you said you do rely
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on your doctors and you rely on those things; you rely
on the employees to honestly answer the questionnaires
so that you can do the investigation that needs to be
done, correct?

That is correct.

And your doctors, do they also rely upon the
questionnaires and the answers so that they can do the
thorough investigation?

Yes.

Mr. Samuels: Objection, Your Honor,
calls for specu1étioh --

Do you believe this --

Mr. Samuels: -- on evidence --
Mr. Beard: -- I'11 withdraw it.
Mr. Samuels: -- not personally --
Mr. Beard: -- I’11 withdraw it.

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Do you believe it’s possible for the doctor to do
a thorough investigation if the patient does not
truthfully answer the questionnaire?

Mr. Samuels: objection, Your Honor, the
witness is unqualified to answer that
question; |

Commissioner wilkerson: well, he would
be unqualified to answer your questions about
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his doctors, true? so, do we strike yours as
well?

Mr. Beard: Commissioner, he's the
Safety --

Mr. samuels: I reckon not --

Mr. Beard: -- Manager.

Mr. Samuels: -- that’s fine, Your Honor.

Commissioner wilkerson: I --

Mr. Samuels: 1’11 let the questions go;

it’s fine.
Commissioner wilkerson: -- I just --
you’ve got to -- you can’t -- again, you

can’t have your cake and eat it t00; you’ve
either got to decide I want to keep it or I

want a bite of the cake. cCome on now.

Is it possible, Mr. Gross, for a doctor -- for
your company doctor or your plant doctor who is. doing a
physical examination on a new perspective employee, do
a thorough investigation if they are lied to on a
questionnaire about someone’s medical history?

They will not be able to.

Thank you, sir.

/

Mr. Beard: That’s all I have.
Commissioner Wilkerson: Any follow ups?
Mr. Samuels: Yes, sir.
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
www.Pap7g7toCourtReporting. com



10
11
12
13
14
.15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

420

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr, Samuels:

Q
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o
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Mr. Gross, you did believe Mr. Lemon’s testimony

about how thorough the physical examination was,

though, didn’t you?

Yes.

Okay. And you would expect Michelin’s doctors to

do a thorough physical examination?

Yes.

That’s what you want, isn’t jt?

-Yes.

And you know that they are going to always pay

particular attention to the back because that's -- it’s

such a vulnerable important area, isn’t it?

I do not know that.

You now know that because of Mr. Lemon’s

testimony, which you believe, correct?

he?

~In -- in Mr. Lemon’s opinion, yes, but --

And --

-- I've -~

-- your doctor, Dr. Tomarchio --
-- uh-huh.

-- cleared Mr, Brailey to full duty work, didn’t

That’s correct.
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Q. You also heard testimony that Mr. Brailey was a
| good worker, able to do the work and nobody noticed him
having any difficulty doing the work; isn’t that true?
A. That's true.
Q. And even though he had pain, he had no difficulty

doing the work until June 24th, 2017: isn’t that true?

A. That’s true.
Q. And ~-
Mr. Samuels: -- no further questions,
Your Honor.
EURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION
By Mr. Beard:
Q. S0, even though he had ten (10) out of ten (10)

pain, he was able to confinue working and --
Mr. Samuels: I --
Commissioner Wilkerson: wait a minute;
let him finish the question or are you .
through?
Mr. samuels: -- we -- we’re getting
into re-redirect.
Mr. Beard: -- well, it doesn’'t matter.
Commissioner Wilkerson: It doesn’t
matter.
Mr. Beard: I get to go if he lets me.
Commissioner wWilkerson: He still gets
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Mr. Beard: I think we’ve done that a
Tot today.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- yes.

Mr. Samuels: Fair enough.

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

So, even though he was in ten (10) out of ten (10)
pain, he was able to continue to do his job and con
everybody out there and not tell anybody what was going
on; is that correct?

That’s correct.

Just like he probably did when he did the physical
examination to get the job in the first place, correct.

correct. ”

A1l right. So, Mr. Lemon, you heard him testify,
right?

Yes, sir.

what did Mr. Lemon say when he was asked the
question, did you tell the truth on all the questions
on your questionnaire; what was his answer?

Yes.

You’ve read Mr. Brailey’s questionnaire and you’ve
heard his testimony, are those two (2) things |
consistent? Did -- did Mr. Brailey tell the truth on
his questionnaire?
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He did not.

Okay. so, there’s a big difference between those
two (2) individuals, correct?

That is correct.

It would have been a lot easier for the doctor to
make an examination of the person who told the truth,
thoroughly, than the person who Tied, thoroughly,
correct?

That is correct.

Mr. Beard: That’'s all I have.

FURTHER RECROSS-EXAMINATION

By Mr, samuels:

wWould you agree that between 1997 and 2017, a
period of twenty (20) years, that there is no evidence
of Mr. Brailey having any back pain or going to any
doctor for back problems?

There is no evidence, no; you’'re correct.

And wouldn’t you agree that there is no evidence
that Mr. Brailey was currently having any back pain at
the time he was examined by Dr. Tomarchio and at the
time that he filled out the questionnaire?

That’s correct.

wWhen people fill out the.questionnaire, do you
expect them‘to answer all the questions?

Yes, sir.
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Fi11 in all the blanks?

Yes, sir.

And is there somebody there with the employee as
they’re filling this out making sure they fil1l in all
the blanks and answer all the questions?

No, sir.

Does somebody check afterwards to make sure that
everything is properly Fi]]ed out?

That I do not know.

Because I -- I’ve got to ask you --

Uh-huh.

-- I mean, I'm looking at it, page 16, it’s got
his name --

Right.

-- and there are answers to some of the questions
but there’s no address, phone number, emergency
contact, relationship to emergency contact, phone or
family doctor?

That is correct;

Is that information not equally important?

on that form, I would say not.

You would say not?

That’s correct.

You don’t know what it -- you don’t want to know
who his family doctor is so you can obtain medical
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records if you need to? So, a part of this --
Huh-uh.
-- so0, this form really isn’t as important as it
has been said, is it?
It’s very important to understand the physica1 -
the physical conditions of the perspective employee.
But nobody goes back and makes sure that this is
properly filled out, do they?
I was not there when that was done --
Right. ) |
-~ and I can’t tell you.
Théy i1l out a ton of paperwork, right, when
they’re hired? |
I think there’s quite a few, yes.
Quite a lot?
Yeah.
And they go through it pretty fast?
There’s nothing that creates a need for speed when
they’re filling it out.
Okay.
‘ Mr. Samuels: No' more questions, Your
Honor . |
Commissioner wilkerson: Oh, I’m sorry.
Mr. Beard: oOne --
Commissioner wilkerson: I'm stil]
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writing.
Mr. Beard: -- one --
Commissioner wilkerson: I apologize.
Mr. Beard: -- one follow up. Page 16.
Commissioner wilkerson: I had not

fallen asleep.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION

By Mr. Beard:

Q. Page 16, Mr. Gross.

A, - Uh-huh.

Q. There’s a box that says, Declaration and

Authorization; do you see that?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Can you just read into the record, slowly --
commissioner wilkerson: Page 167 Hold
on, let me get to it.
Mr. Beard: -- yes, sir.
Commissioner Wilkerson: 1Is it your 16
or --
Mr. Beard: Yes, sir. I’'m sorry, my 16,
the -- this is the -- the questionnaire.
Mr. Samuels: Your Honor, I’11 stipulate
that it says what it says.
Mr. Beard: That's fine.
Commissioner wWilkerson: -- okay.
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Mr. Beard: I still want him to read it
for the record.

commissioner wilkerson: Okay, for the
record.

If you would, just read into the recorq what that
says.

It says, I declare that all information contained
herein is true and complete to the best of my
knowledge. I understand and agree, thus, that any
false, misleading or incomplete information will make
me subject to disqualification from employment or
subject to dismissal at any time. I hereby authorize
Michelin to make any investigation it deems appropriate
and, expressively, authorize any physician, hospital,
clinic or other persons or entity MicheTin may contact
to release particulars of my health, medical health
other than gastric information or any claim to
Michelin. A photocopy of this authorization shall be
valid as the original.

Commissioner Witkerson: Let me ask a
question. Is that gastric or genetic? T
can’t read it.

Mr. Samuels: 1It’s --.

Witness: My contacts are fuzzy --

Mr. Samuels: -- it’s genetic.
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wWitness: -- it says genetic.
Commissioner wWilkerson: what?

Mr. Samuels: 1It's genetic.

Mr. Beard: It’s genetic.

Witness: 1It’s genetic.

Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay. I
couldn’t read it --

wWitness: 1It’s genetic.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- I was going
to ask you. That’s okay. I thought --

- Witness: Sorry, fuzzy contacts.

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- no, no, |
|
that’s okay. I -- mine’s a little fuzzy too
and it’s -- it is late in the day.

Mr. Beard: My head --

Commissioner Wilkerson: So, I thought

Mr. Beard: -- my head --

Commissioner wilkerson: I just wanted
td get it right.

Mr. Beard: -- my head is fuzzy right
now.

Commissioner wilkerson: I apologize.

Did -- sentence number 1, was the information

contained in the report true and accurate?
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A. NO. .
Q. A1l right. And Mr. Brailey has admitted that
today, correct?

A. That is correct.

o

Could Mr. Brailey, in fact, could be fired for
that reason alone; is that not true?

That is correct.

'A11 right. And he acknowledged that?

-That 1is correct.

o > o »

And it also says that that authorizes you,
Michelin, to have any doctor investigate the condition;
you weren’t given that opportunity in this case, were
you?

That is correct.

Because Mr. Brailey withheld the information?

That 1is correct.

And, in fact, we now know that Mr. Brailey was
restricted from doing any heavy duty work since at
Teast 1997, until seen by a surgeon, correct?

A. That is correct.
Q. | Thank you, sir.
Mr. Beard: That's all I have.
| Commissioner Wilkerson: Anything else?
FURTHER RECROSS-EXAMINATION
By Mr, Samuels:

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING

321 Mac Circle Lexington, SC 29073

(803) 358-0515
www. PaR797toCourtReporting. com



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

O > O >

>

o > o >

430

Sir, Mr. Brailey was terminated on July 9th, 2017:

isn’t that correct? )

it?

You -- I'm not positive of the date but, yes.
okay.
okay.

That had nothing to do with his questionnaire, did

That is correct.

)

Okay. And when this case was denied in July of

2017, that had nothing to do with this questionnaire,
did it?

I'm not part of that process --
okay.
-- so, I can’t tell you,

You understand that this questionnaire did not

even become an issue in this case until this hearing

had been continued twice?

Again, I don’t know --
Okay.
-- exactly when it became important.
Mr. Beard: That’s actually incorrect.
It's on the first Form 51 filed, fraud in the
application, affirmative défenses raised.
Mr. Samuels: Your Honor, it’'s on every
application but it --
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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every 51 that

Mr. -- Mr. -Beard files. My -- my point about

that is, he amended his pre-hearing brief and

APA months after the original hearing was

S

et; that's my point.

Mr. Beard: Read the first Form 51 --

Commissioner wilkerson:

All right.

Mr. Beard: -- that’s all I can tell

you; it’s on the Form 51.

C

commissioner wWilkerson:

ould it be months? I didn’t

Okay. How

-- I didn’t

have the hearing until, what, January?

b

t

Mr. Beard: Yes, sir.

commissioner wilkerson:

So, it couldn’t

e months.

Mr. Samuels: That was not an issue at
he --

commissioner wWilkerson: what?

Mr. Samuels: -- at the -- when we

convened for the hearing in January.

Mr. Beard: It actually was amended when

you allowed me to get the workers’ comp file

commissioner wilkerson:

PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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February?

Mr. Beard: -- correct.

Commissioner wilkerson: oOkay. So, it’'s
been less -- '

Mr. Beard: That’s the only time I’ve
amended my pre-hearing brief --

Commissioner wilkerson: -- it’s been
less than two (2) months.

Mr. Beard: -- just because Stephen had
raised some issue about the Form 51 was
improper to begin with -~

Commissioner Wilkerson: oOkay.

Mr. Beard: -~ some --

Commissioner Wilkerson: Okay.

Mr. Beard: -- some issue like that.

Commissioner wilkerson: I don’t know.
That’s fine. Because you had -- you at that
point also raised 11-B had not been answered;
SO --

Mr. Beard:_ correct.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- the hearing
doesn’t count --

Mr. Beard: Correct.

Commissioner wilkerson: -- basically.

Mr. Beard: That’s exactly what I did.
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commissioner wilkerson: okay.'

Mr. Beard: And he --

Commissioner wWilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Beard: -- he amended that --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Beard: -- just on his last
pre-hearing brief.

Commissioner wilkerson: I understand.
That’s why I was going there. I -- I know
it’s scary --

‘Mr. Beard: Again, I -- with all due

respect --

Commissioner Wilkerson: -- I'm reading
it.

Mr. Beard: -- I mean, it’s the constant

I did something but it’s okay if he does
something; he’s done it all day Tong today.
Commissioner Wilkerson: 1It’'s fine.
I’ve got to make the decision, then you all
‘can go before the next group and then you all
can decide who wants to carry it to -- to the
Court of Appeals; I’m fine with that.
Sir,Aone of_the questions on this questionnaire
is, number 26, are you presently being treated for any
condition -
PALMETTO COURT REPORTING
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Mr. Beard: Commissioner --

-- that may inhibit your ability to work.

Mr. Beard: -- and just -- I -- I just
-~ the only reason I'm doing this is because
we’'re going to keep going all night long.

Commissioner wilkerson: You are.

Mr. Beard:' I on1y\asked him about the
declaration portion, that's it. we’ve been
through the other stuff earlier.

Commissioner wilkerson: Yes.

Mr. Beard: Stephen is now reopening or
trying to reopen beyond that and I -object to
that. I don’t think we just to keep going
on, and on, and on. |

Commissioner Wilkerson: No.

Mr. Beard: And I object.

commissioner wilkerson: I understand.
We just -- we need to wrap it up.

Mr. Samuels: 1I’'m wrapped up, Your
Honor.

Commissioner w11kersbn: As long as --
yes -- as long as there’s nothing else
specifically to the last questions that were
ésked.

Mr. Beard: No further questions. No
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further witnesses from the pefense. The
Defense withdraws its motion to depose or
reconvene the deposition --

Commissioner Wilkerson: I understand.

Mr. Beard: -- of Dr. Boyd.

Commissioner wilkerson: okay. And your
position is on that?

Mr. Samuels: My position is that we
should be allowed to reconvene the deposition
based on the evidence presented today.

Commissioner Wilkerson: Even though
before we started you didn’t want to take
that?

Mr. Samuels: That is correct, Your
Honor.

Commissioner Wilkerson: You did one
live yesterday?

Mr. Samuels: That is correct, Your
Honor.

commissioner wi1kerson:_ Because you
wanted the hearing to take place. And I said
after the hearing I would decide if I need
Dr. Boyd’s deposition taken to determine -- I
never said what I needed to determine -- but
I always wait and see what has takeh place
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today to see if I need it. I don’t need it.
So, I Wou1d say, I'm not going to allow it to
be taken at this point 1in timei I’11T let you
all argue can you withdraw? I don’t think
you did. can you change your position? 1’11
let somebody else decide that. That will be
a great Supreme Court action. Because if
that’s the case there’s no need to prepare
APA’s and opinions; just come in here and
argue at the end what you want. So -- but I
understand c?ear]y. This concludes our
hearing. Let me meet with the attorneys,
briefly, because I’ve got to be gone 1in
fifteen (15) minutes. So, I thank everybody
for being here. I appreciate it.
(THERE BEING NO FURTHER QUESTIONS OR DISCUSSION, THE
HEARING CONCLUDED AT 4:40 P.M.)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

CERTIFICATE
COUNTY OF RICHLAND )

Be it known that I took the foregoing South Carolina
Workers' Compensation Commission Hearing of Isaac Brailey,
vs. Michelin;

That I was then and there a Notary Public in and for
the State of South Carolina-At-Large;

That by virtue thereof I was duly authorized to
administer an oath; ‘

That the witness was first duly sworn to testify the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,
concerning the matter in controversy aforesaid;

The foregoing transcript of 435 typewritten pages
represents a true, accurate and complete transcription of
the testimony so given at the time and place aforesaid to
the best of my skill and ability;

That I am not related to nor an employee of any of the
parties hereto, nor a relative or employee of any attorney
or counsel employed by the parties hereto, nor interested in
the outcome of this action;

Witness my hand and seal this 5th pay of May, 2018.

Gloria G, Davis

Gloria G. Davis

Notary Public for South carolina
My Commission Expires 12/21/21

*This Transcript may contain quoted material, such material,
is reproduced as read or quoted by the speaker.

**This is an official Transcript governed by 25A S.C. Code
Ann. Regs. 67-615 D (Supp. 2000). The unauthorized copying
of this document is deemed to be conversion of an asset
belonging to the Court Reporter.
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BRAILEY V. MICBELIN, ET AL. 3

CALL TO ORDER:

COURT REPORTER: Today is Monday October 22nd, 2018.
This is South Carolina Workers' Compensation
Case Number 1708221. This is the case of Isaac
Brailey, claimant versus Michelin, employer and
Safety National Casualty Corporation, carrier.
The appellant is the claimant represented by
Sfephen B. Sémuels. The respondent is
represented by Grady L. ﬁeard. Each. side is
allowed 10 minuteé for oral argument and the
appellanf three minutes in reply. You are
requested to argue the grounds of exception and
stay within the record.

COMMISSIONER BECK: Now Prior go going on the record
there was a discussion off the record regarding
Mr. Beard's prior répresentation of me in a
matter 22 years ago. Mr. Samuels, it's my
Understanding "you've had an opportunity' to
énntemplate whether or not you'll ask for a
recusal or not. You've chosen to_proceed with
me on the panel, sir. Correct?

MR. SAMUELS: That is correct, Your Honor.

COMMISSIONER BECK: All right. Mr. Samuels.

ARGUMENT BY MR. SAMUELS :

MR. SAMUELS: May it. please the Commission. I

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 4

represent Isaac Brailey in this appeal to the

Single Commissioner. There were primarily
three issues on appeal. This is a denied case.
The Single Commissioner found quote, I find the
claiﬁant was unable to return to work after
June 24th, 2017 due to a separéte incident.
That finding, Your Honor, refers to the Juné
24th work injury that's pled in this case.
Point being that finding confirms that there
wés an accident on that date that did arise out
of the course of employment. So in fact with

that finding with the evidence presented, Mr.

Brailey did prove his prima facie case of

proving the work related accident. What really
happened here is that the Single Commissioner
denied the case under two affirmative defenses
pled by the defendants specifically under the
Cooper and bapers cases. And we would contend
that they did not meet their burden of proof to
prove those affirmative defenses and that is
the core of this appeal. To give Your Honors
some sense of the background facts, 20 years
ago when Bill Clinton was President of the
United States it was a different world Isaac

Brailey had a lumbar and thoracic sprain while

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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BRATLEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 5

working for Richtex Bricks. He was -- saw the
company doctor twice, he was out of work for
two weeks and five days and he clinchered that
Case for a nuisance value of $2,500. For the
next 20 years Mr. Brailey worked, 15 years of
which he spent at Westinghouse and he had no
back problems what so ever. He received no
treatment for any back pain or back injuries.
He was laid off from Westinghouse after 15
years there and went to apply at Michelin, the
company he hoped to retire with. He was given
the standard questionnaire and he was asked in
March of 2017, do you have problems with or
have you ever had medical attention for the
following, back injury, headache or pain or
have you ever experienced a medical problem
that would affect vyour ability to work? We
acknowledged he checked no to those questions.
That is the only evidence about that issue.
There is no medical record of a physical exam,
no statemeﬁt from a company doctor, nothing.
Just simply the fact that he signed the
questionnaire where he did not -- admittedly
did not disclose that 20 years before he'd had

a minor back injury that had affected his work

\  CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 6

for two and a half weeks. He started working
for Michelin and in June --= June 11th, 2017 he
was experiencing back pain. He talked to his
co-workers and they said, well, you know, it's
a new job, this is hard physical work, you
should expect this. And then he went to urgent
care on June 11, 2017 on his own. Did not
claim it under Michelin workers' comp. ~He
reported low back pain from heavy 1lifting at
work with no radiation. He was given some
medication, released to work full duty no
restrictions. June 13th, 2017 he goes back to
-- this time to his family doctor, essentially
the same thing. New jbb at Michelin, doc says,
likely strained muscles due to heavier work
load at job, no restrictions, no radiation,
nothghg of significance. On June 24th, 2017
early hours Saturday morning he is working, he
is stretching rubber and he now has what he
feels is an injury, feels sudden pain. He
reports it to his supervisor, medical is closed
at that point in time so he went, after he
left, to the ER. Through texts and

communications he had with the‘plant nurse and

supervisors at that time. This time the doctor
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 7

at the emergency room was concerned, put him
under work restrictions, referred him to a
neurosurgeon at Lexington Brain and Spine. He
was asked to come back in to see Dr. Izard, the
company doctor,‘on June 26th, 2017. Dr. Izard
frankly gave him some pretty highly
ihappropriate recommendations. Told him not to
take the medication he'd been prescribed, told
him not to go to the neurosurgeon and told him
that he had a urinary tract infection, Perhaps
not Surprisingly his inappropriate
recommendatioﬁs Ccreated some conflict between
Michelin management and Mr. Brailey. In any
case he went on andv followed up, got an
appointment with a neurosurgeon, went back to
the emergency room and saw Dr. Scott Boyd at
Lexington Brain and Spine where he'd been
referred. He had an MRI, which showed a
herniated disc, he was not presenting with
radiculopathy, in fact he pfesented to Dr.
Izard with radiculopathy even though Dr. Izard
never documented it, but it is documented in
the hand-written Pain diagram. And this was a
new symptom that began June 24th, 2017 and

that's what accounts for the finding with

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 8

accident and causation in this case. And Dr.
Boyd was extensively deposed and he stuck by
his opinion that there was an incident on June
24th, 2017, that to a reasonable degree of
medical certainty was in injury that lead to
the need for surgery. So we move forward, the
Case is tried. As I said, I believe the
finding from the Single Commissioner confirms
that there was an injury by accident and that's
proven by the medical evidence. The question
is did the defendants present sufficient
evidence to prove their affirmative defenses?
Now the Cooper case has thfee elements.
Employee must knowingly and willfully make 3

false representation as to his physical

condition, the employer must rely wupon the

false representation and it must have been a
substantial factor in the hiring, and there
must be a causal connection between the false
representation and the injury. So objectively
acknowledge Mr. Brailey did not disclose his
back injury from 20 Years before. I would
Suggest quite frankly that that having had such
a minor ihcident and no problems for 20 years

tends to show that this was not a knowing and
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. S

willful misrepresentation but.I understand that
is something that's up for y'all to decide. I

think the significance here is there's no proof

of reliance. The safety manager testified just

generically that compény and its doctor are not
able to investigate the extent of the injury,
and 1it's impossible for piant doctors to
conduct investigations and examinations of the
employee.  But they never produced documents of

@ physical examination, they never produced

evidence of clearance from work, they never

presented the person who actually hired or
interviewed Mr. Brailey. So to say that this
was a significant or substantial factor in
hiring, there's no procf of that. This is
ﬁerely an allegation where they want to paint
this guy as a bad guy because they got a bad
answer on a questionnaire. Angdg, you know, this
is not a minor thing. You've got to present
evidence to prove this defense. And the second
thing that they canndt prove 1is a causal
connection because you've got to prove it by
medical evidence. You can't simply say, well
he didn't disclose this onlhis examination, now

he's got an injury. Well, you know, there is

: CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 10

no evidence to prove causal connection and in
fact when you think that Mr. Brailey saw two
doctors, June 11lth and June 13th, who cleared
him to return to work without restrictions, he
was cleared. You cannot say that there is
evidence to show that there's any causal
connection between what happened 20 years ago,
not when he's cleared by two doctors who know
he's having back pain. There's no evidence to
support this defense and for that reason should
be reversed. The other defense the Single
Commissioner found is one I've seen raised many
times but never seen proven in any workers'
compensation case in my 20 years in practice.
That is the Capers defense., Capers, if Your
Honors recall, was a dishwasher who was
allergic to dish soap. He got contact
dermatitis, he filed a workers' compensation

claim because of this, claimed he was

Permanently and tdtally disabled. That claim

ended and sometime thereafter he went back with
a qgw empioyer, developed the exact same
condition as he knew he would because he was
allergic.to dish soap. That is deemed not to

be an accident because you have certainty that

1230 Richiand Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 11

if you expose yourself to dish soap it is going
to trigger your allergy. So ---

COMMISSIONER BECK: Finish your thought.

MR. SAMUELS: Thank you. Merely because Mr. Brailey
had a back sprain 20 years ago, there is no way
that other than épeculation one can say that he
knew with certainty that he would have
developed a herniated disc working at Micheliﬁ.

Therefore Capers cannot be proven. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BECK: Mr. Beard,

ARGUMENT BY MR. BEARD:

MR. BEARD: Thank you, Commissioners. It's always-
amazing when you go to these hearings and we
come in here and argue to the Full Commission
how it always feels 1like we're all in a
different room and we were all'in a different
area.- Stephen said on June the 13th, '17, 11
days before the date of accident alleged in
this case, he had gone to his family doctor and
there was nothing of significance other than a
lumbar strain. What he didn't say is, read the
medical récord, it says his client was having
10 out of 10 pain. When we deposed Dr. Boyd,
Dr.'Boyd was asked, what does 10 out of 10 pain

mean, Dr. Boyd? This would have been 11 days

( N, CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
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BRAILEY V. MICEELIN, ET AL. 12

before this alleged accident.\rDr. Boyd éaid,
that means you're in the worst pain that you
could ever possibly be in according to the
scales that we use to measure that. ‘That was
the claimant's statemené to his personal family
doctor of which he did not notify Michelin. So
Stephen 1laid the background out pretty well
with regards to what happened in this case.
What he left out were some pretty important
facts. He left out that his client denied any
kind of preexisting back problems on his Form
50, his client denied any preexistiﬁg back
problems on his application to come to work for
us where the specific questions are asked, have
yYou ever had of do you have back pain, ever,
any kind of back pain in your life? No. Have
You ever had baék pain that kept you from
working or put You out of work? Answer, no.
Well during the course of the discovery in the
case he said he worked at Westinghouse after he
worked at this place in 1997, Richtex Bricks.
We didn't know anything about Richtex Bricks
because he didn't tell wus about it during
discovery. We found out about it when we came

over here for hearing number one that didn't go

: CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC,
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 13

forward because we found out there was a prio;
workers' comp claim. So we got that
information and found out he did have a prior
workers' comp claim, did have é settlement. It
was a denied claim as well and in a minute I'm
gonna tell you how it's almost identical to
what we're here for now. So we get this
information, we find out about this prior back
claim, we get Westinghouse's personnel file.
Well they had a lot better questions on there
thah Michelin did, I'll grant that. They asked
him point blank, You ever settle a workers'
comp case, ever had a wdrkérs' comp case, ever
had a back -~(this is just a couple of years
after he 1left the Job at Richtex Bricks.
Course he answered, no, no, no, no all the way
doWn the road and he lied to them as well. Now
his Jjob at Westinghouse admittedly was not
heavy duty work. He admitted in his deposition
it was more sedentary type work, less than
anything he ‘was doing.at Michelin or had done
at Richtex Bricks. But he shows a history in
his applications of being an untruthful person.
He admitted in the hearing eventﬁally on cross-

examination that he 1lied to everybody, he

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AIL. 14

acknowledged that. He said, yes 1I lied. I
lied on my application. What he didn't do was
initially he said, I didn't lie when Stephen
asked him questions, and finally undef cross-
examination he did -~ he was admitting of not
being ‘truthful about these things. The
importance of all the facts as they were laid
out/are this, the Commissioner found that this
gentleman didn't meet'his burden of proof that
he got hurt on June the 24th. Not =-- the
Commissioner's finding says there was an
incident. There's no doubt he «claims an
incident. There's no doubt about that. We
don"t dispute that he said that later after he
went to a doctor and came back and called some
folks on that particular day. Of course he
violated protocol when he did that. This
gentleman worked for Michelin, he was still én
probationary status when this supposedly
happened. He worked for us for less than two
months when all of this happened. The first
three weeks was nothing but orientation sitting
in a classroomAlearning how to do it. He then
goes on June the 11th, June 13th before all of

this complaining of back problems which if you
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 15

read the medical records he said, I think it's
because I'm doing some work, I'm doing manual
labor, I'm not used to it. My back's sore.
And he says that. But then he tells his
doctor, I've got 10 out of 10 pain doing this
stuff. Nét one single time has he ever come
back and tell a single individual at Michelin,
I have 10 out of 10 pain, I think it's being
caused by the job that I'm doing for you, so
I'm just gonnd come on back and keep on doing
that 10 out of 10 pain job until something like

this ultimately happens and we have to deal

with denying a workers' comp claim because he

has not been truthful, he has fabricated things
throughout all of his applications and done
this type of information. We got lucky after
we got the report from the Commission about
Richtex Bricks, so we subpoenaed some records.
And we end up getting some medical records back

from this Richtex Bricks case. And I guess

‘there's no other way to do it but just to read

these records from Dr. -- says Dr. Norris in
1987. He saw him a couple of times. But what
he says is, patient will be placed on orvel,

Flexeril, heat and stretching. He is
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 16

instructed on no heavy lifting times one week
and he is to return to clinic in one week. I
also discussed with this gentleman in no
uncertain terms if he has geen having back pain
for three weeks, the entire time he haé been
working for Richtex, if he does not respond
very well and véry fast to some conservative
treatment it might be in his and Richtex's best
interest for him to find new employment. Comes
back a week later and sees the doctor, still,
of course, having severe pain, being in all

types of pain. He states he is having

_difficulty sleeping at times all though at the

same time he tells me that the Flexeril knodks
him out at night. I do not have the records
from the Doctors Care, and he is unsure exactly
what the diagnosis was or what he was told. He
mentions that he knows something is wrong with
his ©back and he wants to go to a back
specialist. It seems today that Mr. Brailey
and I have a very difficult time communicating
and I certainly feel that with him having only
been an employee three weeks at Richtex and
mentioning a back specialist after he had been

improving on the therapy I had recommended, he
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 17

may very well be in a litigation thoughtv
process. I believe itb certainly would be
prudeﬁt for both myself and Richtex Bricks to
send 'him to an orthopedic surgeon. Then he

says, he reports the pain in the middle of his

back also down the low back. Diagnosed with
lumbar and thoracic problems. It seems he
wants to be evaluated by a back specialist. I

feel like Dr. Bethea at Moore Clinic would
certainly put this to rest more expediently,
however as stated above I don’f feel that
Richtex nor myself need to undertake any
liability with this young man who, in my
opinion, is unable to perform the job required
at Richtex and he was even told this the very
first day. I restated that today. I will
place him on no heavy lifting until he sees a
Surgeon. He never saw a surgeon, he never did
what he was supposed to do. He was terminated
from this job by general employment release
along with a clincher becéuse he could not
Physically perform heavy manual labor, which is
what he applied to do with my client. So the
Commissioner found, because Dr. Boyd éaid that

he did not stand by his questionnaire, and of
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N

cburse there's no way the two of us can stand
here and read to You 50 something pages of a
deposition. But what he did say was, I can't

tell you whether he got hurt on June the 24th

or not, which is what he's claiming because

you've presented to me history that's not what
I was told. In fact he thought it was his
impression thére were no problems prior to June
the 24th. Not only did he not know about June
the 11th or June - the 13th just a couple of
weeks before_the alleged date of accident, he
didn't know about‘this prior 24 years although
he finally read something in his fecofd where
the claimant had said something about maybe 25
years ago I had some problem that went away4
with no medical treatment whatsoever. Also an
untruth that he told to Dr; Boyd. So Dr. Boyd
did not stand by the date of accident. He
stood by all the things he thought needed to be
treated. He said that has nothing to do with
causation.v He said I -- this is how T would
treat this person régardless of the cause of
his problems, but he did not stand by the date.
of accident on causation. We have met every

single thing that is required by the McDevitt
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 19

and Street case assuming you even get there.
You don't get there unless you disagree with
Commissioner Wilkerson that there is an injury
by accident. There is no injury by accident
because they can't meet the date of accident
proof required to a reasonable degree of
medical certainty from a doctor. More
importantly the Commissioner pointed out three
other things. He did point out that the Cooper
case would have defeated this claim. We met --
we put up four witnesses who testify, we rely
on the answers. If they don't tell the truth
then there's nothing the doctors can do, but
doctors can't do examinations on something that
you don't tell them about. The nurse said it
is easy to fake a Physical examination if you
want 'a job bad enough for the job. You just go
in and you suck it up and you suck up the pain
and you get the job. So we've got reliance,

we've got a lie and we got the medical records

from this doctor right here that says he cannot

do heavy labor work, should not ever be doing
heavy labor work and was supposed to go to a
surgeon which.'he never did. Capers case,

again, Stephen says he's never seen it happen.
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 20

I think I've probably seen it happen 50 times
in my workers' Vcomp‘ cases. So maybe when
you;re on the defense side yYyou see that a
little bit more.' But in Capers it says that
when you have a condition like Capers had, and

_he explained it do you, the gentleman who was
trying to wash the dishes and is allergic to
the dishwasher detergent. You do not have an
unlooked for event if you've had that kind of
situation in the paét. So’thereforé it is not
an injury by accident. This gentleman -- it is
almost identical what he did at Richtex Bricks
and what he's now doing at Michelin eXxcept he
didn't lie on an application back then because
he didn't have to fill out one where he'd had
a2 preexisting accident.

| COMMISSIONER BECK: All right. Your ---

MR. BEARD: Commiésioner, also on the intentional
42-9-60, that wasn't addressed, but he also
ruled that that would have barred him for not
telling him about 10 out of 10 pain and going

'.forwa;d. Thank you. ' o
COMMISSIONER BECK: Mr. Samuels.

REPLY BY MR. SAMUELS

MR. SAMUELS: Thank you, Commissioner. I get that
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 21

Mr. Beard wants to make my guy look like a bad
guy, I know that. That's what we see When the
evidence supports an injury. If you can't win
on the evidence then vyou try to paint the
claimant as a bad guy. I get that, I know that
tactic. I know that my guy struggled on cross-
examination. He was confused, beat up,
whooped, I've seen that with Mr. Beard many
times. He's an excellent excellent attorney at
Ccross-examining these people. But let's get a
few things straight. First off, they knew
about Richtex because Mr. Brailey téstified to
it in his deposition at November 25th, 2017.
So he was forthcoming. And he did go to a
doctor and the comments about how and why he
resigned, there's~no»evidence to any of that.

Second off let's talk about Dr. Boyd's opinion.

Dr. Boyd's opinion -- Dr. Boyd knew about the
previous stuff from June, 2017. He knew about
those previous exhibits. They were in his
record. Dr. Boyd said to a reasonable degree

of medical certainty in a questionnaire and in
his deposition that this was causally related.
The statement that he backed away from that is

simply false. There are other false statements
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BRAILEY V. MICHELIN, ET AL. 22

in defendant's brief that. I think véry
important. For example, at page-7 of their
brief they say, he chose ---

COMMISSIONER BARDEN: Where are you on page 7 so we
can follow along?

MR. SAMUELS: I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER BARDEN: That's okay?

MR. SAMUELS: I'm tryihg to get through my three
minutes here ---

COMMISSIONER BARDEN: I understand.

MR. SAMUELS: ~--- talking too fast.

COMMISSIONER BARDEN: I'm not holding you up, Jjust
tell me where you are.

MR. SAMUELS: Sure.

COMMISSIONER BARDEN: On page 7.

MR. SAMUELS: On page 7, top of the first full
paragraph. |

COMMISSIONER BARDEN: Okay.

MR. SAMUELS: They say, he chose to treat at Doctors
Care where he neglected to report that there's
a workers' cohpensation injury that he
previously met Qith Dr. Izérd. In fact it
Says, on the hand-written intake form he simply
wrote his name and signéd it. But in the

narrative report from that they safd that he
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was seen by the company doctor ét'Michelin who
gave him no restrictions and this -- and the
question is, was it filed under workers'
compensation? He 'said, vyes. So they are
misrepresenting in their brief what is in the
medical records and what my client did. On the

physical therapy intake form there's a question

_whether it was related to . a work accident. I

would agree that that was blank but he also
checked yes as to whether a workers'
compensation claim was filed. I would close,
Your Honor, by saying there's a 1lot of
arguments from counse& but there is no évidence
to refute Dx. Boyd's testimony and there's no
evidence to support any of these affirmative
defenses. Therefore as a matter of law they
have failed in their burden to prove their
affirmative defenses, Mr. Brailey has proved
his through medical evidence to‘a reasonable
degree of medical certainty. Therefore this
claim should be accepted and the Single
Commissioner's Order should be reversed. Thank

you.

(There being nothing further, the full commission

hearing concluded at 1:54 pP.m.)
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